Public Document Pack

A

y—S

CABINET
AGENDA
for the meeting
on
8 March 2021 at

2.00 pm

CROYDON

DQ“VQV'&V\Q {:DY C«YD\ddOV\ www.croydon.gov.uk



To:

Croydon Cabinet Members:

Councillor Hamida Ali, Leader of the Council

Councillor Stuart King, Deputy Leader (Statutory) and Cabinet Member for
Croydon Renewal

Councillor Muhammad Ali, Cabinet Member for Sustainable Croydon
Councillor Jane Avis, Cabinet Member for Homes & Gateway Services
Councillor Janet Campbell, Cabinet Member for Families, Health & Social
Care

Councillor Alisa Flemming, Cabinet Member for Children. Young People &
Learning

Councillor Oliver Lewis, Cabinet Member for Culture & Regeneration
Councillor Manju Shahul-Hameed, Cabinet Member for Economic
Recovery & Skills

Councillor David Wood, Cabinet Member for Safety, Communities &
Resilience

Councillor Callton Young OBE, Cabinet Member for Resources & Financial
Governance

Invited participants:
Councillor Louisa Woodley, Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Board
All other Members of the Council

A meeting of the CABINET which you are hereby summoned to attend, will be held
on Monday, 8 March 2021 at 2.00 pm. This meeting will be held remotely.

Jacqueline Harris-Baker Victoria Lower

Director of Law and Monitoring Officer 020 8726 6000 x14773
London Borough of Croydon victoria.lower@croydon.gov.uk
Bernard Weatherill House www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CRO 1EA 26 February 2021

PLEASE NOTE: Members of the public are welcome to remotely attend this meeting
via the following web link: https://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk/

The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

If you require any assistance, please contact Victoria Lower 020 8726 6000 x14773
as detailed above.


https://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

AGENDA - PART A

Apologies for Absence
Disclosure of Interests

In accordance with the Council’'s Code of Conduct and the statutory
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest is
registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of
Members’ Interests.

Urgent Business (If any)

To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered
as a matter of urgency.

Croydon's General Fund & HRA Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 (Pages
5-168)

Please note that this report will be updated once the Council has
received a decision from the Secretary of State on its request for a
capitalisation directive and the updated report will also include
further consultation responses.

Cabinet Member: Leader of the Council, Councillor Hamida Al
Cabinet Member for Croydon Renewal, Councillor Stuart King

Cabinet Member for Resources & Financial Governance, Councillor
Callton Young

Cabinet Member for Homes & Gateway Services, Councillor Jane Avis
Officer: Interim Chief Executive, Katherine Kerswell

Interim Director of Finance, Investment & Risk, Chris Buss



Key decision: Council Tax recommendations are reserved to Council.

Housing rents and charges are Key Executive Decisions

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”



Agenda Item 4

Please note that this report will be updated once the Council has received a
decision from the Secretary of State on its request for a capitalisation
directive and the updated report will also include further consultation
responses.

REPORT TO: Cabinet 15t March 2021
Council 8t" March 2021

SUBJECT: Croydon’s General Fund & HRA Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24

LEAD OFFICER: Katherine Kerswell, Interim Chief Executive Officer

Chris Buss, Interim Director of Finance , Investment and Risk

CABINET MEMBER: Leader Hamida Ali — Leader of Croydon Council
Councillor Stuart King — Cabinet Member for Croydon Renewal

Councillor Callton Young — Cabinet Member for Resources
and Financial Governance

Councillor Jane Avis — Cabinet Member for Homes and
Gateway services

WARDS: All

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:

The Council’s budget underpins the resource allocation for all corporate priorities and policies
and in particular, the corporate priority for the delivery of value for money for the residents of
the borough of Croydon. This report sets out the detailed proposals for the financial year
2021/22 to 2023/24.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The report details the revenue and capital budgets for the General Fund for financial Years
2021/22 to 2023/24, the Council Tax position for 2021/22, the revenue and capital budgets for
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget and position on the Housing Rents increases for
2021/22. This report only seeks approval of the Budget for 21/22 but Cabinet and Council are
asked to note the Medium Term Financial Plan

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE

The recommendations in section 1.0 are not executive decisions and therefore not key
decisions — the final decisions are to be recommended to the Full Council for consideration at
the meeting scheduled for 1st March 2021.

The recommendations in section 1.0 are key executive decisions (reference no.0921CAB). The
decisions may be implemented from 1300 hours on the 5" working day after it is made, unless
the decision is referred to the Scrutiny & Overview Committee by the requisite number of
Councillors.

Page 5




1.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Leader of the Council has delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

1.0 That Cabinet be recommended to approve the following recommendations to Full
Council for consideration at its meeting on 8th March 2021:

The Revenue Budget for 2021/22 and notes the 3 Year Medium Term Financial Plan as detailed
within Section 11 which is based upon the:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

Council’s request for a Capitalisation Direction of £150m covering financial years
2020/21 to 2023/24.

A 1.99% increase in the Council Tax for Croydon Services (a level of increase
Central Government has assumed in all Councils’ spending power calculation).

A 3.00% increase in the Adult Social Care precept (a charge Central Government
has assumed all councils’ will levy in its spending power calculations).

To note the draft GLA increase of 9.5% on the Council Tax precept for 2021/22.

With reference to the principles for 2021/22 determined by the Secretary of State
under Section52ZC (1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended)
confirm that in accordance with s.52ZB (1) the Council Tax and GLA precept referred
to above are not excessive in terms of the most recently issued principles and as
such to note that no referendum is required. This is detailed further in section 3.8 of
this report.

The calculation of budget requirement and council tax as set out in Appendix C and
D including the GLA increase this will result in a total increase of 5.83% in the overall
council tax bill for Croydon.

The revenue budget assumptions as detailed in this report and the associated
appendices

The programme of revenue savings, income and growth by department for Financial
Years 2021/22 to 2023/24 (Appendix A).

The Capital Programme as set out in Section 18, table 17 and 18 of this report,
except where noted for specific programmes are subject to separate Cabinet reports.

To agree that in light of the impact on the Council's revenue budget no Capital
contractual commitment should be entered into until a review of revenue affordability
has been concluded.

To approve that any receipts that come from the Council’s Housing company Brick
by Brick will first be applied to the accrued interest and any subsequent receipts will
be used to pay down the principle loan balance.

Page 6




1.12.

1.13.

To note there are no proposed amendments to the Council’s existing Council Tax
Support Scheme for the financial year 2021/22.

The adoption of the Pay Policy statement at Appendix G

That Cabinet agree:

1.14.
1.15.

1.16.

The Housing Revenue Account’s 2021/22 Budget as detailed within section 19

A rent increase for all Council tenants for 2020/21, in line with the Government’s
social rent policy which has legislated to increase social rents by CPI + 1%, which is
equal to 1.5%

2% increase to the service charges for caretaking, grounds maintenance and bulk
refuse collection as detailed in section 12.

That Cabinet note:

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

1.21.

That in respect of the Council’s public sector equalities duties where the setting of
the capital, revenue and HRA budget result in new policies or policy change the
relevant service department will carry out an equality impact assessment to secure
delivery of that duty including such consultation as may be required.

The progress being made towards balancing the Council’s financial position for
2020/21 as at Quarter 3 and the current projected outturn forecast of £64.7m as set
out in the Budget Monitoring report as part of this Cabinet in Agenda Item 5b and
also attached in Appendix H.

The response to the provisional local government settlement which is attached at
Appendix E.

That pre-decision scrutiny of the proposed budget 2020/21 took place at the Scrutiny
and Overview Committee on the 10th February 2020. The Scrutiny and Overview
Committee agreed to recommend that the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Resources be invited to attend a meeting of the Committee and provide an update
on the bedding in of the Council’s new financial monitoring systems in September
2020.

The statement on reserves and balances and robustness of estimates from the
statutory Section 151 Officer.

2.0

2.1

Executive Summary

This report sets out the Council’s 2021/22 Budget and the indicative
position for following 2 years. This budget has been set on the backdrop
of one of the most difficult years financially for the Council and Local
Government as a whole. This report expands on challenges faced by the
Council in setting a balanced budget for the financial year 2021/22, and

Page 7




2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.0

3.1

gives an update on the key issues from the Spending Review presented
by the Chancellor of the Exchequer on 25" November 2020.

This report also provides further details on challenges faced by Croydon
Council in terms of its continued financial pressures and resources
available to deliver the key services for the authority.

The report also provides details on the current financial and economic
environment in which the Council is operating, impacted significantly by
Covid, and together with the local policy context set out an approach to
identifying savings.

The Council started the year with significantly low reserve levels and
began the financial year with the nation forced into lockdown due to the
Covid-19 pandemic. With rising costs and increased demand for services,
the Council’s finances had become increasingly precarious in recent
years. However, Covid-19 and its impact on Council’s budgets, in
particular the ability to introduce planned savings meant the Council was
unable to, cover its costs from reserves and was therefore forced to issue
a Section 114 (S114) notice under the Local Government Finance Act
1988.

During the Covid-19 pandemic the Council has experienced significant
financial pressures across all its services. From increased support and
care to the most vulnerable in the community and provision of additional
services to significant risks to income sources such as parking income.
This has meant that the Council has faced a two sided impact from
increased costs and reduced income.

The demand for children and adult social care has always been large
within Croydon and with the additional need to safeguard these groups in
our community has resulted in further resource pressures, this is not a
specific Croydon issue. With growing numbers of both young and older
residents, and other demographic changes, Croydon is affected by these
national issues more than most.

As a Council facing financial challenges Croydon is certainly not alone,
but many of the issues impacting its finances are unique to the borough.

Croydon is one of the capital’s largest boroughs by population and,
although situated in outer London, it has over time inherited a raft of
traditionally Inner London issues that impact its budget but this has not
been reflected in changes to Central Government financial support. Which
have not been significantly revised to reflect changes in need.

Covid-19 Pandemic

Covid -19 has had a profound impact on the Council’s finances. Financial
pressures have arisen as a result of additional costs, lost income and
unachieved delivery of savings. The pandemic has required the Council to
divert resources to deliver some of the most urgent services to the most
vulnerable in the Community and this has resulted in less staff time being
dedicated to some of the key efficiency deliveries that had been required.

Page 8



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Council has faced significant pressures within its Adult Social Care
and Children Social Care departments as the services needed to ensure
older people and vulnerable children are effectively safeguarded. The
Council has lost significant income in various key services such as parking
income, planning and through various fees and charges due to reduced
activities and demand during the past 11 months.

Whilst MHCLG has provided further grant funding in order to tackle the
extra costs and loss of income, the funding provided has not been
sufficient to cover all Covid-related pressures the Council has faced. As
a direct consequence of Covid, as at the end of January the Council has
faced additional expenditure pressures of £39.76m, lost income of £28.7m
and unachieved savings of £10.87m, however until end of December had
only received £32.9m in funding from Government. This creates a
£46.34m pressure directly attributed towards Covid.

The Council has administered significant number of other initiatives
introduced by the Government to support the community during the
pandemic. Table below details additional work the Council took on during
the pandemic and also details the grants the Council received to support
those initiatives.

Table 1: Covid Grants

Service Specific Covid Grants £m

Infection control fund for adult social care (tranche 1) 8.075
Test and Trace 1.998
Welfare support grant 0.447
Next Steps Accommodation Programme 0.635
Test and trace support grants 0.338
LA compliance & Enforcement grant 0.218
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Support Grant 0.195
Covid Winter Grant 1.199
Cold Weather Payment (housing) 0.050
Contain Outbreak Management Fund 3.094
Estimated S.31 grants paid in advance 7.017
Business Grants Fund 49.525
Cashflow measures 14.474
C-19 Business Rates reliefs 56.831
Discretionary Business Grants Fund 3.029
Reopening High Streets Safely 0.342
Additional Restrictions Grant. 7.734
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) addendum 5.846
Cold Weather Payment (housing) 0.050
Hardship Fund 4.388
Total 165.485

The Covid pandemic has created significant uncertainty on Local Authority
Finances going forward as it casts doubt in regards to future activity and
public behaviour in terms of demand for services and in particular income
from the use of facilities. Whilst it’s difficult to predict what that change will
be this will need to be closely monitored by the Council across a range of

Page 9



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

services to ensure risks are flagged early on and to find mitigations where
possible.

Financial Performance Quarter 3 2020/21

As at month 9/Quarter 3 the general fund revenue outturn forecast stood
at £64.7m overspend, which was after the inclusion of both anticipated
and received Covid19 funding from the MHCLG of £41.9m.

To note that there are a number of risks totalling £31.8m that could
materialise which would see the variance increase further. These are
within services due to the current pandemic, potential impact from
finalisation of the 2019/20 accounts and in relation to groups structures
particularly around interest income from Brick by Brick. Should all of these
risks crystalize the total forecast overspend would increase to £96.5m by
the year end.

The Council has requested a capitalisation directive to cover the deficit for
the current year, this is part of an overall request for £150 million, at the
time of publication no decision has been made on this request.

S114 Notice

In November 2020 with a substantial increase in the projected outturn for
20/21 and lack of progress on cost reductions and efficiencies the S151
Officer issued a Section 114 notice, as it was clear that the council could
not meet its forecast expenditure for 2021/22 within its available revenue
resources including reserves.

Councils are required by law both to set a balanced budget, but to also
ensure that expenditure can be funded from revenue resources. If a
council can’t find a way to finance their expenditure a section 114 must be
issued, as effectively expenditure becomes unlawful.

The notice has had the effect of the council stopping all non-essential
spending — and cannot enter into new agreements which will incur a
cost. A Spend Control Panel was set up to oversee expenditure taking
place within the council.

The Council continued to ensure that essential services were maintained

particularly to those community members who were vulnerable and that

included the ongoing response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The following

criteria was applied when allowing spend to take place:

« existing staff and payroll costs,

e expenditure on goods and services which have already been
received

o expenditure required to deliver the council’s statutory services at a
minimum possible level

e urgent expenditure to safeguard vulnerable residents

» contractually committed expenditure

« expenditure through ring fenced grants

Page 10



5.5

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

71

7.2

o expenditure that will improve the council’s financial situation — that is
necessary to reduce overall costs.

Within 21 days of issuing a S114 notice the council is required to decide
whether it agrees with the views in the report and what action if any it
proposes to take. If the expenditure cannot be met from revenue
resources it must then issue another notice. On 2" December a second
S114 notice was issued and the Council has continued to remain ina S114
since.

RIPI

On 23" October 2020, before the issuance of the S114 notice, the
Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton, issued a Report in Public
Interest. The report detailed concerning the Council’s financial position
and related governance arrangements.

The Report was published as the external auditor were of the opinion that
the Council:

i. Had experienced deteriorating financial resilience for a number of
years
ii. Had significant issues relating to its financial sustainability
iii. Had not responded promptly to previous audit recommendations
and concerns
iv.  And that this needed to be brought formally to the public’s
attention

The council has taken these serious recommendations onboard and is
proactively looking at addressing the auditor’s concerns. In fact this
MTFS and the 21/22 Budget transparently deals with all known
pressures the council has faced and had ensured these are provided for
within the overall growth requests.

Renewal Plan

With the move to a S114 being enacted and further scrutiny being
provided by our Auditors through the Report in Public Interest, it is evident
that the council will need to embark on a significant financial improvement
initiative.

In addition to the S114 and the RIPI, the council has had significant
scrutiny and oversight various other stakeholders and groups. This has
included from the internally set Financial Review Panel to the Rapid
Review that was conducted by MHCLG. There are currently around 400
recommendations and actions already developed from different plans and
there will be further output for incorporation into existing plans. Some of
the recommendations and actions are likely to be cross-cutting, many may
duplicate each other and the council will need to use best practice
frameworks and recognised programme management methodology to
track progress and reporting.

Page 11



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The renewal plan is a big change programme for the council, which sets
outhow we will respond to the financial challenges and wider
improvement asks — whilst making sure that priority services are delivered
effectively, sustainably and within our financial means.

The Renewal Plan is made up of the Financial Recovery Plan which will
set out how we’ll deliver a sustainable budget in the medium term
and a Corporate Improvement Plan to deliver the required changes.
Different strands of work within the renewal plan will include:
e New priorities and ways of working
Improvements to governance and leadership practice
Improvements to management practice
Service improvements to manage demand and cost
A new system of internal control - finance, performance
and risk
A new approach to involving residents and partners
e A new engagement and involvement programme with staff to
create a working environment that values all our staff
e A new approach to ensuring respect for all and equity of
opportunity for our staff
e A review of the member and officer code of conduct to fully
embed the Nolan Principles in all work.

The Renewal plan was presented to Cabinet in 25" November 2020 and
was endorsed by Cabinet colleagues. It was then presented to Council on
30t November. Work is currently underway to ensure our objectives within
the Renewal plans are being implemented and that the Council begins to
deliver a financially sustainable MTFS by 2023/24.

One of the fundamental reviews the Council is in relation to its Housing
Company, Brick by Brick. The Cabinet at its meeting on 25" November
2020, received a report on a strategic review by PwC of the Council’s
group of companies and other entities.

As a result of that review a number of specific recommendations were
made concerning Brick by Brick.

These were to:

i) Authorise the initial further work required on the options
identified by PWC regarding the Council’s interest in BBB in
order to best inform further consideration and decision at the
January Cabinet meeting.

i) Agree that funding of BBB shall continue in line with current
loan arrangements and conditions subject to that further
decision, provided that all funding for construction, and
completed unit purchases be reviewed on a site by site basis.

iii) Agree that all site transfers to BBB, be halted until the Council
has completed the options appraisal and taken a final decision
on the options.

The Council has also received and agreed a number of recommendations
regarding Brick by Brick in the Report in the Public Interest report by Grant

Page 12



7.8

7.9

7.10

8.0

8.1

8.2

Thornton. In particular that report contained four specific
recommendations regarding the Council’s future relationship with Brick by
Brick. These were:

i) The Cabinet and Council should reconsider the financial
business case for continuing to invest in Brick by Brick
before agreeing any further borrowing.

i) The Cabinet and Council should review and reconsider
the ongoing financial rationale for the Council in the
equity investment arrangement with Brick by Brick.

iii) The s151 officer and monitoring officer should monitor
compliance with loan covenants with Brick by Brick and
report any breaches to Members.

iv) The Cabinet and Council should review its arrangements
to govern its interest in subsidiaries, how the subsidiaries
are linked, and the long-term impact of the subsidiaries
on the Council’s financial position and how the Council’s
and taxpayers interest is safeguarded.

Since the Cabinet meeting on 25th November the Council has carried out
a second stage review of the options available to the Council to reduce
the financial exposure with Brick by Brick. A report was presented to
Cabinet on 18th February 2021 which detailed the next steps.

From a financial perspective the 18th February report considered various
proposals in regards to future operations of Brick by Brick. The
recommended course of action involves allowing Brick by Brick to continue
building out schemes at an advanced stage, reviewing sites no longer
proposed for development, disposing of sites at intermediate stage or sell
the shares of the Company.

At the point of writing this report the actions of the second stage review
were at the early stages of being worked through. At the Cabinet meeting
it was recommended that, with any option, there will be further
costs/resourcing (in particular the sale of the business option, in order to
ensure the proper advice is obtained regarding valuation, legal and
financial implications) and some write off of the Council’s investment (as
further explained in the restricted report) is likely. These risks are factored
within the 21/22 Budget.

Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 - Nationally

The 2021/22 local government finance settlement is for one year only and
is based on the Spending Review 2020 (SR20) funding levels. Within
Spending Round 2020, information regarding 2021/22 funding allocations
was provided. The provisional settlement confirms these previous
announcements; the main points of which are set out below:

Most of the proposals set out in Spending Review 2020 have been
confirmed.

Page 13



8.3

8.4

Core Spending Power (CSP) will increase by £2.2 billion (4.5 per cent)
nationally and £311 million (4.3 per cent) across London boroughs.
Settlement Funding Assessment will increase by £13 million (0.1 per cent)
and £3 million for London boroughs.

. The main tax referendum principle remains at 2 per cent.

. The flexibility to raise the Social Care Precept will be increased to
3 per cent for relevant authorities.

. The Improved Better Care Fund will remain at 2020/21 levels (the

England total will be nearly £2.1 billion, of which London boroughs
will receive £336 million).

. The Social Care Grant will increase by £300 million to £1.71 billion
(as set out in SR20) London boroughs will receive £223 million of
this (an increase of 24 per cent).

. Funding for New Home Bonus will decrease by over £285 million
(31% per cent) nationally from £907 million to £622 million. London
boroughs will receive £185 million of this, a decrease of £60 million
(32 per cent).

. Business Rates Multiplier Compensation will increase by 30 per
cent from £500 million to £650 million nationally. London boroughs
will receive £115 million in 2021/22.

. There is a new Lower Tier Services Grant of £111 million within
CSP (£24 million for London boroughs).
. Allocations have not yet been published for the Public Health Grant,

Flexible Homelessness Support Grant, Homelessness Reduction
Grant, Rough Sleeping Initiative Fund and the Independent Living

Fund.

. £125 million was announced to implement the Domestic Abuse Bill
(although allocations are TBC)

. A consultative paper has been published setting out further details

on Covid-19 funding, including the £1.55 billion of further general
funding in 2021/22 (£274 million to London boroughs), and seeking
views on how the £670 million of CT Support funding, 75 per cent
tax compensation scheme and continued SF&C compensation
scheme will be calculated.

Core Spending Power - Overall

The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to
2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below. As previously announced at
Spending Review 2020, it shows an increase

The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to
2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below. It shows an in year increase of
4.21% for 2021/22 and an overall of 4.5% for 2021/22 and an overall
change for the period 2015/16 to 2021/22 of 14.7m.

Page 14



Table 2: Core Spending Power figures for England 2015/16 to 2020/21

2019- 2020- 2021-
2016-17 201718 2018-19 20 21 29
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Settlement Funding
Assessment 18,602 16,633 | 15,574 | 14,560 | 14,797 | 14,810
Under-indexing the BR
multiplier 165 175 275 400 500 650
Council Tax 23,247 24666 | 26,332 | 27,768 | 29,370 | 31,145
Improved Better Care
Fund - 1,115 1,499 1,837 2,077 | 2,077
91
New Homes Bonus 1,462 1,227 947 8 907 622
New Homes Bonus
returned funding 23 25 - - - -
Rural Services
Delivery Grant 81 65 81 81 81 85
Transition Grant 150 150 - - - -
Adult Social Care
Support Grant - 241 150 - - -
Winter Pressures 24
Grant - - 240 0 - -
Social Care Support 41
Grant - - - 0 1,410 1,710
Lower Tier Services
Grants 111
Core Spending
Power 43,730 44,296 | 45,098 | 46,213 | 49,142 | 51,210
Change % -2.10% 1.29% 1.81% | 2.47% | 6.34% | 4.21%
14.65
Cumulative Change % -2.10% -0.83% 0.96% | 3.46% | 10.02% %
Real Terms Change % -4.00% -2.50% | -1.40% | 0.10% | 3.10% | 3.10%
Cumulative Real
Terms Change % -4.00% -6.40% | -7.80% | -7.70% | -4.80% | -4.80%

Core Spending Power: Excluding Council Tax

8.5 Graph 1 below shows the level of central government funding to local
government between 2015/16 and 2020/21 excluding Council Tax. It

shows a reduction of £2.8bn from £22.6bn to £19.8bn, a reduction of 13%.

Page 15



Graph 1 — Local Government Funding 2015/16 to 2020/21

25,000
22,631

2015-16

20,482

2016-17

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

9.0

9.1

18,676

2017-18

2018-19

18,446

2019-20

19,772

2020-21

20,065

2021-22

Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 Croydon

The published Core Spending Power (CSP) figures for Croydon are shown

in the table below. Croydon’s CSP for 2021/22 is £319.4m, an increase of
£10.7m on the 2020/21 amount. However, it should be remembered that
the CSP figures for the Settlement Funding Assessment and Council Tax
are Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
forecast amounts only; with actual resources determined by the amount of
business rates and council tax collected locally.

Table 3 Croydon’s Funding Allocations 2016/17 to 2020/21

2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Settlement Funding Assessment 114.6 101.7 94.5 86.8 88.2 88.2
gt‘ggrm'zﬁﬁ)’l‘l'gf the business 1 1 1.6 2.4 3 3.9
Council Tax 143.5 155.1 167.4 180 193.1 208.49
Improved Better Care Fund - 5.5 71 8.3 9.7 9.7
New Homes Bonus 11.8 8.5 6.3 6.7 7.3 5.2
][\llji\gi:gomes Bonus returned 0.2 0.2 ) ) i
Transition Grant 0.4 0.4 - - -
'(I';r:gn:?dult Social Care Support i 14 0.9 i i
Winter pressures Grant - - 1.4 1.4 -
Social Care Support Grant - - - 2.4 7.4 7.8
Core Spending Power 271.5 273.8 279.2 288 308.7 323.9
Population 386,700 | 390,100 [ 393,600 | 397,000 [ 400,200 | 400,200
Core Spending Power Per Head 702 702 709 725 771 809

Page 16




9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Table 3 shows an increase in funding for Croydon over 2016/17 to 2021/22
of £51.8m in cash terms or 15.2%. However, it is important to note that
this includes forecast increased council tax revenues over the period of
£64.9m. Excluding Council Tax revenues sees a cash reduction in funding
over the period of £12.5m. Further details of each funding stream included
within Croydon’s Core Spending Power and the extent to which the
MHCLG's figures are relevant to Croydon is discussed below.

New Homes Bonus

Croydon’s New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocation for 2021/22 is £5.2m, as
shown in table 4 below. This is comprised of £3.6m legacy payments from
previous years and an in-year payment of £1.6m.

Table 4 Croydon’s NHB Forecast Funding Allocations 2019/20 to
2022/23

2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23*
£m £m £m £m

2016/17 allocation 2.1 0 0 0
2017/18 allocation 1 1 0 0
2018/19 allocation 1.8 1.8 1.8 0
2019/20 allocation 1.8 1.8 1.8 0
2020/21 allocation 0 2.7 1.6 1.6
No future years' allocations forecast 0 0 0 0
Equals NHB Funding (Em) 6.7 7.3 5.2 1.6

*projected

Social Care Grants

The Social Care Support Grant will increase by £300 million to £1.71 billion
(as set out in SR20) London boroughs will receive £223 million of this (an
increase of 24 per cent). For Croydon this is an increase in funding of
£0.4m, from £7.4m in 2020/21 to £7.8m in 2021/22.

Homelessness Funding/Homelessness Prevention Grant

The £310m Homelessness Prevention Grant combines and uplifts what
was previously the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant and
Homelessness Reduction Grant. For 2021-22 both grants have been
combined and uplifted by £47m. In 2021/22 Croydon will receive £7.4m
an increase of £2.2m over 2020/21

Public Health Grant

From 1 April 2013 the responsibility for the management of Public Health
(PH) services in the borough transferred to the Council from the NHS. This
brought about a range of new responsibilities including providing
PH advice to Croydon CCG, tackling smoking, alcohol misuse and
obesity, sexual health services, health inequalities and substance misuse
including in-patient care. Additional funding was received in 2016/17 for
the transfer to the Council of new responsibilities from NHS England for
Health Improvements 0-5 years which took place on 1t October 2015.

Page 17




9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.1

9.12

10

10.1

10.2

The ring-fenced grant is used to commission a range of mandated service
from external and internal provider's e.g. Health visiting, Substance
misuse services, sexual health services etc. as well as providing
resources for services within Croydon council that improve the health and
wellbeing of the people in Croydon.

A review of the services that are commissioned as well as a detailed
review of the resources that are provided for services within the Council
was carried out during 2019/20 to ensure that the funding is utilised in the
most effective manner and delivers on public health outcomes.

Funding for 2021/22 remains unconfirmed at the time of writing this report.
Flat funding should be expected until allocations confirmed by Public
Health England in Feb 21/22. In 2020/21 Public Health Grant was £21.8m.

Croydon’s response to the Provisional Local Finance Settlement for
2021/22 is included as Appendix E to this report.

Local Taxation & GLA Taxation

The Council has a duty under the Local Government Finance Act 2003 to
set a balanced budget before 11th March 2021. This report supports the
enablement of that duty to be fulfilled, subject to agreement of the
recommendations in this report by Full Council on the 8th March 2021.

It is recommended that there is a 1.99% increase in council tax for the
Croydon element of the charge and a 3.00% increase based on the Adult
Social Care Precept as set by the Chancellor. The GLA are proposing a
9.5% increase in their element of the charge and that is due to be agreed
by the GLA on the 24" February 2021. The overall headline increase is
5.83%. The effect of this increase on Band D is set out in table 5 below.

Table 5 — Local Taxation & GLA Taxation increase (Band D
comparison)

Band D 202122 | Increase | Annual | Weekly
Increase | Increase
£ % £ £
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
Adult Social Care
Precept 170.47 3.00% 43.56 0.84
Greater London Authority 363.66 9.50% 31.59 0.61
Total 1,888.15 5.83% 104.05 2.00

Wider Local Government Funding Issues

A summary of wider local government funding issues is set out below.

The Council was part of the 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 London
Business Rates Pool. 2020/21 will be the final year of the pool as councils

Page 18



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

in London have decided to discontinue the pool due to the volatility in
business rates following the pandemic and possible reduction in business
rates income. Therefore, Councils will return to the usual business rates
shares for 2021/22 which will be 30% for Croydon, 37% for the GLA and
33% for Central Government.

Levy/Safety Account - As would perhaps be expected, given the level of
uncertainty regarding 2020/21 business rates income, there was no
announcement regarding the allocation of potential funds from the BRR
levy/safety net account.

Local Government Funding Reforms - There were no additional papers
published or mentioned relating to the local government funding reforms
that are planned for introduction from April 2021 (i.e. Fair Funding, 75%
Business Rates Retention, the full reset of the business rates baselines or
the potential Alternative Business Rates Retention System).

COVID-19 Support - Further details have been published regarding the
support for local authorities in 2021/22 for COVID-19. These are in the
form of a policy paper that can be found by clicking here. This funding is
not included in the Core Spending Power figures. The paper covers the
following areas.

£1.55bn Grant Funding - Details of the additional £1.55bn of COVID
funding for 2021/22 is available here. This will represent un-ringfenced
grant support and uses the COVID-RNF developed in July 2020 and
applied to the third tranche of funding announced in July (and
retrospectively all four tranches in October 2020). MHCLG has indicated
that they are aiming to make payments to local authorities in April 2021.

£0.67bn local council tax support grant - The government has indicated
that it is providing this to broadly meet the additional costs associated with
increases in local council tax support caseloads in 2021/22. The funding
will be un-ringfenced and can be used to provide other support to
vulnerable households, including through local welfare schemes.

MHCLG are proposing to distribute the £670m of grant funding based on
working-age Local Council Tax Support caseloads in each billing
authority’s area, using data from quarter 1 and quarter 2 of 2020/21. They
are also proposing to adjust this distribution, based on the ratio of the
average bill per dwelling in the billing authority’s area in 2020/21,
compared to the average bill per dwelling in England in 2020/21. Using
this distribution methodology, MHCLG hope to be in a position to make
up-front lump sum section 31 payments directly to billing and major
precepting authorities in April 2021. The funding allocations have not been
published today, but MHCLG indicate that details of the provisional
funding allocations will be published in due course.

Local tax income guarantee for 2020/21 (i.e. business rates and council
tax deficits) - The government has also announced, as part of a
consultative policy paper, the details of its proposed scheme for
compensating for irrecoverable local taxation losses.

Sale, Fees and Charges Support MHCLG - are seeking views to continue

Page 19


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-emergency-funding-for-local-government/covid-19-funding-for-local-government-in-2021-22-consultative-policy-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-emergency-funding-for-local-government/covid-19-funding-for-local-government-in-2021-22-consultative-policy-paper

10.11

11

111

11.2

11.3

11.4

the current support for the first quarter of 2021/22 and continue to use
2020/21 budgeted income as the baseline to assess losses.

Other - MHCLG are proposing to continue (a more streamlined) COVID-
19 financial impact survey and are also seeking views on priority areas for
data collection going forward

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

The Council last updated its Medium Term Financial Strategy [MTFS] and
presented those plans to Council in October 2018. Best practice, set out
in the CIPFA Financial Management Code, requires a three year MTFS to
be prepared each year alongside the annual budget setting process to
recognise future budget pressures and to allow planning for meeting
identified pressures to be made in sufficient time to meet those challenges.
This budget report meets those requirements by consideration of a three
year position rather than just the following single year.

Work in refreshing the three year MTFS planning horizon from that
previously agreed in October 2018 began at the start of summer 2020.
Improvements to the process have included:

a) planning for three years instead of a single year;

b) the development of revenue proposal forms which include
consideration not just the financial impact, but risks, impact on
stakeholders and key milestones required for delivery, and budget
holder sign-off;

c) budget challenge sessions in both officer only and officer/member
sessions;

d) comparison of spending requirements and income generating
budgets to benchmarking data across similar authorities;

e) external review of significant budgets and change proposals by
external bodies including the LGA, CIPFA and PWC; and

f) the implementation of a monitoring process and system to
continuously track the progress of savings proposals delivery across
the Council, to be regularly reported to and reviewed by Corporate
Leadership Team and members.

The outcome of the budget setting and MTFS processes undertaken over
the last nine months has, subject to confirmation of the requested
capitalisation direction support from MHCLG, delivered a balanced budget
for 2021/22. Delivery of savings, the management of risk, and control of
expenditure to live within proposed budgets set out throughout this report
will be required to ensure that net overspends over next year’s budget
period are managed and mitigated.

The medium term (years 2022/23 and 2023/24) budget positions set out
in this MTFS are predicated on central government support in relation to

Page 20



11.5

12.0

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

Revenue Support Grant and Localised Business Rates remaining broadly
unchanged except for inflationary increases and anticipated movements
in taxbase. Deferred by ministers due to the covid-19 pandemic are
proposals to review the operation of the local government funding regime
and policy changes with regard to a Fair Funding Review, operation of the
Localised Business Rates system; and a business property revaluation
exercise are expected over the following years. The MTFS recognises
these potential changes but assumes that whilst such individual funding
streams may vary, the overall level of core funding will remain broadly
neutral.

The Budget and MTFS position set out in this report provides a balanced
budget position for 2021/22, but over the longer term sees further
efficiencies that will need to be developed to balance future years (with or
without further capitalisation direction requests) for which MHCLG have
indicated they are unable to determine at this date as those years fall
outside of the current Spending Review period. In order to provide
sufficient time for such proposals to be developed and implemented, work
will begin on refreshing the MTFS in the near future.

Corporate Assumptions - 2021/21 budget

Grants

As set out in section 2 of the draft settlement. There has been a number
of changes in grant income that have to be taken into account in the
2021/22 budget.

Inflation

The budget for 2021/22 needs to take account of changes in the cost of
living/inflation. A pay award of at least 2% for all staff has been assumed,
although the unions have put in a substantially higher claim. Additionally
a number of council contracts are subject to indexation each year. The
MTFS has provided for £10.4m for contractual and pay inflation and this
needs to be managed within the Council’s overall budget. The overall
increase in the budget for inflation for both the pay award and inflation will
be held corporately and will then be allocated out to departments in year.

The council’s capital programme assumes the taking out of new borrowing
to fund projects that require debt. The assumption overall is that there will
be borrowing of circa £60.4m in 2021/22 and an additional amount of
£0.87m has been added to the revenue budget to fund the associated
interest payments.

London Business Rates Pilot / Pool

Under the Localised Business Rates system, the council ordinarily retains
30% of the business rates collected from business premises within the
borough and as such benefits from any growth above baseline funding
levels. The Greater London Authority retaining 37% and the remaining
33% being returned to central government.

Pilot status was awarded to London boroughs, who collectively formed a
business rates pool, in 2018/19 and 2019/20 which reduced the amount

Page 21



12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

of growth returned to MHCLG to 0% and then 25% in the two years
respectively. This pilot status was withdrawn by central government for the
current financial year and reduced the collective amount of benefit from
business rate growth that was retained by London boroughs. That said,
London boroughs continued to operate pooling arrangements in 2020/21
as, despite no benefit being derived from MHCLG receiving a smaller
share, the pooling of Levy and Safety Net positions was forecast to deliver
an overall benefit for London Boroughs.

The coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the business
environment across London and as a consequence total yield across the
region is expected and forecast to reduce as a result of business failure
and significant levels of appeals of rateable value due to material change
in circumstances. The result of these changes has been to erode the
potential benefit for London borough’s to continue pooling and it has
collectively been decided that a pool will not operate for the year 2021/22.

The 2020/21 budget for the Council assumed a pooling benefit of £0.5m,
which is unlikely to now materialise as a result of the changes to the
economic environment, but will be subject to final clarification pending
completion of all London borough business rate accounts returns in May
2021. This reduction in previously estimated gains from pooling is
reflected in both the current year forecast outturn position and built into
MTFS assumptions.

Settlement Funding Assessment per head across London

Table 6 below shows the Settlement Funding Assessment per head for
each London Borough (excluding the City of London) and shows Croydon
ranked as 21st, receiving £237 per head in 2021/22, whereas
neighbouring Lambeth will receive £447 per head. If Croydon were funded
at the London average of £382 per head for 2021/22 it would receive an
additional £56m.

Croydon has an average of £237 per head over the five year period; this
compares to the London average of £382.

Page 22



Table 6 — Settlement Funding Assessment per head

(£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (1-33)

201718 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | Average | Rank
SFA (£ PER RESIDENT)
City of London 2803.19 | 2707.54 | 2592.05 | 2615.05 | 2600.16 | 2663.60 1
Hackney 567.10 | 536.71 | 504.16 | 507.58 | 503.94 523.90 2
Southwark 523.22 | 493.58 | 462.34 | 465.95| 463.12 481.64 3
Westminster 511.39 | 480.89 | 449.06 | 450.44 | 445.98 467.55 4
Islington 503.61 | 473.29 | 44153 | 445.02 | 442.46 461.18 5
Tower Hamlets 497.65 | 464.45| 430.64 | 429.71| 423.30 449.15 6
Lambeth 483.89 | 457.53 | 429.06 | 434.19| 433.14 447.56 7
Camden 482.60 | 448.27 | 413.31 | 414.34 | 409.95 433.69 8
Hammersmith And Fulham 470.61 | 44240 | 412.25| 41559 | 413.22 430.81 9
Newham 455.88 | 431.84 | 406.39 | 409.86 | 407.84 422.36 10
Kensington And Chelsea 458.10 | 428.82 | 395.73 | 402.21| 402.62 417.49 11
Lewisham 444.82 | 419.60 | 392.68 | 396.21 | 394.11 409.49 12
Haringey 42552 | 401.98| 376.18 | 381.46| 381.12 393.25 13
Greenwich 417.07 | 392.27 | 366.25| 368.46 | 365.53 381.92 14
Barking And Dagenham 389.83 | 369.19| 347.05| 350.81 | 349.67 361.31 15
Brent 378.43 | 356.01 | 332.13| 335.69 | 334.53 347.35 16
Waltham Forest 357.71 | 335.72 | 312.27 | 315.65| 314.59 327.19 17
Wandsworth 324.79 | 307.37 | 288.59 | 291.47 | 290.26 300.50 18
Ealing 31292 | 293.84 | 272.88 | 277.72 | 278.40 287.15 19
Enfield 309.43 | 290.04 | 269.06 | 272.82| 272.59 282.79 20
Croydon 263.98 | 244.57 | 223.78 | 226.72 | 226.27 237.07 21
Hounslow 250.42 | 232.06| 212.50 | 215.25| 214.89 225.02 22
Sutton 248.57 | 22743 | 20517 | 207.35| 206.49 219.00 23
Redbridge 240.67 | 223.74| 205.56 | 208.34 | 207.99 217.26 24
Merton 23544 | 216.50 | 196.00 | 198.99 | 198.95 209.18 25
Hillingdon 208.68 | 190.56 | 171.73 | 17351 | 172.78 183.45 26
Harrow 200.16 | 181.68| 161.91| 164.32| 164.19 174.45 27
Barnet 199.57 | 180.21| 160.07 | 161.32 | 160.19 172.27 28
Bexley 194.04 | 176.24| 157.51 | 159.33 | 158.67 169.16 29
Havering 172.82 | 154.23 | 135.08| 136.25| 135.32 146.74 30
Kingston upon Thames 148.90 | 128.89 | 122.16 | 12348 | 122.90 129.27 31
Bromley 141.30 | 12424 | 11314 | 11434 | 113.74 121.35 32
Richmond upon Thames 124.60 | 109.73 | 111.71| 11299 | 112.52 114.31 33
13 Department Assumptions 2021/22 budget
13.1 Alongside the corporate assumptions that underpin the 2021/22 budget,

work has been ongoing to ensure that departmental and service estimates
are accurate. This is the key element of the budget where movement in
resources between services can be identified. This reflects growth,
savings and income. Appendix A sets out the detailed list of growth,
savings and options across the four departments of the council. Table 7
below shows the movements within departments and at a corporate level
from 2020/21 to 2021/22.

Page 23




Table 7 — Cash Limit Movement

ez Other Capitalisation Ceen
Department Limits Growth | Savings Movements Direction Limits

20/21 21/22

£M £M £M £M £M
Children, Families
and Education 86.892 | 20.433 -9.433 -0.282 0.000 97.610
Health, Wellbeing
and Adults 121.177 | 29.251 | -17.494 0.000 0.000 132.934
Place 45.766 | 10.102 | -12.759 -0.186 0.000 42.923
Resources 37.682 | 13.585 -4.982 0.468 0.000 46.753
Service Total 291.517 | 73.371 | -44.668 0.000 0.000 320.220
Corporate Items -291.517 | 26.879 -5.582 0.000 -50.000 | -320.220

13.2

14

141

14.2

14.3

The projected department overspend in 2020/21 is £96.5m which includes
all risks. The main areas of overspend are from demand led services, loss
of income and unachievable savings as a result of the pandemic. Details
of this can be found within the 20/21 Q3 Financial Performance Report
which is a separate item on this Agenda.

Croydon Services
Children, Families and Education including UASC

Croydon’s Children’s Services were rated as good in February 2020, an
outcome achieved through the successful implementation and deliver of
the Children’s Services Improvement Pan accompanied by significant
additional resources allocated as part of the 2018/19 and 2019/20
Children’s Social Care budgets in addition to one-off investment funding
via the Council’s Transformation Reserve.

2020/21 had been a year of consolidation of staffing requirements in the
department, whilst the LA has reviewed the strategic action to be taken to
ensure that there is sufficient accommodation for children and young
people with who are looked after and for those leaving care, the budget
allocation available for the current cohort of Croydon's looked after
children (excluding UASC), care leavers and children with disabilities is
insufficient to fund the accommodation required year on year. This
pressure is reflected in the Quarter 3 financial monitoring reported to
Cabinet.

In addition, the exceptional items reported to Cabinet in the Quarter 3
financial monitoring report relate to UASC, NRPF and Appeal Rights
Exhausted (ARE). We are continuing to engage in positive dialogue with
various government departments to mitigate this financial burden. As
stated, the UASC pressure is as a result of the number of UASC remaining
in Croydon, above the National Transfer Scheme rate of 0.07% of the
borough’s child population, together with the failure to recognise the
gateway authority-specific costs and the sheer number of former UASC

Page 24




14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

who have remained as care leavers until they reach the age of 25 years
old. Whilst our numbers of UASC are decreasing, direct and indirect
service provision costs are not decreasing at the same rate.

The Home Office increased the rates of reimbursement from April 2020 to
£240 per care leaver per week and £143 per child per night for those LAs
supporting UASC at, or in excess of, 0.07% of their child population, as at
31 March 2020.

The total 2020/21 forecast cost of Asylum seeking children and care
leavers for the Council is £5.3m and includes Children’s Social Care costs,
along with costs associated with education and health for these young
people. Modelling indicates that if the number of children and young
people in the council’s care remains the same the numbers will reduce to
0.07% by 2031-32. Until that time Croydon is accommodating asylum
seeking children and young people at an annual cost of between £5.4m -
£6.7m. Support from the Department for Education and the Home Office
is being sought to secure a solution that addresses the disproportionate
financial burden on Croydon council now and in future years.

Health, Wellbeing and Adults

Adult social care continues to be under pressure nationally and locally. In
Croydon, Adult Social Care has continued to see increases in demand for
services above budget and there is a projected net overspend as at Q3 of
£21.3m in 2020/21. Areas of significant overspend continues to be in 25-
65 Disability Service and Older People and following agreed in year
savings, overspends are £11.7m and £4.8m respectively. This is the result
of inherent pressures within the budget, additional costs due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, in addition to rising demand in Domiciliary Care, Nursing
and Residential placements where there is an increase in placement costs
and complex cases which are exacerbated by Covid-19. The service has
had a strong partnership with health during the pandemic. Ensuring that
people are moved efficiently from a hospital setting to the most appropriate
follow on care setting in the community.

On the advice of the Local Government Association (LGA) finance lead,
the council aims to set a revised budget to reflect current activity in Adult
Social Care. In 2021/22, £28.9m growth has been allocated to match
current demand and allow for in year demographic growth. The long term
impact of Covid -19 is currently unknown nationally and may adversely
impact social care expenditure in future years. To mitigate the increasing
costs in Adult Social Care, the council is committed to reducing spend by
changing the way social care is delivered and live within available
resources. The council is working with social work practice and finance
leads from the LGA and have accepted their view that Croydon’s spending
on younger and older adults is significantly higher than that of comparable
boroughs. Therefore, by reducing spend in line with the average level of
spending in London or England as appropriate, there is scope to make
significant savings in the medium term, following the budget being set at
the right level to match current activity. Savings and change programmes
are being developed with key LGA guidance taken into consideration.

Housing Assessment and Needs

Page 25



14.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

The number of households supported by the Emergency and Temporary
Accommodation teams has continued to rise. It is expected that the short
to medium term will see a further influx in numbers as the temporary hold
on evictions due to Covid-19 is lifted. Ring-fenced funding from MHCLG is
continuing in the form of the £7.2m Homelessness Prevention Grant,
replacing two previously issued grants. This grant will be split between
funding accommodation and prevention work to minimise numbers of
residents entering the service. The council is also working on reviewing
housing contracts, including supported housing, emergency
accommodation and temporary accommodation. This is expected to lead
to a new strategy for temporary accommodation, new routes to purchase
private sector housing and new contracts for the provision of supported
housing.

Place and Resources

The Place directorate continue to face challenging budgetary pressures
for 2020-21 as a result of Covid-19. The service is showing a reduced level
of income collection in the Parking division following government advice
for travel to be reduced to a minimum for most of the year. The reduced
level of transactions processed has impacted on the projected income
from parking.

The new Private Landlord Selective Licensing Scheme which was
supposed to be operative from October 2020 to mark the commencement
of the five year scheme for private landlords is not going ahead in 2020-
21. This is largely due to the delay in MHCLG approving the scheme to be
fully operational this financial year (2020-21). The service is looking into
strategies to mitigate overspends in year by aligning its workforce and
resources to the delivery of its objectives. In 2021-22, the budget for
Selective Licensing is amended to reflect a delay in the start of the scheme
to October 2021.

Corporate Budget

The corporate budget consists of the council’s central costs that are not
distinguishable across any specific Directorate.

The Corporate Budget provides for various strategic income and
expenditure items such as income from general Grants, Investment
income, Levies, minimum revenue provision and financing costs. The total
net Corporate Budget is £270.220m.

Savings and Growth

The full list of savings and income options included in the 2021/22 budget
are set out in Appendix A.

The Council has set up a Steering Board that will oversee the delivery of
these Savings over the course of 21/22. Each saving options has a
designated Project Manager (PM) and a Senior Responsible Officer
(SRO) who will be held accountable to deliver savings assigned to them.

Page 26



14.14

15

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

Table 8 below provides an indication of the savings and growth that has
been allocated to each Directorate.

Table 8 — Growth and Savings per Directorate

TOTAL
2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023124 | 504194
£m £m £m £m
Children, Families |Savings | -9.433| -4.694| -2.296 | -16.423
and Education Growth | 20.433 0.085| 0.077 | 20595
Health Wellbeing and | Savings | -17.494 | -10.745 | -9.505 | -37.744
Adults Growth | 29.251 6.919 | 6.880 | 43.049
Place Savings | -12.759 | -7.378 | -3.513 | -23.650
Growth | 10.102 0.800| 1.000| 11.902
Savings -4.982 -1.693 -1.277 -7.952

Resources
Growth | 13.585| -0.720| -0.863| 12.002

Local Taxation Charge for 2021/22

The council tax change for the Croydon element of the charge for 2021/22
is recommended to be 4.99% in accordance with Appendix D of the report.

This decision includes a 3.0% increase for the Government’s’ adult social
care precept that was approved as part of the Local Government Finance
Settlement. This is contained in Appendix C, with the Band D effect shown
in table 9 below.

Table 9 — Local Taxation for 2021/22

Band D 2021/22 | Increase II‘\‘;‘;‘;ZL I:Y:?::Isye
£ % £ £
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
Adult Social Care Precept 170.47 3.00% 43.56 0.84
Total 1,524.49 4.99% 72.46 1.39

Table 10 gives details of both the increases to the Croydon element of the
council tax and the Adult Social Care precept over the last 4 years and the
increase being recommended for 2021/22.

Table 10 — Croydon Council percentage increase since 2018/19

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Croydon Council 2.99% 2.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Percentage change
Adult Social Care 2% 1% 2% 3%
Precept

Alongside grant income, local taxation is the other major income stream

Page 27




that impacts on the budget setting of the council. The Collection Fund
accounts for taxation from Council Tax and Business rates. Further detail
can be found in Appendix B.

Council tax

15.5 Budgeted Council Tax revenues for 2020/21 are £193m and comprise
69% of the Council’'s overall Net Budget Requirement for this year of
£277m —the balance of funding being derived from localised business rate
income and Revenue Support Grant [RSG]. The charge for 2020/21 saw
a maximum increase of 3.99% (1.99% General Demand increase and
2.00% increase through an additional Adults Social Care Precept) that
was permitted and assumed in government’'s Core Spending Power
assessment of local government funding without breaching the general
level of increase that would have required a referendum to be held for the
increase. The Band D charge of £1,524.49 (excluding the GLA precept of
£363.66) is the fifth highest charge amongst London Boroughs.

15.6 Budget proposals set out in this report assume and recommend that the
Council Tax charge is increased in 2021/22 by the maximum allowed
under government regulations without triggering the need to hold a
referendum on the increase. For 2021/22 those limits are 1.99% General
Demand increase and 3.00% Social Care Precept — a total of 4.99%. Any
higher proposed increase would require a referendum to be held at the
Council’s expense, unless permission were sought from the Secretary of
State for a higher threshold for Croydon than currently set out in
regulations.

15.7 The 4.99% increase outlined in the paragraph above would see the annual
charge on a Band D property increase by £28.90 per year for the General
Demand whilst the Social Care Precept increase of 3.00% adds £43.56 —
collectively an increase of £72.46 and equivalent to £1.39 per week for a
Band D Council Tax payer. In addition, the GLA has proposed a 9.51%
increase for its General and Metropolitan Police charges. Collectively
these proposed increases would result in a total Band D charge of
£1,888.15 —anincrease of £104.05 (5.83%), equivalent to £2.00 per week
increase for a Band D household with two or more residents. The following
table illustrates the composition and the impact of the proposed changes
on each property banding.

Table 11: Change in Council Tax charge

| 2020/21 Charges [| 2021/22 Charges || weekly Change |
Band D General Social GLA Total General Social GLA Total

Band Ratio Demand Care Precept Charge Demand Care Precept Charge Croydon GLA
(£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s)

A 69ths  883.41 84.61 221.38 1,189.40  902.68  113.65 242.44 1,258.77 0.93 0.41
B 79ths 1,030.65 98.71  258.28 1,387.63 1,053.13  132.59  282.85 1,468.57 1.08 0.47
C 89hs 1,177.88 112.81 295.17 1,585.87 1,203.57 151.53 323.25 1,678.35 1.24 0.54
D 99ths 1,325.12 126.91 332.07 1,784.10 1,354.02 170.47 363.66 1,888.15 1.39 0.61
E 119ths 1,619.59 155.11 405.86 2,180.57 1,654.91 208.35 444.47 2,307.73 1.70 0.74
F 139ths 1,914.05 183.31 479.66 2,577.03 1,955.81 246.23 525.29 2,727.33 2.01 0.88
G 159ths 2,208.53  211.52  553.45 2,973.50 2,256.70 284.12  606.10 3,146.92 2.32 1.01
H 189ths 2,650.24  253.82  664.14 3,568.20 2,708.04  340.94  727.32 3,776.30 2.79 1.22

Page 28



15.8

15.9

15.10

15.11

15.12

15.13

15.14

The amount raised in Council Tax receipts for the Council is a function not
only of the Band D charge itself, but the number and composition of
properties eligible to pay the charge. This quantum is referred to as the
“Taxbase” and was required to be determined and notified to precepting
bodies by the 31st January 2021. Having made that determination, any
further changes to that assumed quantum are, by way of required
technical accounting adjustments, withheld from impacting next year’'s
General Fund revenue position, instead being held in an unusable
collection fund adjustment reserve until the following year.

The estimated taxbase for 2020/21 was determined in January 2020 to be
132,729.4 Band D equivalent properties (after adjusting for the estimated
number of properties in each banding; relevant discounts and exemptions;
and anticipated collection rate). The equivalent number of properties for
2021/22 has been estimated to be 129,940.8 Band D equivalents — a
decline of 2,788.6.

The change in taxbase is predominantly the result of anticipated growth in
property numbers not materialising as originally assumed, but is also
impacted by the number of householders becoming eligible for discounts
due to their economic circumstances and reduced collection rates — all of
which have been significantly impacted by the coronavirus pandemic.

The decline in projected number of Band D equivalent properties has an
impact on the base budget for 2021/22. At the current 2020/21 Band D
charge for Croydon (£1,452.03), a fall of 2,788.6 in the taxbase sees a
reduction of £4.0m in income derived from Council Tax. However, the
proposed increase of 4.99% in the Band D charge for the Council offsets
this fall with the General Demand Increase (£28.90) and Social Care
Precept (£43.56) respectively generating an additional £3.8m and £5.7m.

Taken collectively, the impact of the proposed Council Tax charge
increases and change in taxbase see the current budgeted income from
Council Tax of £193m increase by £5m in 2021/22 to £198m.

In setting out forecasts over the longer three-year MTFS planning horizon,
future years Band D charges are assumed to increase by 1.99% year-on-
year in accordance with current year referendum limits (and at Bank of
England target inflation rate) whilst taxbase growth is assumed to return
to a higher level (last four year average) and collection rates also trend
back up to 98.5% as the impact of the coronavirus pandemic diminishes.
The MTFS assumptions see future increases in net yield of £8m and then
£7min 2022/23 and 2023/24 as a result.

As referred to earlier in this section, technical accounting adjustments
required under regulations ensure that any deficit in Council tax receipts
actually chargeable to that forecast at the start of the year are offset and
thus impact in the future year. These adjustments are held in the unusable
reserve Collection Fund Adjustment Account. The lower than previously
anticipated growth in the taxbase during 2020/21, as well as seeing a
detrimental impact in receipts in 2021/22, also has an adverse impact on
the 2020/21 position and results in a deficit in the Collection Fund. This is
ordinarily recovered as an adjustment in the following year, but recent

Page 29



15.15

15.16

15.17

15.18

15.19

15.20

regulations allow and require the 2020/21 deficit to be recovered over a
three rather than one year period.

However, one-off additional grant funding has recently been announced
as part of government funding to local councils for covid impacts which will
mitigate deficit that would otherwise be seen. Collectively these
adjustments see a £0.9m additional pressure on the budget position next
year which remains over the three-year life of the MTFS due to the three-
year spreading arrangements introduced by the latest amended
regulations.

Projected Collection Fund Surplus / Deficit

Council Tax and Business Rate income is collected by the Council as the
Billing Authority on its own behalf and the GLA (and in the case of business
rates a 33% share for central government). All income and costs, such as
write-offs; refunds and appeals repayments, are in the first instance
credited to the Collection Fund account — an unusable reserve in the
Council’s balance sheet and distributed by means of precepts by the
relevant bodies on that account.

Substantially as the result of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
growth in the number of residential properties has seen fewer properties
added to the Council Tax property list in the current year as well as
declining collection rates that has led to the need to increase bad debt
provisions at year end for potential losses. Similarly, in-year business rate
yield has been impacted by the number of properties being declared
vacant (and subject to three-month empty property relief) and the level of
appeals against property valuations increasing leading to refunds where
successful and provisions for those still pending determination by the
Valuation Office Agency. In both cases these circumstances have led to
forecast deficits for the current financial year.

Technical adjustment required under statute require that the amounts
estimated to be distributed in any financial year represented the amount
originally budgeted to be distributed and any in-year surplus or deficit is
retained within the Collection Fund account and impact on general
reserves in the following financial year. In-year deficits caused by factors
outlined above, whilst not impacting on the current year General Fund
budget thus affect next year’s budget position.

Recognising the impact the current Covid-19 pandemic has had on all
local authority positions with regard to both Council Tax and business
rates, additional statutory regulations have been issued to require
significant elements of any in-year deficit to be held in the Collection Fund
and spread over a three year period rather than the usual one year — the
re-phasing of these deficits are included in the proposals set out in this
Budget Setting and three-year MTFS report.

The total projected deficit on the Council Tax element of the Collection
Fund was estimated to be £9.167m and notified to preceptors on 25
January 2020. Croydon’s share of that deficit is £7.458m — being spread
over three years being 2.503m per year. A final variance on the 2019/20
outturn of £0.052m reduces the net transfer in 2021/22 only.

Page 30



15.21

16.0

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.0

171

17.2

Against a 2020/21 base budget Croydon share of a deficit of prior year
business rates Collection Fund deficits, an increase of £0.185m to a total
of £1.910m. Under regulations this element cannot be spread over three
years and becomes a one-off charge in 2021/22. In addition, a further
£2.391m deficit has been forecast which is spread over three years,
representing an annual cost over the MTFS period of £0.797m.

Greater London Authority Precept 2021/22

On 15" December 2020, the Mayor of London announced his provisional
proposal to increase his share of council tax by 1.99%, £6.64. This was
revised on 12" January 2021 to 9.5%, £31.59 of which £15 will go towards
helping fund the Metropolitan Police and £15 for Transport of London
subsidies for children and over 60s. The remaining £1.59 per-household
would go towards helping the fire service respond to changes
recommended by the Grenfell Tower inquiry.

In order to implement the proposed increases for TfL, the GLA requires
approval from the government to amend its referendum limits as the
increase would be greater than its current 2% limit before a referendum
was required.

This overall resultant council tax increase is set out in table 12 below.

Table 12— Local Taxation increase and the GLA Tax increase

Band D 202122 | Increase | Annual | Weekly
Increase | Increase
£ % £ £
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
Adult Social Care 170.47 3.00% | 43.56 0.84
Precept
Greater London Authority 363.66 9.50% 31.59 0.61
Total 1,888.15 5.83% 104.05 2.00

The overall increase on the total bill for the residents Croydon is 5.83%.

DSG CROYDON

In 2019, the government announced additional in education funding over
a three year period from 2020/21 and national schools funding will
increase by £4.8 billion in 2021/22 and £7.1 billion in 2022/23 compared
to funding levels in 2019/20. In addition, funding continues to be provided
to fund the recent increase in pension costs for teachers, worth £1.5bn a

year.

Croydon’s DSG allocation has increased accordingly and in 2021/22,
Croydon will receive £390.567m in funding through the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG), an increase of £25.3m in funding, of which £12.9m relates

Page 31




17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

to the teacher's pay and pension grant element, or 6.9% since 2020/21,
compared to 6.6% increase across London and 8.1% nationally.

The increase in funding from 2020/21 follows a decade of real term
reductions in per pupil funding for statutory school aged pupils (5 — 16
years old). In January 2020, the Department for Education (DfE) released
trend data on school revenue funding revealing that the total amount of
funding through specific grants', in cash terms, allocated to English
schools for 5-16 year olds had grown over the last nine years as the total
pupil population has grown. The total funding allocated to schools was
£44.5 billion in 2019/20, an increase of 27.4% compared to the £35.0
billion allocated in 2010/11.

Total funding also grew over this time in real terms (adjusted for price
changes using the GDP deflator), increasing by 8.8%. Funding increased
in real terms in each year during that period with the exception of a slight
fall in 2016/17 compared to 2015/16.

On a per-pupil basis the total funding allocated to schools for 5-16 year
olds, in cash terms, in 2019/20 was £5,940, a 14.8% increase compared
to £5,170 allocated per pupil in 2010/11. In real terms, funding per pupil
was broadly flat between 2010/11 and 2015/16 at just over £6,000 in
2019/20 prices. It then fell by 4.2% over 2016/17 and 2017/18, but
subsequently increased by 1.9% over 2018/19 and 2019/20, in part as a
result of additional funding provided in respect of teacher pension
employer contribution costs.

Over a shorter period, in cash terms Croydon’s per pupil funding increased
to £6,166 in 2019/20, a 7.1% increase compared to £5,757 allocated for
statutory school age pupils in 2013/14. In real terms, funding per pupil
over the same period fell by 3%. Since 2019/20, with the exclusion of the
teacher's pay and pension grant element, per pupil funding has increased
to £6,831, a 10.7% increase since 2019/20. Croydon’s total DSG
(excluding the Early Years Block) changes, in cash and real terms, since
2018/19 is summarised in the table 13 below.

Table 13- Funding per pupil

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
DSG Block
£'m £'m £'m £'m

Schools 243.87 247.51 262.96 269.16
High Needs 60.21 61.09 66.8 72.40
Central School Services 6.18 6.12 5.83 5.97

Total DSG (exc Early Years) 310.26 314.72 335.59 347.53
Pupil numbers 50,777 51,037 51,023 50,875
Per pupil funding £6,110.29 £6,166.47 £6,577.45 £6,831.09
Funding change 2.50% 0.90% 6.70% 3.90%
Inflation (CPI) 2.70% 2.50% 1.80% 0.90%
Real terms funding change -0.20% -1.60% 4.90% 3.00%

Page 32




17.7

17.8

17.9

17.10

17.11

17.12

Dedicated schools grant (including the schools block, most of the high needs block and the central school
services block (CSSB); but excluding the early years block and post-16 funding in the high needs block); Pre-16
high needs place funding in non-maintained special schools, special and alternative provision free schools; Pupil
premium; Supplementary free school meals grant; Teachers' pay grant (TPG);and Teachers' pension employer
contribution grant (TPECG).

Schools Block

The Schools Block 2021/22 allocation is £281.313m (before recoupment),
which is an increase of £18.35m since 2020/21 mainly due to the inclusion
of the teacher's pay and pension grant element of £12.154m and to
accommodate the overall increase in Education funding for 2021/22.

The minimum funding guarantee (MFG) will continue to be applied, hence
every school or academy will see an increase in funding of at least 0.5%
per pupil compared to its 2020/21 budget (this excludes sixth form
funding). MFG protects schools’ budgets from large changes in funding
based on factor changes. It protects on a £/per pupil basis. This means it
will not protect a school against falling roll numbers.

The NFF provides two per pupil funding rates, one for primary pupils and
one for secondary pupils. In 2021/22, the respective funding rates are
£4,821 and £6,433. The 2020/21 rates per pupil were £4,505 for primary
pupils and £5,987 for secondary pupils. Croydon is, on a per pupil basis
for primary and secondary pupils, ranked 23 out of 32 London boroughs.
This ranking has risen by one place since 2020/21. Although Croydon has
seen an increase in its funding allocation, boroughs nearest to us have
also received an increase. This results in the continuation of the gap
between how much extra a pupil in our nearest inner London neighbours
is funded compared to Croydon.

Early Years

The Early Years 2021/22 indicative allocation is £30.108, an increase of
£0.352m since 2020/21 again mainly to accommodate the overall increase
in Education funding for 2021/22. The final allocation will be adjusted
following the January 2021 census.

The Early Years block allocation for Croydon is based on a nationally set
rate of a:
e £5.21 hourly rate for three and four year olds; and
e £5.74 for two year olds
This has increased from funding rates of £5.13 and £5.66,
respectively.

The proposed rates based on the indicative 2021/22 allocation remain as
they were in 2020/21 at:
o £4.87 for three and four year olds; and
e £5.74 for two year olds

High Needs
Funding for High Needs provision continues to be area of increased

budget pressure nationally and Councils including Croydon have
developed Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) strategies to

Page 33



17.13

17.14

17.15

17.16

17.17

ensure services are delivered efficiently and effectively to meet demand
and need. Croydon Council has reviewed SEND demand, practice and
provision and engaged with stake-holders, including parents, young
people and schools to inform the development of five year SEND Strategy
that was implemented in 2019/20.

The High Needs 2021/22 allocation is £73.1m, which is an increase of
£6.586m since 2020/21, including the teacher's pay and pension grant
element of £0.696m. This allocation is based on the October 2020 census,
with further adjustments to be made for January 2021 census.

At as the end of 2019/20, the High Needs block forecast overspend was
£18.477 m (including previous years overspends). The 2020/21 Quarter
3 High Needs Block forecast overspend is £4.575m, bringing the
cumulative High Needs deficit to £23.052m.

The budget pressures are principally attributable to the increase in
demand, which has led to an over-reliance on the independent / non-
maintained sector, due to shortage of local state funded special schools
and / or resourced provision. This is being addressed and a strategy
developed to move to a more sustainable framework. Table 14 below
illustrates the increase in the number of Education and Health Care Plans
compared to the increase in High needs funding since the introduction of
the EHCP regulations in 2014/15.

Table 14 Impact of EHCP regulations

Percentage Percentage

Year Funding Funding Number of increase in of Total
£'m Change EHC Plans number of Pubils

EHC Plans P
2014/15 48.90 2,044 4.5%
2015/16 51.41 5.1% 2,074 1.5% 4.5%
2016/17 51.24 -0.3% 2,217 6.9% 4.8%
2017/18 51.63 0.8% 2,491 12.4% 5.0%
2018/19 58.82 13.9% 2,693 8.1% 5.3%
2019/20 60.21 2.4% 2,999 11.4% 5.9%
2020/21 66.80 10.9% 3,163 5.5% 6.2%

The increase in 2021/22 will mean there will have been a 30.4% real terms
increase in funding since 2014/15. However, over the same timescale,
we will have seen an increase in EHC plans of over 53%

Croydon Council has a long term plan to increase special schools,
Enhanced Learning Provision and post 16 specialist places, including a
new free special school with 150 places opening in September 2020.
Through this strategy the intention is to provide an effective pathway of
local education provision for young people which is an efficient use of
resources and supports young people in becoming independent in or near
their local community.

That, together with an approach that manages reliance on Education,

Health and Care Plans (EHCP) for children with lower levels of SEND,
reduces demand and ensure placements of children are delivered through

Page 34



17.18

17.19

17.20

the continuum of state-funded education provision at efficient values. The
increase in the number of EHCP plans following the change of regulations
has also had a financial impact on the Council’s revenue budget providing
home to school transport, with cost rising annually.

The increase in EHCPs has a direct correlation on the increase in
students eligible for travel assistance.

Table 15— Analysis of SEN

Academic Number of Number of Number of Number of
year students with | students on students on | students
EHCPS Traditional aPTB travel
transport trained
2015/2016 2406 1121 not 79 41
including post
16
2016/2017 2691 1127 not 84 56
including post
16
2017/2018 2783 1156 not 88 63
including post
16
2018/2019 2940 1203 not 96 24
including post
16
2019/2020 3163 (to date) | 1258 (+ 100 105 to date 12 to date
plus approx. 35 | post 16)
pupils on
assessment
places *

*pupils who were given specialist provision on an assessment place and not registered as having an EHCP but
still eligible for transport.

A number of Innovative strategies continue to be implemented to try and deal
with the unprecedented demand for SEN travel assistance which include

e Investment in our in-house travel training service, gaining an excellent
reputation from other boroughs

¢ Route sharing with neighbouring boroughs

e Amendment of Croydon’s post-16 travel policy in 2019 following a
detailed consultation process which allows for the default position of a
personal transport budget for 16-18 year old eligible students who are
not suitable for independent travel training

e The Promotion of Personal transport budgets

e Review of high cost, complex cases

e Joint strategic working with SEN, Schools and parents (placement
decisions)

Central Services Schools
In 2018/19, the NFF created a fourth block within the DSG called the
Central Services Schools Block (CSSB). This block is made up of two

parts — Reported spend on Ongoing Functions and Reported spend on
Historic Commitments.

Page 35



17.21

17.22

17.23

17.24

17.25

17.26

Ongoing Functions

The Reported spend on Ongoing Functions includes services such as
School Improvement and Education Welfare, totals £2.833m, including
£0.08m for the teacher's pay and pension grant element.

The 2021/20 allocation for ongoing functions (without the pay and pension
adjustment) has reduced by £0.079m based on a reduction in the CSSB
unit of funding decreasing by 2.5% year on year from £55.49 per pupil in
2020/21.

Historic Commitments

The reported spend on Historic Commitments consists of the prudential
borrowing costs for SEND provision (£3.0m) and historic teacher pension
costs (£0.213m), totalling £3.213m and has remained the same allocation
as 2020/21.

The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) has a previously stated
policy of reducing the funding that LAs receive for historic commitments
made prior to 2013/14 and each year, the LA has made (successful)
representations to the ESFA to maintain the current level of funding due
to the impact on the General Fund of any reduction — particularly on the
prudential borrowing costs of a capital programme with a pay-back period
of 10 years (up to 2025/26). The ESFA have not yet determined how they
will continue to unwind this in future years and commit to ensuring
information about future years will be provided with as much notice as
possible.

The 2021/22 budget for the Schools, Early Years, High Needs and Central
School Services Blocks has been agreed by Schools Forum. The Schools
Block funding formula was approved by Cabinet on 18" January 2021 and
submitted to the DfE on the 20" January 2021 using the budget principles
agreed by Schools Forum over the autumn period. Once agreed by the
DfE the detailed school budgets will be finalised and these will be issued
to schools in March 2021.

DSG Management Plan

As a condition of the 2021/22 DSG, LAs with an overall DSG deficit of one
per cent or more at the end of the previous financial year are required to
submit recovery plans for that deficit and Croydon submitted the original
DSG Deficit Recovery Plan to recover the 2018/19 in-year High Needs
Block deficit (£5.611 million) over a five year period to the DfE, as agreed
with the School Forum and Chief Finance Officer and endorsed by this
Sub Committee in July 2019.

The five-year recovery period is in line with the five year SEND strategy
with key areas to be targeted. The intention is to improve our SEND
provision while reducing the expenditure in order to ensure that we can
fulfil our statutory duty to be meet the needs of all pupils with special
education needs.

Page 36



17.27

17.28

17.29

17.30

17.31

17.32

17.33

In response to the request from the DfE (30" October 2019) to revise the
plan in light of the additional DSG funding announced for 2020/21, a
revised DSG Recovery Plan was presented and noted by the School
Forum on 9™ December 2019 and subsequently submitted to the DfE.
The DfE has not responded to this revision.

The DfE letter of response informed Croydon that as the High Needs Block
allocation for 2020/21 would be increased and that subsequent year’s
allocations for 2021/22 and 2022/23 were under review, the Council would
need to review and revise the previously submitted recovery plan.

More recently, a new template and accompanying guidance for a DSG
Management Plan was released in September 2020 and the DfE has,
again, recognised that the management of DSG balances, both bringing
spend in line with income and repaying deficits, will take time for some
LAs. Croydon is currently revising their existing DSG Recovery Plan and
in accordance with the template accompanying that guidance will be
planning to bring the High Needs Block expenditure within the High Needs
Block funding allocation by Year 3 (2023/24) with recovery of the
cumulative deficit to follow in future years.

In October 2020, the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, in issuing
a Report in the Public Interest (RIPI) concerning the Council’s financial
position and related governance arrangements, highlighted concerns in
respect of not managing the Dedicated School Grant within existing
budgets.

The Council fully accepts the findings of the Report and the
recommendations that have been made, including Recommendation 5
that the General Purposes and Audit Committee (GPAC) should receive
reports on the actions being taken to address the Dedicated Schools Grant
deficit and challenge whether sufficient progress is being made.

To implement the action plan in response to those recommendations,
specifically in respect of the DSG deficit, the LA will report the progress
against the DSG deficit management plan to the School Forum, in
accordance with DfE guidance and as set out above, as an additional level
of scrutiny prior to the progress being reported, more generally, to Cabinet
as part of the usual quarterly budget monitoring report and more
specifically to the General Purposes and Audit Committee (GPAC) in
adherence to the specific recommendation of the Report.

The DSG management plan will be presented to the School Forum on 8t

February, prior to approval and submission to the DfE, followed by GPAC
on 4™ March 2021.

Page 37


https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/School-Forum-9Dec19.pdf

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

18.7

Capital Budget — 2020/21 to 2023/24

The Council’s draft Capital Programme was presented to Cabinet on 18%
January 2021. It was noted that in order to move the Council to a financial
sustainable footing, work continues on reviewing operational and service
delivery costs to bring them to a more appropriate level and this approach
applies to the Capital Programme it better reflects the Council’s priorities
in light of its ongoing financial challenges.

Whilst the 18" January Cabinet report presented a draft capital
programme, this report provides the final confirmed capital programme
report. Furthermore, this report also provides for the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) Capital programme, which is further detailed within Table
17 and Section 18.24.

The Council has worked to re-align the capital programme to ensure that
it is in proportion to its corporate priorities in light of the current financial
challenges. Council will need to prioritise delivery of the Capital
Programme based on affordability and critical needs. Other projects which
are already in progress will be scaled back accordingly. The projects within
the capital programme in para 18.8 which are funded from borrowing will
be subject to further review, in the light of the impact on the Council's
revenue budget and no contractual commitment should be entered into
until a review of revenue affordability has been concluded

The Capital Programme is typically made up of recurring key projects and
programmes linked to the Council’s statutory duties such as highways
maintenance programme and the Education Estates maintenance
Programme. It also includes various upkeep of the Council’s own assets
such as digital infrastructure, the corporate property Programme. Whilst
these are not statutory this spend is important to ensure that the Council’s
infrastructure is repaired and maintained to protect the value of these
assets and ensure they are fit for purpose to deliver vital services to the
public.

As indicated in para 18.3 a large proportion of the Capital Programme is
funded using borrowing. There is a direct impact of additional borrowing
on the Council’s revenue account from borrowing as the Council will need
to pay for interest costs that arise from taking on borrowing. In addition, as
per the Local Government Act 2003, all Local Authorities are required to
provide for Minimum Revenue Provision within its MTFS, which as
becomes an additional charge to the Revenue account. Both these costs
are factored within the interest payable & MRP line within the corporate
budgets. The Council will work with the GLA to seek further grant funding
to support the acquisition of Brick by Brick properties and thus reduce
reliance on borrowing.

As part of the Council’s regular budget monitoring requirements the
Council will provide regular updates on the progress of the delivery of the
capital programme.

Table 16 below provides a detailed breakdown of various schemes per
Directorate.

Page 38



Table 16 — Capital Programme

. Budget Budget Budget Total Budget
DI 2021/22 202223 | 2023124 2021/24
£000s £000s £000s £000s
DFG 2,400 2,400 2,400 7,200
Empty Homes Grants 500 - - 500
Bere_avement Services 600 6800
- burial land
Bereavemgnt services 465 i i 465
— crematorium
Health, Wellbeing
and Adults 3,965 2,400 2,400 8,765
Education — Fire
Safety Works 1,200 300 - 1,500
Education — _leed 260 34 i 204
term expansion
Education — Major 2,945 3,000 3,000 8,945
Maintenance
Education - . 180 44 - 224
Permanent Expansion
Education — Special
Educational Needs 8,892 352 595 9,799
Education — other 200 - - 200
Children, Families
and Education Sub 13,677 3,730 3,555 20,962
Total
Asset Management 155 - - 155
Clocktower chillers 462 - - 462
Corporate Property 2,000 2,000 2,000 6,000
Feasibility Fund 330 330 330 990
Fieldway Cluster
(Timebridge 121 - - 121
community centre)
Grounds Malnt_enance 1.200 i i 1.200
Insourced Equipment
Leisure centre invest 140 70 i 210
to save
Libraries Investment 1,610 - - 1,610

Page 39




Measures to mitigate

73 73 73 219
travellers
Museum archives 100 - - 100
Parking 475 475 - 950
Play equipment 815 - - 815
Safety - Digital
Upgrade of CCTV 655 ) ) 655
SEN Transport 1,275 - - 1,275
Signing 112 - - 112
South Norwood 53 849 74 976
Regeneration
Waste and Recycling 1,558 - - 1,558
Waste and Recycling -
Don’t Mess with 768 - - 768
Croydon
Place sub-total 11,902 3,797 2,477 18,176
ICT Refresh & 6,200 6,200 6,200 18,600
Transformation
People ICT 1,521 i i 1,521
Programme
Uniform ICT upgrade - - 3,719 3,719
Finance and HR 400 i i 400
System
Resources sub-total 8,121 6,200 9,919 24,240
Highways 17,231 8,051 0 25,282
Electric Vehicle
Charging Points 500 ) ) 500
Growth Zone 4,000 0 0 7,500
Asset management -
Stubbs mead 3,132 ) ) 3,132
Total 24,863 8,051 0 32,914
General Fund 62,528 24178 18,351 105,057
MHCLG capitalisation 50,000 25,000 5,000 80,000
direction
Total Including 112,528 49,178 23,351 185,057
Capitalisation
Major Repairs and
Improvements 26,771 26,771 26,771 80,313
Programme
Special Transfer 180 180 180 540
Payments
BxB Properties Acquired 54,535 0 0 54,535
HRA Total 81,486 26,951 26,951 135,388
CefpiEl MBI Emne 194,014 76,129 50,302 320,445

Total

Page 40




Table 17 DRAFT Capital Programme Resourcing 2021/22 to 2023/23

Budget Budget Budget Total MTFS

2021/22 | 2022/23 2023/24 budget

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Borrowing 36,497 10,687 5,722 52,906
Borrowing — GZ 4,000 0 0 7,500
S106 771 | - - 771
CIL 6,800 6,800 6,800 20,400
School Condition 4,145 3,300 3,000 10,445
Allocation
Spec!al Provision Capital 897 152 355 1,404
Funding
Basic Need Funding 640 78 - 718
ESFA 5,003 - - 5,003
Other grant — DFG 2,400 2,400 2,400 7,200
Other grant - Football 0
Foundation
Other grant - London 0
Marathon
Other Grant - ORCS 300 | - - 300
Historic England 374 511 74 959
Other grants — GLA 701 250 | - 951
Total Funding 62,528 24178 18,351 105,057
MHCLG capitalisation 50,000 25,000 5,000 80,000
direction
Total General Fund
Funding after 112,528 49,178 23,351 185,057
Capitalisation
Major Repairs Allowance 13,668 21,209 21,209 54,924
HRA - Revenue 8,186 1,742 1,742 14,484

Contribution

Page 41




HRA - Use Of Reserves 19,805 4,000 4,000 27,805
Sr"o’;g#iggi”g of BxB 8,500 0 0 8500
Eforgoe"r"tiig% BxB 31,327 0 0 29675
HRA FUNDING 81,486 26,951 26,951 135,388
g;’:fi':fm“e“n‘:ing 194,014 76,129 50,302 320,445

18.8

18.9

The capital programme detailed in tables 16 and 17 above does not
include expected slippage from the 2020/21 capital programme.
Estimated slippage is detailed in the quarter 3 financial monitoring report
as part of this Cabinet meeting and also attached as Appendix H. It is
currently estimated that there will be scheme slippage of approx. £112.6m
but this is subject to any changes arising between now and the year end.
The final slippage will be reported to this Cabinet as part of the annual July
Financial Review report once the financial year has closed. Schemes
which are funded using a combination of external grants and borrowing
will only be undertaken once the external funding is secure; amounts of
council borrowing shown are indicative.

There are a number of key projects supported in the 2021/22 programme,
including:

18.9.1  Continued investment in the school estate from 2021/22 to
2023/24 of £20.9m. This includes £15.67m for the New
Addington Valley SEN School on the Timebridge site which the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) commissioned
Croydon to lead on. The school will offer 150 places to children
aged 2-19 years, with autism and learning difficulties, with the
aim of providing a local pathway from the early years to
adulthood. The proposed date for the opening of the school
September 2021. The project will be fully funded by the ESFA
under its “Invest to Save” programme.

18.9.2 Continued investment in Public Realm and Highways
Infrastructure. This scheme will enable investment in the public
realm and highways to ensure that the infrastructure is fit-for-
purpose and achieves our vision making use of the opportunities
presented by the Croydon Growth Zone. The Council will need
to continue to borrow to maintain the highways network following
reduction in TFL funding. Additional borrowing has been
included to support the work needed to maintain bridges and
other key structures and to meet our legal obligations under the
Flood Water Management Act.

18.9.3 Continued investment in the Council’s ICT infrastructure to
provide a fit for purpose service to staff and residents. Add in
further info

18.9.4 The HRA capital programme set out in Table 18 shows the
planned capital expenditure in 2020/21 is £35.7m and total is

Page 42



18.10

18.11

18.12

£102.6m over the 3 years to maintain homes to a decent homes
standard and purchase new BxB homes using GLA grant under
its Building Council Homes for Londoners programme to fund
part of the cost:

18.9.5 Work is continuing to ensure fire safety within residential blocks
owned or leased by the Council is compliant and meets current
standards in order to provide safe homes for our residents. A
£5m reserve will be set aside from existing reserves, with no
additional borrowing required for this amount.

18.9.6 The capital programme includes £26.7m planned for ongoing
and essential works identified, these include
replacement/upgrade of flat front entrance doors, installation/
upgrade of emergency lighting and fire alarm systems where
required and blocks with spandrel panels which may need to be
replaced.

No new capital schemes will be added to the programme without a
business case being approved, a report being submitted to cabinet and
then the funds will be released subject to the revenue costs of any scheme
being affordable, this applies to both General Fund and HRA capital
schemes.

Growth Zone

The Croydon Growth Zone is a Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) model
which harnesses business rates uplift to enable borrowing to fund
infrastructure. The Croydon Growth Zone programme consists of a range
of transport, public realm social infrastructure and technology projects as
reported to Cabinet in December 2017. They are deemed essential to
mitigate the impact and maximise the opportunities of the growth planned
(as detailed in the Croydon Local Plan 2018, Croydon Opportunity Area
Planning Framework 2013 and the London Plan) in Croydon for the benefit
of existing and future residents, businesses and visitors.

As reported to Cabinet in February 2020 in more detail, and subject to
approval, the Growth Zone programme has been re profiled, with the total
funding required for the period 2021/22 to 2022/23 of £4m. Table 18 below
sets out the programme over that period.

Page 43



18.13

18.14

18.15

Table 18 — Growth Zone Projects

Project 2021/22 to 2023/24

(£'000s)
Transport 500
Public Realm 1,600
Construction Logistics 400
Parking 300
Culture 500
Smart Cities 400
Social Infrastructure 300
Employment and Skills 0
Energy 0
TOTAL 4,000

Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Council, as Local Planning Authority, when required secures Section
106 Agreements as a requirement of the grant of planning permission to
secure the mitigation measures necessary to make a development
acceptable in planning terms. This includes securing financial
contributions towards infrastructure types and projects.

The Council’s Section 106 balance as at September 2020 was
£4.7m. This balance is sub-divided into the heads of terms for
infrastructure types and projects as set out in the parent Section 106
agreements. This understanding is important as Section 106 income can
only be assigned in accordance with the parent Section 106 agreement in
terms of infrastructure type, project and / or the location defined in the
agreement.

Set out below in table 19 is the Council’s detailed Section 106 balance
sheet.

Page 44



18.16

18.17

18.18

18.19

Table 19— S106 breakdown of funds

Section 106 — Head of Term Balance
Affordable Housing £1,026,483.00
Air Quality £148,328.50
Bus Improvements £80,590.42
Carbon Offset £536,910.66
Culture £51,679.49
East Croydon Station £298,657.56
Education £278,845.18
Employment and Skills Training £298,098.00
Environmental Improvements £27,466.00
Equality Programme £21,957.00
Footways & Pedestrian Environment £2,468.12
Health £106,728.05
Highways £84,375.29
Libraries £62,942.00
Open Space £431,248.77
Parking £25,000.00
Public Art £26,500.93
Public Realm £450,548.97
Renewable Energy £56,964.00
Skyline £1,000.00
Sustainable Transport £514,448.59
Tree Planting & Maintenance £14,282.75
West Croydon £172,781.56
TOTAL £4,718,322.84

In terms of future Section 106 assignment, the Council is actively
working (with partners as appropriate) on how the remainder of the
Section 106 moneys can be used to benefit the people of Croydon and
mitigate the development the contribution arose from. Section 106
assignment will continue to be governed by the Council’s Infrastructure
Finance Group and Capital Board.

A total of £3,582,344 of Section 106 income was assigned to specific
projects during 2019/20 in accordance with the Section 106 parent
agreement and Infrastructure Finance Group Terms of Reference. During
2019/20 a total of £775,674 of money secured under s106 agreements
was spent on specific projects across the borough.

The Council introduced the borough’s CIL in April 2013. The Council has
been collecting the borough’s CIL since this date. As a consequence of
requiring the grant of planning permission and commencement of
development post April 2013 for the CIL to be liable for payment, the
income received since the introduction has gradually increased.

Borough CIL balance at 01/04/20 was £12,544,170.93. This income is

available to be spent on infrastructure types and projects included on the
Council’s CIL Infrastructure List

Page 45



18.20

18.21

18.22

18.23

18.24

Regulation 121A of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010
(as amended) requires the Council to produce a statement of the
infrastructure (CIL Infrastructure List) projects or types of infrastructure
which the charging authority intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly
funded by CIL. This broadly covers all infrastructure projects and types,
except for sustainable transport and highway that are secured through
Section 106 and / or Section 278 highway agreements.

In addition to allocations in 2019/20, and based on current CIL balances
and forecast CIL receipts, it has been assumed that £6.8m of Borough CIL
money will be available to fund the capital programme. Also, £2m of
Borough CIL money has been assigned to the Council’s Education Estates
Strategy as agreed by Cabinet on Monday 18" January 2021 and £2.1m
has been assigned to Leisure, libraries and open space maintenance. The
specific projects to enjoy borough CIL funding will be defined through the
governance of the Infrastructure Finance Group and Capital Board to
ensure CIL legislative compliance. The specific project assignment will
occur post the approval of this report and be published in the Council’s
CIL Infrastructure Statement.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 allow
for up to 15% to be spent on the provision, improvement, replacement,
operation or maintenance of infrastructure; or anything else that is
concerned with addressing the demands that development places on
Croydon. This is commonly referred to as the Locally Meaningful
Proportion.

The CIL Local Meaningful Proportion balance at 01/04/20 was £3.91m.
The Local Meaningful Proportion will fund the Community Ward Budgets
for 2020/21. Also, as set out in the September 2020 Cabinet Emergency
Budget Report, CIL Local Meaningful Proportion will significantly
contribute to the costs of the 2020/21 Community Fund Projects that meet
the CIL legislative requirements.

Housing Programme

The Council is committed to delivering affordable housing in the borough
through a range of measures:

e In order to accelerate the delivery of new homes for Croydon
residents, the Council established Brick by Brick, an independent
development company. Brick by Brick receives borrowing and equity
investment from the Council. It is expected that the HRA will purchase
up to 190 completed units of affordable housing within 2021/22 from
Brick by Brick, based on availability and an agreement of a fair
purchase price that will be sustainable for HRA borrowing.

e The properties purchased from Brick by Brick are expected to charge
London Affordable Rent levels (LAR), however are subject to Cabinet
Approval.

e The Council entered in to three separate limited liability partnerships

(LLPs) with Croydon Affordable Homes, a local charity to develop
units across the borough and street purchased properties as

Page 46



18.25

18.26

19.0

19.1

19.2

affordable rented homes. In order to fund their acquisition activities,
the Council gifted retained right to buy receipts to the LLPs, with the
Council acting as lender for the balance of the funds needed. The
Council has completed phase 1 and 2 of its street property acquisition
programme for the provision of affordable rent. This has enabled
acquisitions of 346 street properties for the provision of affordable
rent in the borough.

e The Council has been awarded GLA grant funding under the Mayor
of London’s £1 billion Building Council Homes for Londoner’s
programme for social housing. The grant funding has been used to
part fund the purchase of new build Brick by Brick properties,
transferring them into the HRA.

Repair and Improvement of council stock

A key aim for the council has been the government target of bringing 100%
of social homes up to the decent home standard. Croydon has invested in
its HRA properties to ensure that it meets, and continue to achieve the
decent homes standard. The Council has achieved a constant 99-100%
of homes maintained at the decent home standard over the last seven
years. Homes which are currently decent will fall below the standard, for
example as facilities age and with wear and tear, the Council will need to
continue to invest in the stock to keep homes up to standard over time.
Indeed, the social housing regulator has proposed a revised home
standard which will reflect the government’s direction that social landlords
should comply with the decent home standard with ongoing effect. The
council continues to invest in maintenance and improvement works in
order to maximise the life of the assets

The HRA budget for proposed major repairs and improvement programme
for 2021/22 will remain at circa £27m, although available budget unspent
at the end of 2010/21 will be carried forward, taking the estimated total
spend to £30m. It should be noted that there is also a separate programme
of responsive and cyclical repairs which are resourced through revenue
funding totalling £12m. In order to enable the Council to respond quickly
to any additional or changing fire safety regulations, a £5m reserve has
been ringfenced in the HRA account.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account used to
manage income and costs associated with managing the Council’s owned
housing stock and related assets which includes shops and garages on
council housing estates. It is funded primarily from tenants’ rents and
service charges. The services provided to tenants and leaseholders which
includes responsive repairs, management and supervision services and
caretaking as examples are resourced from this account.

Croydon’s HRA consists of approximately 13,400 homes. In addition to
the HRA, there are approximately 800 homes that are managed on behalf
of the General Fund, Private Landlords and Croydon Affordable Homes.
These properties similarly require repair, maintenance and investment to

Page 47



maintain good quality accommodation, and offer temporary
accommodation to families most in need.

19.3 Longer term planning for the HRA is continuing to take place through the
30-year business plan which is updated annually to reflect changes in
legislation and assumptions which underpin the financial projections. This
includes the impact of increasing rents by CPI1+1%, which will enable the
HRA to be more financial sustainable. The lifting of the HRA borrowing
cap will also enable the Council to consider developments funded directly
by the HRA.

19.4 The budget for 2021/22, Table 20, shows a balanced position as required
by statute and was reported with the proposed rent and other charges to
the Tenants and Leaseholders Panel on the 9th February 2021.

Table 20 — 2021/22 HRA Revenue Budget
DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL BUDGET
2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Employees 13,976 15,162

Premises related expenditure 18,904 17,740

Supplies and Services 2,510 3,081

Third Party Payments 406 363

Transfer Payments 156 656

Transport related expenditure 30 44

Capital Charges 35,776 33,824

Intangible Charges 59 122

REFCUS 180 180

Corporate support services bought in 6,705 6,705

Recharges from other services 9,348 10,988

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 88,050 88,865

Government Grants - -

Other Grants, reimbursements and contributions (209) (185)

Customer and Client Receipts (85,771) (86,591)

Interest Receivable - -

Recharges to other services (2,070) (2,089)

TOTAL INCOME (88,050) (88,865)

NET EXPENDITURE - -

Contributions to / (from) Reserves - -

19.5

All investment in new-build is currently being undertaken outside of the
HRA by either the Council’'s Development Company, Brick by Brick, or
other partners. However, as part of the rent setting policy and with the
change in policy with regard to Brick by Brick, the Council will subject to
affordability, commence preparations for developing housing within the
HRA during 2021/22.

Page 48



19.6

19.7

19.9

19.10

19.11

19.12

19.13

19.14

Croydon Affordable Homes (the charity set up by the Council in
partnership to deliver affordable rented properties across the borough) will
be renting out local homes at a maximum of 65% of the market rent to
borough residents and remaining units will be available through shared
ownership.

Prior to the announcement removing the borrowing cap in 2019/20, the
introduction of self-financing for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in
April 2012 was accompanied by a limit on the amount of housing debt that
each authority could hold. The limitations this generated for the HRA
business plan resulted in many authorities (including Croydon) seeking to
borrow to support affordable housing outside of the HRA.

Housing demand

It is considered that for at least the next 10 years that the housing market
in London and the South east will be characterised by rising demand and
increased barriers to entry caused by rising house prices, rising rents and
population growth. Beyond 10 years it is difficult to predict with any
certainty what housing policy will be in place or what structural housing
market changes may have occurred.

The mix of new housing supply continues to be influenced by numbers of
applicants on the Council’'s housing register locally and the forecasts of
future housing need.

The budget position of the HRA is subject to continued uncertainty in light
of further policy proposals that have been issued by the government. The
Council is awaiting the final outcome of the legislative process followed by
detailed guidance still to be issued by government.

The ‘A new deal for social housing’ Green Paper consultation outcome is
awaited. Recent changes and proposals impacting HRA are set out below.

. The government has confirmed that from 2020/21 rent increases will
apply at CPI1+1% (Consumer Price Index) on social housing rented
properties which is equal to 2.7%

- The government has proposed making Right to Buy (RTB) receipts
to be available for 50% of social rented new build costs rather than
30%. We are waiting for the government’s final decision on this.

. The government has proposed extending use of existing RTB
receipts to 5 years with new receipts being available for 3 years. We
are waiting for the government’s final decision on this.

However, assumptions about these policy changes and the current
legislation, % increase in rental income, have been incorporated into the
40 year business plan and annual budget setting. These are explained
below.

Right to Buy
Croydon Council entered into a retention agreement with the government

in April 2012. Under the terms of the agreement, the government requires
that local authorities can only retain the receipts from right to buy (RTB)

Page 49



19.15

19.16

19.17

19.18

19.19

sales if they spend it within three years of retention to create new stock by
match funding the purchase of this new supply on a 70:30 basis.

The implication of this is that the RTB receipts can only fund 30% of new
property development or acquisition costs with the remaining balance of
70% funded through the council’s HRA or other resources. Interest is
repayable to the government on retained receipts not used within 3 years.

The Council’'s Housing LLP has used retained RTB receipts which the
HRA had been unable to use due to the limited resources in the HRA
before the government announced the lifting of the borrowing cap, with the
Council acting as lender for the balance of the funds for the purchase of
the leases and development of the sites. As explained above, if the
Council did not use the retained RTB receipts in this manner, it would need
to repay the unused receipts to central government with interest.

The current 2020/21 HRA budget and business plan assumes there will
be 80 right to buy sales in the year. As well as the loss of an asset to the
HRA, this impacts on the level of rents collected year on year and therefore
the availability of funds to match the 70:30 requirement.

The table below shows the RTB sales since 2012 compared to the
assumptions in the Self-Financing (SF) settlement.

Table 21 — RTB sales since 2012

Actual Sales | Assumed Sales (in
(Forecast from SF Settlement)

2020/21)
2012/13 36 14
2013/14 51 17
2014/15 135 19
2015/16 143 20
2016/17 148 20
2017/18 90 20
2018/19 83 20
2019/20 58 20
2020/21 60 20
2021/22 80 20
Total 884 190

Rent Setting and Changes

The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 required all registered providers
of social housing in England to reduce rents by 1% a year for four years
from 2015/16 levels to 2019/20. This reduction commenced in 2016/17,
making 2019/20 final year. Rents for new tenants must also reflect the 1%
per annum reduction. Central government has announced that rents can
increase from 2020/21, by CPI + 1% which is equal to 1.5% for the 21/22
uplift.

Page 50



19.20

19.21

Where tenants are eligible for receipt of Housing Benefit, the level of
benefit will reflect the lower rent. However, a small number of tenants may
be subject to the overall benefit cap. The introduction of Universal Credit
in Croydon has begun to have an impact on rent collection rates. Rates
are likely to continue to drop as tenants move from receiving housing
benefit to wuniversal credit when they experience a change in
circumstances, impacting on the levels of bad debt that the Council must
provide for.

Social rents in Croydon are currently approximately 32%-35% of the
private sector equivalent, as shown in the table below. New build council
properties are let at a London Affordable Rent which is based on the GLA
guidance for London at 65% of the comparable private sector market rent.

Table 22 — Comparison of rents in Croydon

Number of
Bedrooms

Social
Rent (per
month)
2020/21

Social
Rent (per
month)
2021/22

London
Affordable
Rent

(per month)
2020/21

London
Affordable
Rent

(per month)
2021/22

Social
rent as %
of local
market
rent

LAR as %
of average
local
market
rent

-_—

£459.51

£466.40

£682.33

£692.56

34%

73%

£518.14

£525.91

£722.37

£733.21

33%

54%

£590.85

£599.71

£762.54

£773.98

32%

43%

Service Charges

19.22

19.23

19.24

In 2021/22, itis proposed that service charges increase by 1.5%, following
a 2% increase in 2020/21.This will ensure that the level of service charge
reflects the costs incurred. A full review of the costs was delayed due to
the events of 2020 but will be considered as part of the forward plans for
the HRA

The charges for 2021/22 will therefore be:

Table 23 —2021/22 Tenant Service Charges

2020/21 | 2021/22 | Change

Tenant Service Charges

Caretaking

£10.38pw

£10.54

£0.16

Grounds Maintenance

£2. 14pw

£2.17

£0.03

Heating charges

Only a small number of tenants use communal heating systems and are
charged a fixed weekly amount for the gas they use. Apart from the
Handcroft Road Estate, all other schemes are retirement housing
schemes for older people. Heating charges will be adjusted to ensure that
they align to actual costs incurred. This will result in some increases and
some decreases for tenants of no more than 5%.

Page 51



19.25

19.26

20.0

20.1

20.2

20.3

21.0

21.1

Garages and parking spaces

Rents for garages and parking spaces were not increased for 2020/21 and
so it is proposed that an increase to garage rents will be applied for
2021/22. Any proposed increase to parking charges on must be consulted
upon — this is planned to increase charges for 2022/23

Table 24— 2021/22 Parking and Garage Charges

[2020/21 | 2021/22 | Change
Parking Spaces
Tenants £7.00pw | £7.00pw £0.00pw
Non-Tenants £9.62pw | £9.62pw £0.00pw
Garages
Avg. Rent* |£13.13 [ £13.33 | £0.20pw

Voids and Bad Debts

The loss of income associated with void properties is assumed at 0.9% for
2021/22.

Treasury Management

The S151 Officer is responsible for setting up and monitoring the
Prudential Indicators in accordance with the Council’s Capital Strategy.
The details are set out in the Treasury Management Strategy which is
recommended to Cabinet for approval as a separate item on this agenda.

The prime function of the treasury management operation is to ensure that
cash flow is adequately managed. This requires careful management of
all cash balances within the Council’s bank accounts. The contribution the
treasury management function makes to the achievement of the Council’s
objectives is critical, as the balance of debt and investment operations
ensures liquidity or the ability to meet spending commitments as they fall
due, either as day-to-day revenue spend or for larger capital projects. The
treasury operation carefully assesses the balance of the interest costs of
debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits as this impacts
directly on the Council’s finances.

The Treasury service are also responsible in managing the Council’s debt
balances. The Council has a debt balance of £1.47bn as at the end of
December 2020 which incurs significant interest and Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) charge. It is important that the Council considers
strategies that proactively reduces this debt balance and to help improve
the direct charges to the Revenue account, which will bring the Council
into a better financial position.

Statement of the Section 151 Officer on reserves and balances and
robustness of estimates for purposes of the Local Government Act
2003.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial

Page 52



21.2

21.3

21.4

Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the budget estimates and
adequacy of the planned reserves when the council tax decision is being
made by the Council, this forms part of the statutory advice from the
Section 151 officer to the Council in addition to their advice throughout the
year in the preparation of the budget for 2021/22. The Chief Financial
Officer and Section 151 Officer statutory responsibility resides with the
Interim Director of Finance, Investment and Risk. This is his statement
under the Section 25 requirement of the Act.

All Members of the Council have been advised of the financial challenges
the Council faces over the next financial year, the medium and longer
term. The levels of government funding for 2021/22 have been clearly
identified in this report and it must be recognised and understood that a
one year funding settlement creates a level of future year uncertainty and
therefore creates a financial planning risk. In addition, in regards to the
request for Capitalisation Direction a response from MHCLG has not at
the time of writing this report been received. The Council is seeking £150m
in capitalisation direction support which is necessary to balance this
budget and deal with 2020/21 overspends.

Until 2019/20 the Council in common with other local authorities
experienced substantial reductions to Local Government funding. 2020/21
saw a slight increase in our baseline funding however the pressures
experienced since the start of 2020/21 have had a significant impact on
the Council’s financial position. A marginal increase in baseline funding
into 2021/22 and the ability to raise Council Tax by 4.99% has further
supported increased funding. In taking decisions on any budget all
Members must first and foremost understand the underlying funding
changes which the Council faces and set these associated decisions
within the context of the overall financial environment the Council faces.

These continue to be very challenging times for Croydon Council and
therefore it is certain that further difficult choices will be required over the
coming budget cycle if the Council is to develop a solid financial foundation
and achieve the delivery of a balanced outturn in 2021/2022 and in future
years. The refreshed Medium Term Financial Strategy which will be
presented to Cabinet in July 2021 will provide an update for Members on
the future financial challenges the Council expects to face as well as
progress made on the 21/22 Budget and the Renewal Plan. This
refreshed document will include the full impact of the review of the
Council’s company and property investments with a view to limiting
liabilities and proposals for transforming the operation of its services so as
to deliver good performance on an affordable basis .This will form a strong
robust platform and tool to develop and manage future budgets.

In forming my statement of the robustness of the budget estimates and
adequacy of planned reserves this position has been reviewed in detail
with the Chief Executive and Executive Leadership Team and my
conclusions and assumptions have been reported to the Cabinet as part
of the Council's overall governance and financial stewardship
arrangements. It is important that there is buy in and ownership at all levels
from both political leadership and officers that there is a need for a more
robust financial process for providing services within budget, than has
hitherto existed and the expectation must be that services can be and
must be delivered within the budget as set.

Page 53



21.5

21.6

21.7

21.8

21.9

All Members must also be aware that the calculation of the budget is, in
its simplest form, dependent on three key factors, which are set in the
context of the level of support from central government, these are:

a) The structural growth and savings in service expenditure or income;
b) The level of increase in local taxation (council tax); and
c) The level of reserves and balances.

With regard to the Housing Revenue Account, in 2020/21 where Local
Authorities were allowed to raise Housing Rents by CPI+1%. This
proposal continues into 2021/22 and this will ensure that the years of lost
income from the 1% reduction in rents better supports the upkeep of our
housing stock and support tenants in a better way. The updated 30 year
HRA Business Plan shows a stable position however the Council need to
keep a close eye on pressures in regards to repairs and maintenance and
more importantly the investment that will be needed to for Fire Safety
works. The development of new housing units within the HRA including
the purchase of any units will need to be cost neutral in terms of revenue
income covering the costs of managing and maintaining the new units and
servicing debt.

Growth, Savings and income options in service expenditure

Proposals for growth, savings and income generation in service
expenditure are ultimately a matter of political judgment balancing the
needs and priorities of the borough within the available revenue resources.
In balancing such decisions Members must have regard to the
professional advice of officers in such matters as service need, statutory
responsibility, changes to Government legislation, demographic factors
(particularly in respect of demand-led services), unavoidable cost
pressures whilst always having regard to the need to remain with the
statutory requirement to balance the budget and to keep within that budget
and available reserves once the budget is set. This report forms part of
that advice.

The Level of Reserves and Balances

The level of reserves and balances are principally the responsibility of the
s151 officer and are key to ensure the financial sustainability of the
Council.

The Current level of Reserves are very low for the size of Croydon and
historic mismanagement of this reserve balance has resulted in placing
the Council in very weak position. The exact level of current bought
forward reserves is currently under discussion with the External Auditor
and cannot be firmed up until the 2019/20 audit of the accounts has been
completed. In the light of this it is not possible to state with certainty as
required under section 25 (1)(b)of the Local Government Act 2003; that
the reserves are adequate until the audit is completed, however it should
be noted that the 2021/22 Budget and the MTFS includes a clear plan to
build up the reserve balance and £20m is being earmarked as part of the
20/21 planned capitalisation directive for contribution to the General
Balance. With further a further increase of £10m 21/22. In light of the

Page 54



21.10

21.11

22.0

22.1

22.2

Covid-19 pandemic the need to have a stronger reserve balance is clear
as it allows the Council to create a necessary buffer to tackle unforeseen
risks.

Earmarked reserves are also relevant in supporting the budget and
objectives of the council. The level of earmarked reserves reflects a
number of policy decisions by the council and supports the revenue
budget. The decision to use earmarked reserves for particular purposes
needs to reflect the financial strategy objectives of the council. Earmarked
reserves have reduced over the last 3 years and are expected to be in the
region of £10m at the end of 2020/21. This is a position that needs to be
kept under review. The Council has previously relied upon the increased
flexibility on the use of capital receipts which allowed the authority to use
these to support transformation projects. This funding pays for capacity
that would previously have to be funded from earmarked reserves. This
option will need to be kept under review as capital receipts become
available.

Despite budgets being calculated on most likely estimates, not the best
estimates basis, the budget contains significant challenges in terms of the
delivery of efficiency savings as well as managing demand led pressures
and income generation. The Council has set in place plans to deliver
departmental efficiencies and generate an additional income of £40m.
Discussions with MHCLG have drawn attention to the need for potential
flexibility in granting the capitalisation directive to enable the Council to
deal with any proper accounting adjustments with regard to bad debt
provision or impairment costs which will still be being crystallised. This
flexibility is assumed in making this statement.

The external financial environment does remain volatile due to the
pandemic. However, subject to:

e the Council introducing a strong corporate process to review and
monitor spend throughout the year (mirroring to a degree the current
s114 spending control panel),

e corporate and political buy in to the new arrangements combined with
, prioritising the improvement of and compliance with the financial
management arrangements,

e vigorously reducing expenditure as set out in Appendix A and

e subject to the receipt of the capitalisation directive at the sum
requested

it is confirmed that the estimates as set out are robust as required by
section 25 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY

The 2021/21 budget has been presented to Scrutiny and Overview
committee on 16" February 2021. The committee had the opportunity to
scrutinise the budget setting process as part of the Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources question time.

At the Scrutiny meeting the draft budget and all savings, income and

growth options were presented. This report enabled members to be
briefed on the financial context and challenges the Council faces and

Page 55



23.0

23.1

23.2

23.3

24.0

241

25.0

25.1

25.2

updated the Committee on the assumptions made in setting the 2021/22
budget.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

As all Members are aware, setting a budget for 2021/22 that is robust,
balanced and deliverable has been extremely challenging particularly as
the Council is within a S114 and has had to deal with historic financial
management issues. This has involved a number of difficult decisions for
the Council and a lot of work has gone into building the budget to deal with
historic issues and errors. The Council faces increasingly challenging
choices over the medium term to longer term within the context of its own
funding position, the national economy and the level of funding available
to the public sector as a whole.

This budget report is based on the current financial outturn projections for
the current year. If any of the projections change significantly, these will
have to be taken in to account either in year and urgent action taken to
reduce expenditure in 2021/22.

Appendix C and D contains the legally required recommendations to
Council for setting the budget and Council Tax for 2021/22.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The report contains the financial implications of the options to deliver a
balanced budget for 2021/22 and the draft capital programme for 2021/20
to 2023/24.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
Budget and Council Tax Setting

The Head of Commercial and Property Law comments on behalf of the
Interim Director of Law and Governance that, as noted earlier in this report,
due to the Council’s financial position, a notice under section 114 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1988 has been issued on two occasions
in the last financial year. In considering the recommendations in this
report, Cabinet and Full Council needs to have full regard to the Council’s
overall financial position as detailed in this report.

The provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 sets out what
the Council has to base its budget calculations upon, and require the
Council to set a balanced budget with regard to the advice of the Council’s
section 151 officer. The setting of the budget is a function reserved to full
Council, which needs to consider the draft budget which has been
recommended for approval by Cabinet. Once the budget has been agreed
by full Council, the Executive cannon make any decisions which conflict
with it although virements and in-year changes can be me in accordance
with the Council’s financial regulations.

Page 56



25.3

254

25.5

25.6

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance
Officer to report on the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes
of calculating the Council Tax and the adequacy of reserves both of which
are contained within this report.

Section 30(6) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 provides that
the Council is required to set its budget (including Council Tax rates)
before 11" March 2021 for the financial year 2021/22, although failure to
set a budget within the deadline does not invalidate the budget. A delay
to agreeing the budget may, however, have significant financial
administrative and legal implications including potentially an individual
liability for those members who contributed to the failure to set the budget.
Failing to set the budget would also make the Council vulnerable to a
judicial review challenge initiated potentially by the Secretary of State or
any other person with a sufficient interest in the Council setting a budget
(which could include a council tax payer). When considering the budget
proposals the Cabinet and Council will be mindful of their fiduciary duty to
ensure that the Council’'s resources are used in a prudent and
proportionate manner. Members are required to have regard to their
statutory duties whilst bearing in mind the requirement to act reasonably
when taking in to account the interests of the Council Tax payers and
Croydon’s

The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended), requires the
Council as billing authority to determine whether its relevant basic amount
of council tax for a financial year is excessive. Ifitis excessive then there
is a duty under s.52ZF - s.52Z| to hold a referendum. Determining whether
the Council Tax is excessive must be decided in accordance with a set of
principles determined by the Secretary of State and approved by a
resolution of the House of Commons. The Thresholds for 2021-22 provide
that local authorities with responsibility for social care, such as Croydon,
must hold a referendum if council tax is to be increased by 5% or more.
Council tax for general spending requires a referendum if it rises by 2%
or more, alongside a maximum 3% ‘social care precept’. The ‘adult social
care precept’ is technically not a ‘precept’ but additional headroom within
the referendum regime for selected local authorities.

The procedure to be followed in developing the budget proposals as
detailed in the report are set out in the Budget and Policy Framework
Procedure Rules provided in Part 4.C of the Council’s Constitution. To
deliver some of the budget proposals action may be required which should
be undertaken in accordance with statutory requirements including any
legal requirements for consultation and equality impact assessments.
Members will be aware of the requirement to consider the Council’s
obligations under the Equality Act 2010 as detailed more fully in the
Equalities Considerations, section 23 below.

Approved by Sean Murphy, Head of Commercial and Property Law

(Deputy Monitoring Officer) on behalf of the Interim Director of Law and
Governance

Page 57



26.0

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

26.5

27

271

27.2

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT

The implementation of the efficiency and cuts programme will in a number
of instances necessitate a change of structure and skill mix of staff and/or
change of working practices. Where a redundancy is being ‘contemplated’
the unions must be informed. If subsequently a redundancy is actually
‘proposed’ then the employer is immediately obliged to consult with the
unions and staff for a minimum statutory period before any decisions and
formal notification of redundancy is issued. The organisation will take
these considerations into account in planning for the implementation of
any structural reform.

Where restructures or transfers are proposed the Council’s existing
policies and procedures must be observed.

Pay Policy Statement

The Council aims to ensure that its remuneration packages are fair,
equitable and transparent and offer suitable reward for the employment of
high quality staff with the necessary skills and experience to deliver high
quality services.

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the
“‘power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the
authority thinks fit”. In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act, this
Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy for 2021/22 on:

26.4.1 The remuneration of its senior staff including chief officers
26.4.2 The remuneration of its lowest paid employees

26.4.3 The relationship between the remuneration of its senior staff,
including chief officers, and the remuneration of staff who are
not chief officers

The pay policy statement is at Appendix G. The Council are required to
approve the pay policy on an annual basis and therefore this will be
considered as part of the budget decision of the Council on the 2nd March
2020.

Approved by: Sue Moorman — Director of Human Resources

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS

Under the Public Sector Equality Duty of Equality Act 2010, decision
makers must evidence consideration of any potential impacts of proposals
on groups who share the protected characteristics, before decisions are
taken. This includes any decisions relating to how authorities act as
employers; how they develop, evaluate and review policies; how they
design, deliver and evaluate services, and also how they commission and
procure services from others.

Section 149 of the Act requires public bodies to have due regard to the
need to:

Page 58



27.3

27.4

27.5

27.6

27.7

27.8

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct prohibited by the Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected
characteristic and people who do not share it; and

o foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and
people who do not share it.

Protected characteristics defined by law include race and ethnicity,
disability, sex, gender reassignment, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy
and maternity, and religion or belief.

Having due regard means there is a requirement to consciously address
the three tenets of the Equality Duty within decision-making processes.
By law, assessments must contain sufficient information to enable the
local authority to show it has paid ‘due regard’ to the equalities duties; and
identified methods for mitigating or avoiding adverse impact on people
sharing protected characteristics. Where a decision is likely to result in
detrimental impact on any group with a protected characteristic it must be
justified objectively.

As a result, budget proposals have been subject to the Council’s own
equality impact anaylisis processes (EIA) between Deceomber 20 and
January 21, as part of a risk-based approach to analyse potential
equalities impact of budget proposals. Budget holders have identified
where proposals are likely likely to have a disproportionate impact on
those with protected characteristics (i.e.race, sex, disability, religion or
belief, sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity, and age).

In some instances budget holders have extended the equalities
consideration to include analysis of non-statutory factors - such as
language, socio-economic and health and social wellbeing. Where
adverse impact has been identified mitigating actions have been specified.

In developing its detailed budget proposals for 2020/21 the Council has
sought to achieve best practice in equality and inclusion. The Council
recognises that it has to make difficult decisions in order to reduce its
overall expenditure to meet Government cuts in grant funding and to
deliver a balanced budget while ensuring that it is able to respond
positively to increases in demand for essential services, and meet its legal
equality obligations at the same time. In doing so it endeavours to best
meets the specific needs of residents, including those groups that share a
“protected characteristic”.

Through its budget proposals, the Council will also seek to identify
opportunities to improve services and the quality of life for all Croydon
residents while minimising any adverse impacts of decisions, particularly
in regard to groups that share protected characteristics. It is guided by
the broad principles of equality and inclusion and has carried out equality
impact assessments to secure delivery of that duty, including such
consultation as required.

An equality analysis has been completed in respect of the overall Council

Page 59



27.9

27.10

28.0

28.1

29.0

29.1

30.0

30.1

Tax increase which will apply to all households in the borough. While this
increase is relatively modest, it will nonetheless impact those on low and
fixed incomes and in particular those affected by changes to the benefit
system and no longer qualify for Council Tax Support. This segment of
the population is more likely to live in the most deprived areas in the
borough where there is a greater proportion of Black Asian and Minority
ethnicity residents. This has to be balanced against the additional amount
raised through the Adult Social Care charge which will contribute to
meeting the expected increase in demand for these services. The
additional income will benefit Croydon’s most vulnerable adults and
families, likely to also be in this protected group. In addition the Council
will continue, through the Council Tax Support scheme to provide financial
relief for vulnerable households including:

- Pensioners on low incomes.

- People that are in receipt of disability living allowance or employment
support allowance.

. People that are in receipt of income support.

- Single parents with a child or children aged under five.

As part of wider overall welfare support provided, residents having
difficulties with their payments are offered practical budgeting advice and
support as well as help in finding work through the Council’'s Gateway
service. These provisions and the support available are highlighted in the
customer’s Council Tax bills.

In respect of specific proposals as outlined in Appendix A, it is likely that
some proposals may result in new policies or policy or service changes,
in this instance each proposal will be accompanied by an equality analysis
which will inform the final proposal and its implementation, on a case by
case basis made available at the time of decision.

Approved by Barbara Grant on behalf of Yvonne Okiyo, Equalities
Manager

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no direct environmental considerations arising from this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT

There are no savings which should impact upon this Corporate Priority.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS/PROPOSED DECISION

The council has a duty to set a balanced budget and therefore the
proposals set out in the report achieve this duty.

Page 60



31.0 OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

31.1 Various other options were considered in terms of council tax levels,
investments and savings. These are ultimately decisions of policy and
political choice.

REPORT CONTACT: Nish Popat, Interim Head of Corporate Finance

APPENDICES:

Appendix A — Revenue savings, income and growth options
Appendix B — Summary of Revenue Estimates

Appendix C — Council Tax Bands

Appendix D — Council Tax Recommendations

Appendix E — Response to Provisional Local Government Settlement
Appendix F — Dedicated Schools Grant

Appendix G — Pay Policy Statement

Appendix H — 20/21 Q3 Budget Monitoring Report

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Children. Families and Education

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 TOTAL 2021/24
;r:;posal Proposal Name: Saa\:zg;/::;::::l e FTE £m £m £m £m
CFE Sav 02 |Reconfiguration of Early Help Services Saving 0.0 (0.424) (0.185) 0.000 (0.609)
CFE Sav 03 [Reconfiguration of Adolescent Services Saving 0.0 (1.608) 0.000 0.000 (1.608)
CFE Sav 04 |Review of Children with Disabilities Care Packages Saving 0.0 (0.384) (0.384) (0.384) (1.152)
CFE Sav 05 |Reduction in the numbers of children in care Saving 0.0 (0.794) (1.654) (1.385) (3.833)
CFE Sav 06 |Review Support for Young People where Appeal Rights Exhausted Saving 0.0 (0.295) (0.560) (0.142) (0.997)
CFE Sav 07 [Improve Practice System Efficiency Saving 0.0 (1.065) (1.450) (0.385) (2.900)
CFE Sav 08 |Embed Systemic Practice Model Saving 0.0 (0.272) 0.000 0.000 (0.272)
CFE Sav 17 |Release of one off investment / full year effect of savings from 2020/21 Saving 0.0 (1.462) 0.000 0.000 (1.462)
CFE Sav 15/(Staffing Review Saving 0.0 (1.471) 0.000 0.000 (1.471)
CFE Sav 09 [Review Children’s Centres Delivery Model Saving 0.0 (0.660) (0.240) 0.000 (0.900)
CFE Sav 10 |Reduce Non-Statutory Education Functions Saving 0.0 (0.587) (0.221) 0.000 (0.808)
;JU CFE Sav 12 |Early Learning Collaboration Contract Saving 0.0 (0.082) 0.000 0.000 (0.082)
«Q CFE Sav 14 |Cease Family Group Conference Service Saving 0.0 (0.203) 0.000 0.000 (0.203)
g CFE Sav 13 |Croydon Music & Arts (CMA) Saving 0.0 (0.126) 0.000 0.000 (0.126)
w Total Savings 0.0 (9.433) (4.694) (2.296) (16.423)
CFE Gro 01 |Children Looked After Placements - fund Demographic and Cost Pressures Growth 0.0 8.431 0.085 0.077 8.503
CFE Gro 02 |Leaving Care - fund Demographic and Cost Pressures Growth 0.0 2.031 0.000 0.000 2.031
CFE Gro 03 [Children with Disabilities - fund Demographic and Cost Pressures Growth 0.0 6.477 0.000 0.000 6.477
CFE Gro 08 |Realignment of Budgets where other funding sources have ceased Growth 0.0 1.719 0.000 0.000 1.719
CFE Gro 07 [Realignment of Budgets from 2020/21 Growth 0.0 0.909 0.000 0.000 0.909
CFE Gro 04 |SEND Strategy - support inclusion and access to local provision Growth 0.0 0.866 0.000 0.000 0.866
(T;‘:::‘:’ " 0.0 20.433 0.085 0.077 20,505
Total For Children, Families & Education Department 0.0 11.000 | (4.609) | (2.219) 4172




79 abed

Health, Wellbeing, Adults

Appendix A

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 TOTAL 2021/24
Proposal Proposal Name: Savings/Income FTE £m £m £m £m
Ref and Growth
HWA Sav 01 |Reduction of Welfare Rights Saving (5.0) (0.442) (0.088) 0.000 (0.530)
HWA Sav 06 |Baseline Savings - Disabilities Operational Budget Saving 0.0 (3.015) (4.371) (5.570) (12.956)
HWA Sav 07 |Stretch Savings - Disabilities Operational Budget Saving 0.0 (1.367) (1.213) 0.293 (2.287)
HWA Sav 08 |Review of Contracts - OBC Commissioning, Working Age Adults Saving 0.0 (0.600) (0.586) 0.000 (1.186)
HWA Sav 09 |Baseline Savings - Mental Health Operational Budget Saving 0.0 (0.459) (0.683) (0.881) (2.023)
HWA Sav 10 |Stretch Savings - Mental Health Operational Budget Saving 0.0 (0.225) (0.201) 0.047 (0.379)
HWA Sav 13 |Reduction in Placements & Accommodation NRPF Budget Saving 0.0 (0.200) (0.100) (0.100) (0.400)
HWA Sav 15|Croydon Discretionary Support - Reduction in service Saving (1.0) (0.285) (0.007) 0.000 (0.292)
HWA Sav 16 |Croydon Discretionary Support - Deletion of service Saving (2.0) (0.235) (0.007) 0.000 (0.242)
HWA Sav 17 [Contact centre and Access Croydon - Reduction in line management Saving (2.0) (0.087) (0.008) 0.000 (0.095)
HWA Sav 18 |Restructure in Gateway Services Saving (2.0) (0.114) (0.021) 0.000 (0.135)
HWA Sav 19 |Savings on care provision - ASC Older People Saving 0.0 (2.599) (3.195) (3.019) (8.814)
HWA Sav 22 |Income from Care UK Beds released to self- funders Saving 0.0 (0.254) (0.264) (0.275) (0.793)
HWA Sav 24 [Savings on TfL Freedom Pass due to reduction in usage Saving 0.0 (2.375) 0.000 0.000 (2.375)
HWA Sav 25 |Increase in Homelessness Prevention Grant Saving 0.0 (1.679) 0.000 0.000 (1.679)
HWA Sav 23 |Staffing Review Saving 0.0 (3.558) 0.000 0.000 (3.558)
Total Savings (12.0) (17.494) (10.745) (9.505) (37.743)
HWA Gro 02 |Growth to fund current Activity/Run Rate Growth 0.0 19.048 0.000 0.000 19.048
HWA Gro 06 |Growth to fund Cost Inflation in Care UK Contract Growth 0.0 0.254 0.264 0.275 0.793
HWA Gro 07 ICDSrrec:;/vst:rtec;fund care packages/placements projected demographic and cost Growth 0.0 5921 5209 5.065 15.495
HWA Gro 05 |Emergency/Temporary Accommodation Officers Growth 7.0 0.311 0.000 0.000 0.311
HWA Gro 10 |Care package/placements inflation above Corporate Allowance Growth 0.0 0.000 1.387 1.479 2.866
HWA Gro 11 |Progression Team Growth 0.0 0.360 0.000 0.000 0.360
HWA Gro xx [Rebase income from Health Budget Growth 0.0 4.000 0.000 0.000 4.000




G9 abed

Appendix A

HWA Gro xxx S;zmt;;zftjsnedwc:zzographic and inflation pressures in Community Growth 0.0 0.057 0.059 0.061 0176
Total Growth 7.0 29.251 6.919 6.880 43.049
Total For Health, Wellbeing, Adults Department | (0) | 11757 | (3.826) | (2.625) 5.306
Place

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 TOTAL 2021/24
::;Posal Proposal Name: SZ‘::SQZI::;‘::G’ FTE £m £m £m £m
PLA Sav 03 |[Closure of Libraries Buildings Saving 7.7 0.009 (0.404) 0.000 (0.395)
PLA Sav 20 |Closure of South Norwood Library Saving 2.0 0.000 (0.100) 0.000 (0.100)
PLA Sav 21 |Combining posts across Museum and Libraries Saving 0.1 (0.073) 0.000 0.000 (0.073)
PLA Sav 05 |Economic Development Team Streamlined Service Saving (5.6) (0.208) (0.052) 0.000 (0.260)
PLA Sav 06 |Move to Streamlined Regeneration Team Saving (3.0) (0.153) (0.051) 0.000 (0.204)
PLA Sav 18 |Economy & Jobs - Remove pressure from general fund Saving (1.3) (0.066) 0.000 0.000 (0.066)
PLA Sav 26 |Savings on Building Closures / Disposals Saving 0.0 (0.126) (0.452) (0.112) (0.690)
PLA Sav 25 |Savings on Facilities Management Saving 0.0 (0.333) 0.000 0.000 (0.333)
PLA Sav 19 |Merge parks and green spaces Saving (2.0) (0.369) (0.080) 0.000 (0.449)
PLA Sav 07 |Reduce Spatial Planning (Local Plan Team and Place Making Team) Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.484) 0.000 (0.484)
PLA Sav 11 |Cease Specialist Nursery Transport Saving 0.0 (0.113) (0.057) 0.000 (0.170)
PLA Sav 10 |ANPR camera enforcement Saving 0.0 (5.025) (3.180) (3.401) (11.606)
PLA Sav 24 |Parking Charges Increases Saving 0.0 (3.014) 0.000 0.000 (3.014)
PLA Sav 08 |Public Realm - Staffing Review Saving 8.0 (0.270) (0.090) 0.000 (0.360)
PLA Sav 23 |Providers' Savings Proposals Saving 0.0 (0.166) 0.000 0.000 (0.166)
PLA Sav 12 |Revised Landlord Licensing Scheme Saving 0.0 1.500 (2.300) 0.000 (0.800)
PLA Sav 13 |Night Time Noise Reduction Service Saving (2.0) (0.085) (0.028) 0.000 (0.113)
PLA Sav 22 |Re-introduce bulky waste charges Saving 0.0 (0.307) 0.000 0.000 (0.307)
PLA Sav 09 |Reviewing provision of Household Reuse and Recycling Centres (HRRCs) Saving 0.0 (0.011) (0.100) 0.000 (0.111)
PLA Sav 01 |Reduce the Antisocial Behaviour Team Saving 0.0 (0.080) 0.000 0.000 (0.080)
PLA Sav 04 |Reduce Functions and Team in the Violence Reduction Unit Saving 0.0 (0.204) 0.000 0.000 (0.204)
PLA Sav 27 |15% Immediate Measures Staffing Savings Saving 0.0 (3.665) 0.000 0.000 (3.665)




99 abed

Appendix A

Total Savings 3.9 | (12.759) | (7.378) | (3.513) (23.650) |
PLA Gro 06 |Unachievable FM Staff Savings Growth 0.0 0.100 0.000 0.000 0.100
PLA Gro 09 |Reduction of recharges of revenue costs to capital Growth 0.0 1.360 0.000 0.000 1.360
PLA Gro 05 |Highways Maintenance Growth Growth 0.0 0.400 1.000 1.000 2.400
PLA Gro 10 |Active Lives PH Funding Growth 0.0 0.418 0.000 0.000 0.418
PLA Gro 01 |Violence Reduction Management - Sufficient Revenue Costs Growth 0.0 0.082 0.000 0.000 0.082
PLA Gro 07 [Investment Property Income Decline Growth 0.0 6.445 (0.150) 0.000 6.295
PLA Gro 08 |Landlords Rent Growth Growth 0.0 1.297 (0.050) 0.000 1.247
Removed Building Control Growth 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total Growth 0.0 10.102 0.800 1.000 11.902
Total For Place Department 39 | (2657) | (6.578) | (2513 (11.748) |
Resources

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 TOTAL 2021/24
FIOPOSal (oo osal Name: SavingsTincome | prg £m £m £m £m
RES Sav 11 [Voluntary Community Services Small Grants Saving 0.0 (0.100) 0.000 0.000 (0.100)
RES Sav 10 |Rent Subsidy Saving 0.0 (0.244) 0.000 0.000 (0.244)
RES Sav 09 |Policy Team Reduction Saving (2.0) (0.110) 0.000 0.000 (0.110)
RES Sav 07 |Communities Team Reduction Saving (2.0) (0.123) 0.000 0.000 (0.123)
RES Sav 20 |Community Safety Fund Reduction Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.400) 0.000 (0.400)
RES Sav 29 |Stop Your Croydon publication Saving 0.0 (0.050) 0.000 0.000 (0.050)
RES Sav 13 |Reduction to the Communications Team Saving (7.6) (0.218) 0.000 0.000 (0.218)
RES Sav 27 |Removal of campaigns and stop campaigns budget Saving 0.0 (0.050) 0.000 0.000 (0.050)
Rev Savzs e o Croion D Senvs oprevdesretuestseee ot | saung |00 | 09 | o) | oo0 |
RES Sav 24 V(?/;?K?;r;eDigital Services Reduction in IT contract costs due to smaller Saving 0.0 (0.050) (0.100) 0.000 0450,
RES Sav 23 |Extensions or procurements of core IT contracts Saving 0.0 (0.340) (0.150) (0.250) (0.740)
RES Sav 25 |Rent out LBC capacity to Brent Saving 0.0 (0.072) 0.000 0.000 (0.072)




/9 abed

Appendix A

RES Sav 22 |Croydon Digital Services Large Format Digital Advertising Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.045) (0.150) (0.195)
RES Sav 16 |Reduce staffing in Mayor's Office Saving 0.0 (0.098) 0.000 0.000 (0.098)
RES Sav 15 |Deliver governance Review in cost neutral way Saving 0.0 (0.250) 0.000 0.000 (0.250)
RES Sav 18 |Scale back members special responsibility allowances Saving 0.0 (0.303) 0.000 0.000 (0.303)
RES Sav 04 |Deletion of legacy oracle financials Saving 0.0 0.000 0.000 (0.060) (0.060)
RES Sav 03 |Reduce Learning and Organisational Development service Saving 0.0 0.000 0.000 (0.135) (0.135)
RES Sav 05 aR:SdeeSsslgqneﬁ?re teams within the human resources service based on workflow Saving 0.0 0.000 0.000 (0.200) 0200,
RES Sav 06 |HR Management Team Reorganisation Saving 0.0 0.000 0.000 (0.210) (0.210)
RES Sav 01 |Deletion of Learning and Development manager post Saving 0.0 (0.080) 0.000 0.000 (0.080)
RES Sav 30 |Consolidation of Training Spend Saving 0.0 (0.200) 0.000 0.000 (0.200)
RES Sav 12 |HWA contract reductions Saving 0.0 (0.242) (0.110) (0.075) (0.427)
RES Sav 32 |Community Equipment Service Income Generation Saving 0.0 (0.075) 0.000 (0.050) (0.125)
RES Sav 31 |Business intelligence Saving (1.0) (0.065) 0.000 0.000 (0.065)
RES Sav 33 gi\ée;/:/]gfpsé%f)ﬂng portfolio across C&P services (Procurement, HWA, Place, Saving (5.0) (0.260) (0.175) (0.100) 0535
RES Sav 36 |Consolidate debt collection Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.060) 0.000 (0.060)
RES Sav 37 |Simpler Council Tax Support Scheme Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.250) 0.000 (0.250)
RES Sav 38 |Automation Of Revenue Processes Saving (1.0) (0.050) (0.100) 0.000 (0.150)
RES Sav 39 |Digital by default for billing Saving 0.0 0.000 (0.120) 0.000 (0.120)
RES Sav 40 |ICT savings Saving 0.0 (0.010) (0.153) (0.047) (0.210)
RES Sav 41 |15% Immediate Measures Staffing Savings Saving 0.0 (1.817) 0.000 0.000 (1.817)
Total Savings (18.6) (4.982) (1.693) (1.277) (7.952)
RES Gro 07 [Agency rebate internal model Growth 0.0 3.610 0.000 0.000 3.610
RES Gro 12 |Croydon Equipment Service Pension Cost Shortfall Growth 0.0 0.308 0.000 0.000 0.308
RES Gro 11 |Business Intelligence Team - permanent resource Growth 3.0 0.212 0.000 0.000 0.212
RES Gro 04 |Correction of reliance on capital funding for business as usual works Growth 0.0 4.054 (0.325) (0.355) 3.374
Seth A Cost of May 2022 Election (Net of Reserve) Growth 0.0 0.000 0.250 (0.250) 0.000
Seth A Cost of Directly Elected Mayor Referendum Growth 0.0 0.650 (0.650) 0.000 0.000
RES Gro 05 |Build resilience for the finance team Growth 10.0 1.000 0.000 0.000 1.000
RES Gro 03 |Corporate Programme Management Office Growth 4.0 0.480 0.000 0.000 0.480
RES Gro 09 [Unachieved 20/21 Saving - Recharges to HRA Growth 0.0 2.000 0.000 0.000 2.000




89 abed

Appendix A

RES Gro 08 |Unachieved 20/21 Saving - Recharges to Capital Growth 0.0 0.500 0.000 0.000 0.500
RES Gro 14 |Removal of Gateway Income Virement Pressure Growth 0.0 0.218 0.000 0.000 0.218
RES Gro 13 [Growth to remove unachievable parking permits saving Growth 0.0 0.300 0.000 0.000 0.300
RES Gro x |Additional HR Capacity to Support Organisational Change Growth 0.0 0.253 0.005 (0.258) 0.000
Total Growth 17.0 13.585 (0.720) (0.863) 12.002
Total For Resources Department (1.6) | 8603 | (2413 | (2140 4.050
TOTAL FOR ALL DEPARTMENTS 27) | 28703 | (17.426) | (9.497) 1.780
Corporate Iltems

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 TOTAL 2021/24
Proposal Proposal Name: Savings/Income FTE £m £m £m £m
Ref and Growth
COR Sav 05 |Pension Contribution Saving 0.0 (0.589) (0.589) 0.000 (1.178)
COR Sav 06 (Increased social Care Grant Saving 0.0 (0.405) 0.000 0.000 (0.405)
COR Sav 07 |Lower Tier Services Grant Saving 0.0 (0.634) 0.000 0.000 (0.634)
COR Sav 17 |Fees and Charges Saving 0.0 (1.000) (0.200) (0.200) (1.400)
COR Sav 14 |Use of NNDR Smoothing Risk Reserve Saving 0.0 (7.000) 7.000 0.000 0.000
COR Gro 22 |Business Rates s31 Grant Funding Saving 0.0 (18.072) 24.199 0.000 6.127
COR Gro 19 |Interest Payable Saving 0.0 (0.077) (0.490) (2.569) (3.136)
COR Sav 15 [Local Council Tax Income Guarantee 20/21 Grant Saving 0.0 (4.536) 4.536 0.000 0
COR Sav 04 |Revenue Support Grant Saving 0.0 (0.078) (0.284) (0.290) (1)
COR Sav 11 |Business Rates Top-Up Grant Saving 0.0 0.000 (2.883) (0.733) (4)
COR Sav 12 |Locally Retained Business Rates Saving 0.0 (0.134) (0.526) (0.751) (1)
COR Sav 01 |Council Tax - Tax Base Changes Saving 0.0 4.045 (4.357) (2.920) (3)
COR Sav 02 [Council Tax - Social Care Precept Saving 0.0 (5.660) 0.000 0.000 (6)
COR Sav 03 |Council Tax - Band D General Increase Saving 0.0 (3.755) (4.033) (4.176) (12)
Total Savings 0.0 (37.895) 22.373 (11.639) (27.161)
COR Gro 01 |Pay Inflation Provision Growth 0.0 2.804 3.814 3.890 10.508




69 abed

Appendix A

COR Gro 02 |Contract Inflation Provision Growth 0.0 5.142 6.859 6.996 18.997
COR Gro 03 [New Homes Bonus Growth 0.0 2.161 3.400 1.768 7.329

COR Gro 05 (Bad Debt Provision Saving 0.0 0.100 0.000 0.000 0.100

COR Gro 06 [Contingency Provision Growth 0.0 3.000 5.000 5.000 13.000
COR Gro 09 (Precepts and Levies Growth 0.0 0.030 0.031 0.031 0.092

COR Gro 24 |Asylum Seekers Budget Correction Growth 0.0 2.137 0.000 0.000 2137

COR Gro 20 |Cessation of Flexible Homelessness Support Grant Growth 0.0 1.100 0.000 0.000 1.100

COR Gro 27 |Improvement Costs Growth 0.0 1.000 0.000 0.000 1.000

COR Gro 17 |Interest on Brick by Brick Loans Growth 0.0 4.592 6.908 0.000 11.500
COR Gro 18 [Dividend on Brick by Brick Investment Growth 0.0 5.200 0.000 0.000 5.200

COR Gro 25 |Other Interest Receivable Growth 0.0 1.871 0.000 0.000 1.871

COR Gro 26 [Minimum Revenue Provision Charges Growth 0.0 0.949 1.461 0.584 2.994

COR Gro 11 |Contribution to GF Balances Growth 0.0 5.000 5.000 5.000 15.000
COR Gro 04 [Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit - Council Tax Growth 0.0 2.451 0.052 0.000 2.503

COR Sav 16 |LCIG 20/21 Grant Transfer To/(From) Earmarked Reserve Growth 0.0 3.024 (4.536) 0.000 (1.512)
COR Gro 23 |Business Rates s31 Grant Smoothing Reserve Growth 0.0 17.649 (17.649) 0.000 0.000

COR Sav 13 |Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit - NNDR Growth 0.0 0.185 (1.910) 0.000 (1.725)
COR Gro 21 [NNDR Collection Fund 20-21 Deficit - Spreading Cost Growth 0.0 0.797 0.000 0.000 0.797

Total Resources - Growth 0.0 59.192 8.430 23.269 90.891
Growth

Total For Corporate items 0.0 21.297 30.803 11.630 63.730




This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF REVENUE ESTIMATES - FINANCIAL STRATEGY PLANNING MODEL

Appendix B

SERVICE DEPARTMENT 2021/22 Estimated Estimated
Budget 2022/23 2023/24
Budget Budget
£'m £'m £'m

Health, Wellbeing and Adults 143.368 139.542 136.916
Children, Families and Education 115.670 111.061 108.842
Place 61.819 55.241 52.728
Resources 31.776 29.363 27.223
Corporate ltems 8.984 18.790 29.476
NET EXPENDITURE 361.617 353.997 355.185
Contribution to provisions for Doubtful Debts 1.150 1.150 1.150
Interest (Net) 23.182 29.600 27.031
MRP 10.796 12.257 12.841
Capitalisation Direction (50.000) (25.000) (5.000)
Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) (4.574) (4.574) (4.574)
Capital Asset Charges Adjustment (33.300) (33.300) (33.300)
Contingency 1.955 6.955 11.955
Core Grants (35.941) (25.991) (24.223)
Levies 1.534 1.544 1.575
Contribution to / (from) General Balances 10.000 15.000 20.000
Contribution to / (from) Earmarked Reserves (7.000) 0.000 0.000
Budget Gap 0.000 38.278 60.411
TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT 279.419 369.917 423.051
Financed by:

Revenue Support Grant (14.205) (14.489) (14.779)
Business Rates Top Up Grant (34.192) (37.075) (37.808)
Business Rates Income (37.482) (38.008) (38.759)
Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit 4.554 2.696 2.696
Croydon Tax Element (198.094) (206.484) (213.580)
Greater London Authority Precept Element (47.254) (47.254) (47.254)
TOTAL COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT (245.348) (253.738) (260.834)

Page 71




This page is intentionally left blank



¢/ abed

COUNCIL TAX INCREASES

Appendix C

1.99% 3.00% 9.50%
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22
Croydon Croydon Croydon GLA
Council Adult Social Tax Precept Overall
Tax Care Precept Draft Tax
£ £ £ £ £
902.68 113.65 1,016.33 242.44 1,258.77
1,053.13 132.59 1,185.72 282.85 1,468.57
1,203.57 151.53 1,355.10 323.25 1,678.35
1,354.02 170.47 1,524.49 363.66 1,888.15
1,654.91 208.35 1,863.26 444.47 2,307.73
1,955.81 246.23 2,202.04 525.29 2,727.33
2,256.70 284.12 2,540.82 606.10 3,146.92
2,708.04 340.94 3,048.98 727.32 3,776.30

Band 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
Croydon Croydon GLA
Council Adult Social Croydon Precept Overall
Tax Care Precept Tax Draft Tax
£ £ £ £ £
A 883.41 84.61 968.02 221.38 1,189.40
B 1,030.65 98.71 1,129.36 258.28 1,387.64
C 1,177.88 112.81 1,290.69 295.17 1,585.87
D 1,325.12 126.91 1,452.03 332.07 1,784.10
E 1,619.59 155.11 1,774.70 405.86 2,180.56
F 1,914.06 183.31 2,097.37 479.66 2,577.03
G 2,208.53 211.52 2,420.05 553.45 2,973.50
H 2,650.24 253.82 2,904.06 664.14 3,568.20
Band D % Change
Croydon Council | Croydon Adult GLA Precept | Overall Increase
Tax Social Care
Precept
1.99% 3.00% 9.50% 5.83%
£28.90 £43.56 £31.59 £104.05 Per Annum
£0.56 £0.84 £0.61 £2.00 Per Week
2020/21 Annual increase | Weekly Increase
BAND £ £
A 69.37 1.33
B 80.93 1.56
C 92.49 1.78
D 104.05 2.00
E 127.17 2.45
F 150.30 2.89
G 173.42 3.33
H 208.10 4.00
OVERALL CHANGE

5.83%




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 2021/22

The Cabinet has considered a report in respect of the level of Council Tax for 2021/22
and the setting of the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for the forthcoming
financial year. .

In summary, the Cabinet recommends to the Council a 2021/22 Council Tax at Band
D for Croydon purposes of £1,325.12, in addition a 3.0% increase for the Adult Social
Care Levy £126.91, GLA Precept of £332.07, giving an overall Band D charge,
£1,888.15, a 1.99% increase for Croydon Council, a 3.00% increase for the adult social
care levy and a 5.9% increase for the GLA.

Following detailed consideration, the Cabinet recommends that the Council should:

(1) Approve the 2021/22 Revenue Budget of £279.421m, an increase in budget
requirement of 0.78%

(2) Approve the 2021/22 Council Tax Requirement of £198.094m.

Page 75



Appendix D

Calculation of Council Tax Requirement £000 £000| £’000

) Expenditure and other charges (as set out in
section 31A(2) (a) to (f) of the Act)

expenditure on Croydon’s services, local

) precepts and levies 876,888
(i)  [allowance for contingencies 3,830
(iii)  |transfer to General Reserves 10,000
(iv)  |transfer to Earmarked Reserves -7,000

transfer from the General Fund from the
v) Collection Fund in respect of prior year deficit 4,554
on the Collection Fund,

888,272

Less

®) Income and other credit items (in Section
31A(3) (a) to (d) of the Act)

0] Income from services 518,358

Transfer to the General Fund from the
(i) Collection Fund in respect of prior year surplus
on the Collection Fund,

(i)  |Income from Government

Capitalisation 50,000
Core Grants 35,941
Business Rates Top Up Grant 34,192
Business Rates Income 37,482
Revenue Support Grant 14,205
171,820| 690,178
Equals

The Council Tax Requirement, i.e. the amount
by which the expenditure and other charges
(C) |exceed the income and other credits.* 198,094

This is (A) above less(B) above (as per
Section 31A(4) of the Act)

Calculation of basic amount of council tax

(C) |Council Tax Requirement 198,094
Divided by

(D) |The Council's Tax base 129,941
Equals

The Basic amount of Council Tax (i.e., the
Council Tax for a Band D property to which no
relief or exemption is applicable) for services
charged to Croydon’s General Fund (This is (C)
above divided by the tax base at (D) as per
Section 31(B) of the Act)

(E) 1,524.49

* The exact figure is £198,093,755.09

Page 76



Appendix D

(F) The tax for different bands calculated as follows (as per Section 36(1) of the Act):

Council Tax for Croydon for 2021/22

Band A 6/9 x £1,524.49 = £1,016.33
Band B 7/9x £1,524.49 = £1,185.72
Band C 8/9 x £1,524.49 = £1,355.10
Band D 9/9 x £1,524.49 = £1,524.49
Band E 11/9 x £1,524.49 = £1,863.26
Band F 13/9 x £1,524.49 = £2,202.04
Band G 15/9 x £1,524.49 = £2,540.82
Band H 18/9 x £1,524.49 = £3,048.98

(G) to which is added the following precept (issued by the Mayor of London, in exercise
of the powers conferred on him by sections 82, 83, 85, 86, 88 to 90, 92 and 93 of
the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (“the 1999 Act”) and sections 40, 47 and 48
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (“1992 Act”)

GLA Precept For 2021/22

Band A 242.44
Band B 282.85
Band C 323.25
Band D 363.66
Band E 44447
Band F 525.29
Band G 606.10
Band H 727.32

(H) That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at (F) and (G)
above the Council, in accordance with section 30(2) of the local government finance
act 1992, hereby set the following amounts as the amounts of council tax for the
year 2021/22 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:-

Total Council Tax For 2021/22

Band A 1,285.77
Band B 1,468.57
Band C 1,678.35
Band D 1,888.15
Band E 2,307.73
Band F 2,727.33
Band G 3,146.92
Band H 3,776.30

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2021-22

If you are responding to this consultation by email or in writing, please reply using this
guestionnaire pro-forma, which should be read alongside the consultation document.

You should save the pro-forma on your own device, from which you can complete the
survey at your own pace and submit when you are ready.

There are 9 questions. You do not have to answer every question should you not wish
to.

Should you wish to attach further evidence or supporting information, you may attach
and send this with the pro-forma.

Please email responses to:
LGFsettlement@communities.gov.uk

Alternatively, written responses should be sent to:

Local Government Finance Settlement Team

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
2nd floor, Fry Building

2 Marsham Street

London

SW1P 4DF

Your opinions are valuable to us. Thank you for taking the time to read the consultation
document and respond.

Your Details (Required details are marked with an asterisk (*))

Full Name* LISA TAYLOR

Organisation* LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON
Address* BERNARD WEATHERILL HOUSE
Address 2 8 MINT WALK

Town/City* CROYDON

Postcode* CRO 1EA

Country

Email address* lisa.taylor@croydon.gov.uk

Phone Number 0208 760 5768 X 61438

Page 79


mailto:LGFsettlement@communities.gov.uk

Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Are the views Expressed on this form an official response from a:
London Borough.

We welcome the opportunity to comment on the 2021/22 provisional local
government finance settlement consultation and the above inflation uplift in overall
funding. We are disappointed the vast majority (85%) of the uplift will fall directly on
council tax-payers through assumed council tax increases.

We believe the overall increase in core spending power should have come from
central government funding rather than leaving councils with little choice but to raise
council tax by the maximum amount, with so much pressure already on residents
struggling through the pandemic.

Question 1

Do you agree with the Government’s proposed methodology for the
distribution of Revenue Support Grant in 2021-227?

Yes
Additional comments

Croydon Council agrees with the proposed approach to distributing the Revenue
Support Grant in 2021/22. We would welcome greater certainty with a multiyear
settlement, which would enable us to have a greater focus on medium term financial
planning.

We do remain concerned that the drivers in the formula, e.g. population, deprivation,
other aspects of need, are out of date and so does not accurately reflect Croydon’s
needs.

Page80



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 2

Do you agree with the proposed package of council tax referendum principles
for 2021-227?

No
Additional comments

We do not agree with the proposed package of council tax referendum principles for
2021/22. Council tax is the only locally determined tax and local authorities must
have full flexibility in how it is used as well as how it is set that strikes the appropriate
balance between local needs and local resources. Capping creates significant
central control over the only locally determined tax.

Given that the Adult Social Care Precept is proposed to continue for a further year,
we would urge the Government to allow full flexibility for it to be spent on both adult
and children’s social care.

Page 81



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 3

Do you agree with the Government’s proposals for the Social Care Grant in
2021-227?

Yes

Additional comments

The additional £300 million uplift in funding for social care is welcome and much
needed. We also welcome the fact that the Social Care Grant will remain
unringfenced, and conditions or reporting requirements will not be attached.

However, we continue to disagree with the proposed method for distributing funding
for both children and adult social care using solely the adult social care relative
needs formula. If the intention is for this funding to alleviate pressure on both adult
and children’s social care, its distribution should reflect relative levels of needs in
both services.

We note that this settlement represents a continuation of a short-term approach to
social care funding. We therefore welcome the Government’s commitment to set out
its long-awaited visons for social care reform in 2021, and look forward to engaging
with this process.

Page 82



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 4
Do you agree with the Government’s proposals for iBCF in 2021-22?

Yes

Additional comments

We welcome the continuation of the iBCF and agree with the proposals.

Page 83



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 5

Do you agree with the Government’s proposals for New Homes Bonus in 2021-
227

Yes

Additional comments

We welcome the proposed New Homes Bonus allocations. We are however
disappointed in the reduction of this funding stream, and the phasing out of legacy
payments. The forthcoming consultation, is an important step towards providing more
certainty regarding the future of the scheme, and we look forward to inputting on any
future reforms.

Pag@84



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 6

Do you agree with the Government’s proposal for a new Lower Tier Services
Grant, with a minimum funding floor so that no authority sees an annual
reduction in Core Spending Power?

Yes

Additional comments

We welcome the Lower Tier Services Grant, as it provides a much-needed funding
increase for service areas that have been hit hard by pandemic (including
homelessness and leisure services). We also agree in principle with a no loss
principle that a minimum funding floor implements.

Page 85



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 7

Do you agree with the Government’s proposals for Rural Services Delivery
Grant in 2021-227

No

Additional comments

Croydon Council disagrees with the provision of additional funding to rural areas
through this mechanism. All funding allocated through this separate grant could have
been distributed more fairly across all local authorities in England based on proven
need.

The additional funding for rural areas raises questions about the adequacy of funding
for urban areas, particularly the impact of population underestimation, high levels of
mobility, and the increased potential for Covid transmission in densely populated
areas. If the Government is minded to further recognise some of the financial
pressure on rural authorities, we believe that it is reasonable to expect further
consideration to be given to the unique pressures faced by urban areas such as
London, including Croydon.

Pag@86



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 8

Do you have any comments on the Government’s plan not to publish Visible
Lines?

Yes

Additional comments

We agree with the removal of visible lines from the settlement which, as stated in the
consultation document, are notional as the core settlement is not ring fenced. We
guestion why this decision has been taken now, and not last year, when the
underlying logic (removing decisions taken in previous spending reviews) has not
changed.

Page 87



Appendix E
Consultation response pro-forma

Question 9

Do you have any comments on the impact of the proposals for the 2021-22
settlement outlined in this consultation document on persons who share a
protected characteristic, and on the draft equality statement published

alongside the consultation document? Please provide evidence to support
your comments.

No comment

Additional comments

Pageo88



Appendix F

DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG)

Table 1 -2021/22 DSG Funding Breakdown

: Total
DSG Funding Blocks
£m

Schools Block (before recoupment) 281.313
High Needs Block (before recoupment) 73.100
Central Schools Services Block 6.046
Early Years Block 30.108
Total DSG Funded Services 390.567

2021/22 DSG allocation for Croydon

In 2021/22 the total DSG settlement for Croydon (including academies) is
£390.567m. Academy recoupment is estimated to be in excess of £190m in 2021/22
reducing the DSG total to £200.6m. This total will be subject to change depending
on the number of new schools that convert to academies during the year.

The funding per pupil as a result of the introduction of the National Funding Formula
(NFF) stipulates a minimum funding rate. The NFF provides two per pupil funding
rates, one for primary pupils and one for secondary pupils. In 2021/22, the
respective funding rates are £4,821 and £6,433. The 2020/21 rates per pupil were
£4,505 for primary pupils and £5,987 for secondary pupils.

The latest pupil numbers used to calculate the DSG funding are 51,022.5 for the
Schools Block and 9,648 (part time equivalent two to four year olds) within Early
Years. These numbers are based on the October 2020 Pupil Level Annual School
Census (PLASC) count, although the Early Years Census in January 2021 will be
used to update Croydon’s DSG allocation with more accurate Early Years pupil
numbers during 2021/22.

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G

Croydon Council

Pay Policy Statement 2021-22

1.

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4

15

1.6

Introduction

The Council aims to ensure that its remuneration packages are fair, equitable and
transparent and offer suitable reward for the employment of high quality staff with
the necessary skills and experience to deliver high quality services.

This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy relating to the pay of its
workforce (excluding school-based employees) as required under the Localism
Act 2011. The Localism Act requires the Council to have considered, approved
and published a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power
to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority
thinks fit”. In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act, this Pay Policy
Statement sets out the Council’s policy for 2021/22 on:

e The remuneration of its senior staff designated Chief Officers

e The remuneration of its lowest paid employees

e The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and the
remuneration of staff who are not Chief Officers

Where this policy refers to Chief Officers, this means the Chief Executive,
Executive Directors, and Directors. Where the policy refers to the Council’s
lowest-paid employees this means those that are paid on the lowest established
grade and scale point i.e. Grade 1, point 02. This definition of lowest-paid
employees has been adopted because it reflects the lowest salary payable under

the Council’s job evaluation scheme and grading structure.

1.4.1 The Council is proposing to introduce a new JNC pay scale for Chief
Officers, excluding the Chief Executive in line with new senior
management structure proposals. The new grading stricture for Croydon
Chief Officer Grades is at Appendix B and is proposed for adoption during
the financial year 2021/22.

Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay but also
charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in enhancements of pension
entitlements and termination payments.

Following the decision of the Annual Council meeting on 03 June 2014, the
Appointments Committee has delegated responsibility for approving appointments
in accordance with the threshold specified in statutory guidance issued by the
Secretary of State under section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. Government
guidance is that Full Council takes decisions about remuneration packages for new
appointments of £100,000 per year or more, as well as severance packages of
£100,000 or more

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 1

Page 91



1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2.

Appendix G

Once approved, all remuneration paid to officers will comply with this policy for the
2021-22 financial year. The statement will be reviewed in accordance with
legislation prevailing at the time.

In accordance with Part 3 of the Constitution — Responsibilities for Functions the
Chief Executive’s Scheme of Authorisations provides delegated authority to the
Director of Human Resources for pay and terms and conditions for staff other
than the Chief Executive and senior staff covered by the Joint National Council
for Chief Officers. Grading and conditions of service for senior staff are approved
by the Appointments Committee. Reference paragraph 4.2.8 and 4.2.9 of Part 3
of the Constitution Responsibilities for Functions — see extracts below:

“.....the Chief Executive’s delegation is subject to:

4.2.8 “the approval of the Director of Human Resources to the grading and
conditions of service of staff (other than those based in schools or
subject to the conditions of service of the Chief Officers and Chief
Executives J.N.C

4.2.9 the approval of the Appointments Committee to grading and conditions of
service of staff employed subject to the conditions of service of the Chief
Officers and Chief Executives J.N.C”

Subject to circumstances it may be necessary to amend this Pay Policy statement
during the financial year. Any changes or amendments made will be subject to
full Council approval.

Pay structure

The Council uses a combination of locally and nationally determined pay
structures for its workforce.

The Council will determine the appropriate grade for each job in accordance
with either the Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) Job Evaluation
Scheme or the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme depending upon the job
requirements and the level of responsibility of its employees within the
organisation. The GLPC scheme considers posts graded from Grade 1 to
Grade 17 and the Hay scheme is used for posts graded Croydon Special Range
A and B and will be used for the introduction and maintenance of newly
determined local grades for JINC senior staff, Croydon Chief Officer Grades 1-
5 to be introduced during the 2021/2022 financial year..

a) The pay structures, including basic pay, for the Chief Executive and Head of
Paid Service, Executive Directors, Directors and posts at Croydon Special
Range (CSR) level are determined locally. This will also be the case for the
proposed Croydon Chief Officer Grades to be implemented during the
2021/2022 financial year.

b) The basic pay for teachers, lecturer, youth workers and Soulbury staff is in
accordance with nationally negotiated pay structures.

c) To reflect market and industry specific factors, staff in the in-house bailiff
service have locally determined pay arrangements which includes an element

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 2

Page 92



2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

3.2.

Appendix G

of performance pay. Social Workers and social work managers in children’s
social care services receive recruitment and retention payments to reflect key
skills shortages in this sector.

d) For the majority of other staff, the Council uses a locally determined grading
structure aligned to the relevant London pay spine of the Greater London
Provincial Council.

Pay allowances other than basic pay are the subject of local or nationally
negotiated rates having been determined from time to time in accordance with
the collective bargaining arrangements and/or as determined by the Council.

Other than for the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, Executive Directors
and Directors, the Council adheres to national pay bargaining and will normally
apply a nationally negotiated cost of living pay award for staff covered by the
relevant negotiating body and any increase will be payable with effect either from
1 April for NJC and or 1 September (for Soulbury, Youth and Centrally Appointed
Teachers).

2.4.1 With the introduction of the anticipated Croydon Chief Officer Grades
during the 2021/22 financial year, with the exception of the Chief
Executive and Head of Paid Service the Council will reflect the JNC pay
award payable from 1st April, as per national pay bargaining for those
who will in future be paid on those grades.

Employees who have joined the Council as a result of a Transfer of Undertakings
Protection of Employment (TUPE) transfer may have different arrangements. In
accordance with TUPE the Council will comply with any such contractual
arrangements in relation to the pay for such employees. Should conditions arise
which support a business case for staff to be offered an opportunity to move to
Council terms and conditions this will be considered in accordance with legal
obligations.

Remuneration
For the purpose of this pay policy statement, Chief Officers include:

a) The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service; Executive Directors;
Directors;

Current remuneration for Chief Officers is set out below:

a) The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service is to be paid a spot salary of
£192,474, The salary, is subject to review every two years and is next due
to be reviewed in April 2022.

b) Executive Directors and Directors are currently paid on spot salaries as set
out in Appendix A without provision for incremental progression. Salaries
are subject to review every two years with the last review being 01 April
2019

c) It is anticipated that during 2021/22 a new pay range for Croydon Chief
Officer Grades will be introduced in line with a proposed senior

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 3

Page 93



Appendix G

management structure. This will include new Corporate Director roles and
Director posts. These roles will be placed on a grade and salary within the
Croydon Chief Officer Grades 1-5, following evaluation of their post using
the Hay job evaluation scheme with provision for incremental progression
to the top spinal point of the grade. Salaries will be reviewed in line with
national awards, as determined by the JNC for Local Authority Chief
Executives.

3.3  For the purposes of this pay statement posts defined as deputy chief officers are
those paid on Croydon Special Range grades who report to Directors, and
include:-

a) Heads of Service and certain senior staff in posts above grade 17 but
below Chief Officer. These posts are placed on a salary within Croydon
Special Range A and B following evaluation using the Hay job evaluation
scheme with provision for incremental progression to the top spinal point of
the grade. Salaries are reviewed in line with national joint council pay
awards

The grades and salary structures for Chief Officers and Croydon Special Range A and B
are shown in Appendix A.

The proposed Croydon Chief Officer Grades are shown in Appendix B

3.4  The pay of the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service is determined on
appointment with reference to market rates. In establishing market rates, the
Council will compare remuneration data from other comparable local authorities.
This allows closer benchmarking where possible to take account of factors such
as population size, social demographics, budgetary responsibilities, economic
and regeneration activity.

Additional remuneration elements

3.5 The Council does not apply any bonuses or performance payments to its senior
staff. In addition to basic pay, elements of “additional pay”, other than those that
constitute re-imbursement of expenses incurred during the fulfilment of duties, are
set out below:

a) In order to recruit or retain employees in a post at its designated grade or
spot point consideration will be given to the use of market supplements as
approved by the Director of Human Resources and Chief Executive with
such payments being subject to periodic review. Market supplements will,
when added to basic pay, not normally exceed 10% of base pay but by
formal exception may be up to 20% of base pay. Any market supplement
for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers will be recommended by the
Director of Human Resources and Chief Executive and determined by the
Appointments Committee.

b) A compulsory car allowance may be made to authorised car users at all
levels of the workforce other than to Chief Officers. The compulsory car
allowance applies to employees where driving a car is an integral feature of
the employee’s post and the employee is unable to carry out their post

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 4

Page 94



3.6

3.7

3.8

Appendix G

without providing and using their own car. The amount of the allowance
depends on the engine size and emissions of the employee’s car as shown
in Appendix C.

c) Returning Officer fees: the Council is required by the Representation of the
People Act 1983 to appoint an officer to act as the Electoral Registration
Officer (ERO) for any constituency or part of a constituency within its area
to be responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the electoral
register and to act as the Returning Officer (RO) for all elections. Such
duties attract a fee payable to the individual, paid for by the Government
except in relation to local elections. The fees are set by central government
for national elections and referenda and for local elections fees are
prescribed by and agreed on an annual basis by the Chief Executives’
London Committee, which reports into the London Councils network. The
Council’s Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer is the Chief
Executive and Head of Paid Service, as agreed by resolution of the Council
or as delegated to a committee.

In her capacity as the Council’s Electoral Registration Officer and the
Council’'s Returning Officer, the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service
may appoint deputy Electoral Registration Officers and a deputy Returning
Officer. Fees for carrying out such duties are payable to appointed
individuals.

d) From time to time consideration will be given to making additional payments,
as approved by the Director of Human Resources, to senior staff who
undertake additional and/or higher level responsibilities for example when
covering the duties of a vacant Chief Officer post. Such payments are
temporary and subject to periodic review.

Remuneration on appointment

Where employees are appointed to a grade, it is the Council’s policy to appoint all
employees on the bottom spinal point of the grade unless there are exceptional
circumstances as authorised by the relevant Director and approved by the Director
of Human Resources or in the case of senior staff, the Appointments Committee

In exceptional circumstances and subject to approval of the Director of Human
Resources, where it is necessary for a newly appointed employee to relocate and
move home to take up appointment a contribution towards certain relocation
expenses may be made. A copy of the scheme, is attached as Appendix D.

Appointments to Chief Officer posts will be made within the grade and salaries
stated for the respective post as set out in Appendix A. With the introduction of the
proposed Croydon Chief Officer Grades, once these are implemented,
appointments will be made within the grade and salaries stated for the respective
post as set out in Appendix B

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 5

Page 95



3.9

3.10

Appendix G

Redundancy payments and payments on leaving and the Restriction of Public
Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020

The Council has a single redundancy scheme which applies to all employees
including Chief Officers (see Appendix D). The Council does not make any other
payments to employees on termination of their employment other than those,
where there is a statutory or contractual requirement to do so, such as payment
for accrued and untaken annual leave.

Subject to paragraph 1.6 above, in exceptional circumstances other severance
payments may be made subject to agreement of the Chief Executive and Head of
Paid Service and the Director of Human Resources and as allowed for in the
Council’'s scheme of delegation. Such payment will take account of the Council’s
contractual and legal obligations, the Council’'s reputation and whether the
payment would have the effect of improving the Council’s financial situation.

3.11 On 4" November 2020, the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations

3.12

3.13

3.14

2020 came into force. The Regulations placed a £95,000 cap on public sector exit
payments in connection with people leaving employment or vacating office. The
£95,000 cap applied to redundancy payments (whether compulsory or voluntary)
(including statutory and contractual redundancy payments) and, significantly also
covered, pension strain costs, which arise when a Local Government Pension
Scheme pension is paid unreduced before a member’s normal pension age.

On 12t February 2021, the Government announced that it will be revoking the
Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 and issued Treasury
Directions, the Exit Payment Cap Directions 2021 which came into force on 12"
February 2021, to suspend the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments
Regulations 2020 whilst the formal process of revocation takes place. The
Government also issued Guidance which states at paragraph 3.2: ‘In light of the
withdrawal of the Regulations, employers are encouraged to pay to any former
employees who had an exit date between 4th November 2020 and 12th February
2021 and to whom the cap was applied, the additional sums that would have paid
but for the cap. Given that the cap has now been disapplied, it is open to employers
to do so and HM Treasury’s expectation is that they will do so.” The Council will
therefore comply with the Exit Payment Cap Directions 2021 and Guidance.

It is noted that the Guidance at paragraph 1.5 states that ‘HM Treasury will bring
forward proposals at pace to tackle unjustified exit payments’, therefore it may be
necessary to amend this Pay Policy Statement and the Pensions Discretion
Statement in 2021, should any further changes to the law be made.

Re-employment of officers previously made redundant and retirement

Where an officer who has previously been made redundant from the Council
applies for employment with the Council, their application will be treated on its
own merits, the financial merits and wider interests of the Council and will have
regard to any agreement under which the officer left their previous employment.
Where an officer leaves the Council’s employment through voluntary severance
or voluntary redundancy arrangements, they will not be allowed to work for the

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 6

Page 96



3.15

4.1

4.2

5.2

Appendix G

Council in any capacity, including engagement via employment agencies or as a
consultant, for a period of at least one year after leaving.

The Council permits flexible retirement, as permitted by the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations where by an employee can receive a salary and be
in receipt of a pension for doing the same job. Flexible retirement will usually
only be agreed where there is no cost to the Council. Exceptions to this will be
based on the best interest of the Council and will be agreed by the Corporate
Director of Resources in consultation with the Director of Human Resources,
except where such a decision relates to either of themselves, when the Chief
Executive will be consulted. Employees retiring before their normal retirement
age will, therefore, usually receive what is known as an actuarial reduction in
their pension as allowed for under the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations, to reflect the financial impact on the pension fund by the employee’s
early retirement.

Remuneration of lowest paid employees

The definition of “lowest paid employee” is for local determination. The Council
has agreed that the lowest paid employee will be those workers employed under
a contract of employment on full-time equivalent hours, in accordance with the
minimum grade of the Council’s agreed grading structure i.e. Grade 1, scale point
02. Workers, such as apprentices, who are engaged on fixed term training
contracts, are excluded from this definition.

The Council is a Real Living Wage (formerly the London Living Wage) employer
and will pay the Real Living Wage as its minimum rate of pay to employees, other
than those engaged specifically on apprentice or similar training contracts. The
Council will apply increases in the Real Living Wage with effect from the 01 April
following announcement of the increase. With effect from 01 April 2021 the full-
time equivalent annual pay of the lowest paid employee will be £21,030, which
equates to an hourly rate of pay of £11.20 (this reflects the current Real Living
Wage London which is £10.85 per hour).

The relationship between the pay of Chief Officers and that of other staff

The Council does not set the pay of individuals or groups of individuals by
reference to a simple multiple of the pay of another individual or group. The use
of simple pay multiples cannot capture the complexities and dynamics of a highly
varied workforce. The Council sets pay as outlined above by reference to the
evaluated level of responsibilities of the post or at a rate determined by a national
pay body.

Guidance produced under section 40 of the Localism Act recommends that a pay
multiple is included in these statements as a way of illustrating the Council’s
approach to pay dispersion and the Council has decided to publish its pay multiples
to aid transparency and future benchmarking:

e The multiple for 2021-22 between the lowest paid employee and the chief
executive and head of paid service is a ratio of 1:9

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 7

Page 97



Appendix G

e The multiple between the lowest paid employee and the median chief officer
is a ratio of 1:59

e The multiple between the median pay and the chief executive and head of
paid service’s pay is a ratio of 1:35

e The multiple between the median pay and the average chief officers’ pay is a
ratio of 1:47

5.3 As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay, both
within and outside the sector, the Council will use available benchmarking
information as appropriate.

6 Non-permanent staffing resources

6.1 To maintain flexibility in delivering services the Council supplements its employee
workforce with workers who are not Council employees or on the Council payroll.
This non-permanent resource includes consultants, who are procured under a
Contract for (Consultancy) Services, and interims who are procured through the
Council’'s managed service provider (the London Group Recruitment Partnership)
or other approved third party providers including through the Council’s neutral
vendor framework.

6.2 In managing its non-permanent staffing resource, the Council seeks to ensure that:
the Council and the wider public sector achieve value for money; tax and national
insurance liabilities are managed appropriately; and contractual relationships
between the Council, workers and third parties are properly reflected. In this regard,
it is the Council’s policy not to engage directly with self- employed individuals, or
wholly owned one person limited companies in all but the rarest of exceptions.
Where such arrangements are used, the Council seeks to limit them to a maximum
duration of 24 months.

6.3 Where itis necessary to engage a worker at Tier 1 or Tier 2 temporarily as an interim
or consultant, the remuneration paid to the individual will generally fall within the
following rates. The higher rates of pay, compared to those paid to directly
employed staff, are in recompense of interims and consultants not receiving all of
the same conditions of employment, most notably regarding leave, pension,
redundancy and notice.

Day rate range £
Grade of post (payable to the individual)
Croydon Special Range £400 - £525
Director £525 - £775
Corporate Director £775 - £900
Chief Executive £1200 - £1500

6.4 Workers engaged directly by the Council will be assessed to establish whether they
fall within the scope of the IR35 legislation using the HMRC employment status tool.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 8

Page 98



7.1

7.2

Appendix G

Workers who fall within scope will have Income Tax and National Insurance
Contributions deducted and paid over to HMRC.

Publication

Upon approval by the full Council this statement will be published on the Council’s
website. In addition, the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts will include a note
setting out the remuneration paid to each member of the corporate management
team (the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service and those reporting directly to
her) including the total amount paid to each individual by way of: salary, including
fees and allowances; performance related pay; expense allowances; compensation
for loss of office; benefits in kind and employers pension contributions. The Annual
Statement of Accounts is published on the Council’s website.

The Annual Statement of Accounts will also report on termination payments for all
employees in keeping with international financial reporting standards. This will show
the number of termination payments, within specific financial bands, made to
employees during the year.

End

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 9

Page 99



Appendix G

Appendix A
Pay structure for Chief Officers
Chief Officers: 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022
Post Spot Salary
Chief Executive £192,474
Executive Director of Resources (Monitoring Officer) , £156,060
Executive Director of Place
Executive Director of Children, Families & Schools* £147,000
Executive Director Health, Wellbeing & Adults, Executive £137,700
Director,(Localities and Residents programme - 2 year fixed
term)
Director of Finance, Investment & Risk (S151 Officer) £130,050
Director of Growth, Employment & Regeneration, Director of | £119,646
Public Health, Director of Early Help & Children Social Care,
Director of Procurement & Commissioning, Chief Digital
Officer, Director of Law & Governance, Director of
Operations
Director of Planning & Strategic Transport, Director of £109,140
Education & Youth Engagement, Director of Public Realm,
Director of Homes & Social Investment ,
Director of Human Resources, Director of Residents £98,838

Gateway Services, Director of Housing Assessments &
Solutions, Director of Innovation and Integration, Director of
Policy & Partnerships

Croydon Special Range 01 April 2021 to March 2022

Grade Scp Salary *
Croydon 1 £65,589
Special 2 £67,744
Range A 3 £72,053
Croydon 4 £82,703
Special 5 £85,339
Range B 6 £87,968

* as at 2020/21 rates cost of living NJC national pay award for 2021/22 yet to be

negotiated

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final

Page 100

10



Croydon Chief Officer Grades

CCOG Grade Minimum Mid-point Maximum
Director Grade | £94,986 £96,896 £98,834
Director Grade 2 £104,902 £107,000 £109,140
Director Grade 3 £115,000 £117,300 £119,646
Corporate | Grade 4 £134,750 £137,445 £140,194
Director

Corporate | Grade 5 £141,965 £144,804 £150,547
Director

Appendix G

Appendix B

* as at 2020/21 rates cost of living JNC national pay award for 2021/22 yet to be

negotiated

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final

Page 101

11



Car allowances and mileage payments

Car Mileage Rates

Appendix G

Appendix C

From 1 April 2011 the compulsory car allowance and mileage rates for higher engine
banding payments are only to be paid to employees whose vehicles fall within the DVLA
bandings A-E for CO2 emissions. Employees whose vehicles fall outside these DVLA
bandings will be restricted to the payments for the lower engine size banding, irrespective

of the size of their vehicle’s engine.

451 - 999cc
Compulsory car users
Lump sum per annum £846
per mile first 8,500 36.9p
per mile after 8,500 13.7p
451 - 999cc
Casual users
per mile first 8,500 46.9p
per mile after 8,500 13.7p

Motorcycle Rate

1000 - 1200 -

1199cc 1450cc
Only payable for cars within DVLA
bandings A-E for CO2 emissions

£963 £1,239

40.9p 50.5p

14.4p 16.4p

1000 - 1200 -
1199cc 1450cc

Only payable for cars within DVLA
bandings A-E for CO2 emissions

52.2p 65.0p
14.4p 16.4p

This will be paid in accordance with the HMRC approved amount which is 24p per mile.

Bicycle Rate

This will be paid in accordance with the HMRC approved amount which is 20p per mile.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final

Page 102

12


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rates-and-allowances-travel-mileage-and-fuel-allowances/travel-mileage-and-fuel-rates-and-allowances
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rates-and-allowances-travel-mileage-and-fuel-allowances/travel-mileage-and-fuel-rates-and-allowances

Appendix G

Appendix D
CROYDON COUNCIL

RELOCATION SCHEME

Introduction

These guidelines may be used to overcome a skills shortage or as a recruitment and
retention tool. The Council’s approach to attracting, recruiting, developing and retaining
talent sometimes needs to be supported to enable the placement of someone with
known abilities and expertise into a specific role.

The decision to apply this scheme should be agreed before an offer of employment has
been accepted and should preferably be displayed in the job advertisement. An “in
principle” offer of assistance, subject to meeting the requirements of the scheme, must
be contained in the offer of employment letter. An offer of a relocation package cannot
be made after employment commences.

There is no automatic entitlement to help with relocation or the amount paid. Payment is
subject to approval in all cases by the relevant tier 1 manager, production of receipts
and the amount of budget available within the service. No central relocation budget
exists, so payments must be made from the relevant department’s own budget.

Relocation assistance will not exceed £8,000, will not normally be provided to
employees already employed by the Council (including those on fixed term or temporary
contracts) and can be paid once only. Any subsequent moves will not attract a payment.

Eligibility
The following criteria must be met to be eligible for a relocation payment;

e The applicant is lives more than 90 minutes travelling distance away from the
new workplace and is relocating to a location within that limit.

e all owners or joint owners of the residence are moving, if claiming fees connected
with the sale and purchase of a property

e the applicant is moving within 6 months of starting their employment with the
Council

e the applicant is not benefiting from relocation assistance from another source
(e.g. their partner’'s employer)

¢ the applicant is moving to work solely for Croydon

Conditions

The recipient must sign an agreement to remain in Croydon Council’'s employment for a
minimum of three years. If they leave voluntarily or are dismissed on grounds of
misconduct or capability within three years, repayment will be due, charged at 1/36 of
the total amount of expenses paid per uncompleted month of service.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 13

Page 103



Appendix G

Two quotes must be obtained for removal and storage expenses for which the lower
amount may be reimbursed. Records of payments made will be recorded on the
employee’s personal file and retained by the manager who signs the agreement.

The employee is responsible for:

taking steps to sell their property (if applicable) and obtaining accommodation
within reasonable travelling distance (90 minutes) within 6 months of their start
date with Croydon Council.

seeking approval for any relocation expenses prior to incurring the expense.
signing the three year agreement

providing a full breakdown of costs and comprehensive receipts for all expenses
claimed for under the scheme. Bank statements or credit card receipts cannot

be accepted.

providing at least two quotes if claiming for removal expenses.

The manager is responsible for:

obtaining approval of the Director of Human Resources and their Director and
the correct financial authorisation (including departmental expenditure panel if
relevant), before offering a relocation package

subject to the eligibility criteria, informing the successful candidate of the
relocation scheme when offering the appointment

ensuring that finances are available to fund a relocation package

agreeing with the employee the types of expenses they are able to cover
and the maximum amount to be paid

reviewing the situation if positive steps are not being taken by the
candidate/employee to sell and/or buy a new property within 6 months
of starting their employment.

ensuring an agreement is signed by the employee and storing a copy on their
personal HR file

keeping a copy of the agreement, a full breakdown of costs, receipts
and quotes.

arranging for payment(s) to be paid into the employee’s bank account before the
end of the tax year following their appointment date and that taxable payments
are paid via Payroll

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final

14
Page 104



Appendix G

e ensuring that records of all payments are kept on the employee’s personal HR
file

e arranging the recovery of expenses if the employee leaves within three
years, including writing to them to confirm the outstanding amount due and
informing them if it will be taken out of their final salary or pension contributions.

Tax

Relocation expenses up to £8,000 per move are currently tax free as long as they are
provided by the employer before the end of the tax year following the date of
appointment (including VAT on expenses), but some payments are taxable. The
following expenses may or may not be included in the agreed package.

e Payment for rent where it is necessary to temporarily maintain two homes , up
to a maximum of 6 months*

e Travelling costs where two homes are temporarily maintained, up to a
maximum of 6 months (either standard class train fares or casual car user
mileage rates)

e Legal and Estate Agents fees connected with the sale and purchase of

property

Removal and storage of household furniture and effects

Disconnection and reconnection of utilities*

Reinstallation of domestic appliances such as cookers and washing machines*

Charges incurred for ending a rental agreement early *

Deposit for rented accommodation *

Two days paid removal leave in addition to normal leave entitlement*

Refund of unexpired season tickets*

Shipping costs, if moving from abroad

Survey Fees*

Unplanned costs such as school uniforms, carpets, curtains, *

Redirection of mail*

*subject to tax and NI contributions

As the tax position may change, it is advisable to check with the HMRC before finalising
any arrangements under this guidance.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 15

Page 105



Appendix G

Appendix E

EARLY RETIREMENT & REDUNDANCY SCHEME

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1.

3.1.

3.2.

(incl. Efficiency of the Service)

Council approved 1981.

Amended by Corporate Services Committee on 11 October 2006; effective from
1st December 2006

Amended 010410: legislative changes

Amended 010411: Employee Based Cost Review (EBCR)

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF SCHEME

This scheme is without prejudice to the Council’s and the trade unions’ general
policy of opposition to redundancies. It outlines the approach the Council may
use when making staffing reductions through redundancy, early retirement on the
grounds of redundancy, and early retirement on the grounds of efficiency of the
service.

The scheme covers all categories of staff except teachers and lecturers for whom
a separate scheme exists.

The scheme sets out the normal level of payments made to employees. Certain
payments in the scheme are enhanced by the Council exercising its discretion,
as allowed for in legislation. The exercise of the Council’s discretion is subject
to a decision in each case, and the Council reserves the right to apply different
payments in particular cases. The Council also reserves the right to withdraw or
suspend the scheme at any time.

GENERAL

Where redundancies as defined in the Employment Rights Act 1996 are
contemplated the Council may choose to seek volunteers for early retirement or
redundancy from the staff. Should the number of volunteers for early retirement
or redundancy exceed the required number of post reductions the Council will
consult staff representatives about the method of selection.

EARLY RETIREMENT BY REASON OF REDUNDANCY
(only for employees aged 55 and over)

Employees aged 55 or more who are made redundant (including those who
volunteer under paragraph 2.1) will be eligible for immediate payment of pension
benefits if they have 2 or more years membership in the LGPS (or have less than
2 years membership, but have had a transfer of pension rights into the LGPS
from another source).

In addition to immediate payment of pension benefits, employees with 2 years
continuous service will also be entitled to a redundancy payment. The
redundancy payment will be calculated as set out in section 4.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 16

Page 106



3.3.

3.4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.1.

5.2.

Appendix G

The granting of any augmentation in respect of redundancy and early retirement
in the interests of the efficiency of the service is at the Council’s discretion.to
compensate officers for the loss of position and future expectations as a result of
the Council’s actions. It is not in respect of past service, which is covered by
pension entitlement arising from contributions made into the Pension Fund.

The costs of the early payment of benefits are charged to departmental budgets
rather than the Pension Fund.

REDUNDANCY

Employees who are made redundant will receive a redundancy payment based
on length of continuous service and age as laid down in the Employment Rights
Act. The details of the statutory redundancy payments vary with age and length
of service and a ready reckoner is set out in Appendix 1.

Continuous local government service (and certain related service) will be used
where this exceeds service with the London Borough of Croydon and in
calculating the redundancy payment the weekly pay used for calculating
redundancy payments will be as follows:

a) In cases of compulsory redundancy, by reducing by 50% the amount by
which an employee’s actual weekly pay exceeds the statutory cap e.g. with
the statutory cap at £400 and an employee’s actual weekly pay at £500,
redundancy pay would be calculated on a revised weekly pay of £450.

b) In cases of voluntary redundancy, by reducing by 25% the amount by which
an employee’s weekly pay exceeds the statutory cap e.g. with the statutory
cap at £400 and an employee’s actual weekly pay at £500, redundancy pay
would be calculated on a revised weekly pay of £475.

EARLY RETIREMENT IN THE INTERESTS OF THE EFFICIENCY OF THE
SERVICE

The Council will consider applications from staff, supported by their Directors, for
early retirement on the grounds of the efficiency of the service. Each case will
be decided on its merits by the Corporate Director Resources (Section 151
Officer) in consultation with the Director of Human Resources and the relevant
departmental Director. They will use their discretion based on the following
criteria:

(a) staff suffering ill-health of a nature not covered by the ill-health provisions of
the Pension scheme

(b) a change in the organisation of an establishment or department which does
not give rise to redundancy

(c) staff who are unable to meet the changed requirements of their post

Employees aged 55 or over, who retire on the grounds of efficiency of the service
are eligible for immediate payment of pension benefits if they have 2 or more

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 17

Page 107



Appendix G

years membership in the LGPS (or have less than 2 years membership, but have
had a transfer of pension rights into the LGPS from another source).

5.3. In these cases there is no entittement to a redundancy payment.
6. COMPLYING WITH LEGISLATION
6.1 The Council will only apply the above policy in a manner which is compatible with

the law (inc. legislation, subordinate legislation and case law) and anything in
this policy which is incompatible with the law shall be disregarded or applied only
to the extent that doing so would not be contrary to the law as it is understood
when the policy is applied in any particular case.

End

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 18

Page 108



Appendix G

“Ready Reckoner” For Statutory Redundancy Pay Appendix 1

Figures in grid show the number of weeks pay due

1Y%

1% 2

1% 2 2%

1% 2 2% 3

.‘11/2 2 2%2 3 3Y2 4

.‘221/2331/24 4% | 5
.‘2 3 3% 4 4% 5 5% 6

4% 5 5% | 6 (6% 7

5 5% 6 6% 7 7% 8

»

62 7 1% 8 8% 9

7 |7%2 | 8 8% 9 9% 10

8% 9 9% 10 10% 11

9 9% 10 10Y2 11 11% 12

10 10% 11 11% 12 12% 13

10 11 11% 12 12% 13 13% 14

10 | 11 | 12 12% 13 13% 14 14% 15

10 | 11 | 12 | 13 13% 14 14% 15 15% 16

10 | 11 | 12 | 13 14 14% 15 (15'% 16 16Y%% 17

10 | 11 | 12 | 13 14 15 15% 16 16% 17 17%

10 | 11 | 12 | 13 14 15 16 (16Y% 17 17% 18

10 |11 ' 12 13 14 15 16 |17 17Y% 18 18%

10 111 ' 12 |13 14 15 16 |17 18 18Y% 19

N
W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
e T > Y ~ O Y - [ -~ B - B SN B ~ N R N
ol g oo ala g g o gl g o
o ol o o ol o oo o o o oo
N NN NN N NN NN NN
© | | 0 0 | 0 | 0| o | o o
© © | © © © o ©| v ©®

10 111 ' 12 13 14 15 16 |17 18 19 19%

11t is possible that an individual could start to build up continuous service before age 16, but this is likely to
be rare, and therefore the table starts from age 18.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 19

Page 109



Appendix G

Continuous Service (Years)
Age 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
42 2Y53Y5/4%2 5% 6% 7%  8Y2 9% 10%211%12Y%213%2 14%2 15% 16Y%2 17%2/18Y%219%-20%
43 3 4/ 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

44 | 3 4Y25Y26Y%2 12 8Y2 | 9Y2 10%2/11Y%212Y2/13Y%214Y2 152 16Y2 17Y218Y2/19Y%2 20%221Y-
45 3 4% 6|7 /8|9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 | 22
46 3 4% 6 |7Y2/8Y%2 9%2 10%211%212Y2/13Y2 14Y2/15Y2/16Y217%218Y%219%2 202212222
47 3 4% 6 7%~ 9 |10 111 12 |13 |14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22| 23
48 | 3 4Y2 6 7% 9 10v%211Y%212%2/13Y%214Y2/15%216%2 17Y%2 18Y219Y%220%221Y2 22%223Y
49 3 4% 6 7% 9 10%2 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
50 3 4Y2 6 7¥%2 9 10% 12 13% 14Y%215%216Y%217%2/18Y219%220%221Y222Y2 23Y2|24Y
51 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16 |17 |18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
52 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16Y%2/17Y%218Y219Y%220%221Y%2 222 23%Y224%2 25>
53 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
94 3 4Y%2 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19%220%221%222Y223Y224Y2 25Y226Y2
95 3 4Y%2 6 7Y% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19% 21 22 |23 24 |25 26 | 27
56 3 4Y%2 6 7¥%2 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19% 21 22%223Y%224%225Y%226%227Y%2
57 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19% 21 22% 24 | 25 26 27 28
58 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16Y% 18 19Y%2 21 22% 24 25%26%227%28%2
59 3 4% 6 7% 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19Y% 21 22Y%2 24 25% 27 28 29
60 3 4%z 6 7¥%2 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19% 21 22%| 24 25% 27 28%229%

61* 3 4% 6 |7¥%2 9 10% 12 13% 15 16% 18 19% 21 22% 24 25% 27 28%| 30

" The same figures should be used when calculating the redundancy payment for a person
aged 61 and above.

Notes:

Statutory redundancy payments are based on length of continuous service (up to max of
20 yrs) and age as follows:

- for each completed year of service up to age 21 inclusive: half a week’s pay

- for each completed year of service from age 22-40 inclusive: one week’s pay.

- for each completed year of service from age 41 inclusive: one and a half week’s pay.

croydon council pay policy statement - 21-22 final 20

Page 110



Appendix H

REPORT TO: Cabinet 1% March 2021

Council 8" March 2021

SUBJECT: Croydon’s General Fund & HRA Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24

LEAD OFFICER: Katherine Kerswell, Interim Chief Executive Officer

Chris Buss, Interim Director of Finance , Investment and Risk

CABINET MEMBER: Leader Hamida Ali — Leader of Croydon Council
Councillor Stuart King — Cabinet Member for Croydon Renewal

Councillor Callton Young — Cabinet Member for Resources
and Financial Governance

Councillor Jane Avis — Cabinet Member for Homes and
Gateway services

WARDS: All

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:

The Council’s budget underpins the resource allocation for all corporate priorities and policies
and in particular, the corporate priority for the delivery of value for money for the residents of
the borough of Croydon. This report sets out the detailed proposals for the financial year
2021/22 to 2023/24.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The report details the revenue and capital budgets for the General Fund for financial Years
2021/22 to 2023/24, the Council Tax position for 2021/22, the revenue and capital budgets for
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget and position on the Housing Rents increases for
2021/22. This report only seeks approval of the Budget for 21/22 but Cabinet and Council are
asked to note the Medium Term Financial Plan

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE

The recommendations in section 1.0 are not executive decisions and therefore not key
decisions — the final decisions are to be recommended to the Full Council for consideration at
the meeting scheduled for 1st March 2021.

The recommendations in section 1.0 are key executive decisions (reference no.0921CAB). The
decisions may be implemented from 1300 hours on the 5" working day after it is made, unless
the decision is referred to the Scrutiny & Overview Committee by the requisite number of
Councillors.

1.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
The Leader of the Council has delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

1.0 That Cabinet be recommended to approve the following recommendations to Full
Council for consideration at its meeting on 8th March 2021.:

Page 111




The Revenue Budget for 2021/22 and notes the 3 Year Medium Term Financfé'l’g?gﬁj'gsl Eetailed
within Section 11 which is based upon the:

1.1. Council’s request for a Capitalisation Direction of £150m covering financial years
2020/21 to 2023/24.

1.2. A 1.99% increase in the Council Tax for Croydon Services (a level of increase
Central Government has assumed in all Councils’ spending power calculation).

1.3. A 3.00% increase in the Adult Social Care precept (a charge Central Government
has assumed all councils’ will levy in its spending power calculations).

1.4. To note the draft GLA increase of 9.5% on the Council Tax precept for 2021/22.

1.5. With reference to the principles for 2021/22 determined by the Secretary of State
under Section52ZC (1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended)
confirm that in accordance with s.52ZB (1) the Council Tax and GLA precept referred
to above are not excessive in terms of the most recently issued principles and as
such to note that no referendum is required. This is detailed further in section 3.8 of
this report.

1.6. The calculation of budget requirement and council tax as set out in Appendix C and
D including the GLA increase this will result in a total increase of 5.83% in the overall
council tax bill for Croydon.

1.7. The revenue budget assumptions as detailed in this report and the associated
appendices

1.8. The programme of revenue savings, income and growth by department for Financial
Years 2021/22 to 2023/24 (Appendix A).

1.9. The Capital Programme as set out in Section 18, table 17 and 18 of this report,
except where noted for specific programmes are subject to separate Cabinet reports.

1.10. To agree that in light of the impact on the Council's revenue budget no Capital
contractual commitment should be entered into until a review of revenue affordability
has been concluded.

1.11. To approve that any receipts that come from the Council’s Housing company Brick
by Brick will first be applied to the accrued interest and any subsequent receipts will
be used to pay down the principle loan balance.

1.12. To note there are no proposed amendments to the Council’s existing Council Tax
Support Scheme for the financial year 2021/22.

1.13. The adoption of the Pay Policy statement at Appendix G

Page 112



That Cabinet agree:

1.14.
1.15.

1.16.

AppendixH
The Housing Revenue Account’s 2021/22 Budget as detailed within section 19
A rent increase for all Council tenants for 2020/21, in line with the Government’s

social rent policy which has legislated to increase social rents by CPI + 1%, which is
equal to 1.5%

2% increase to the service charges for caretaking, grounds maintenance and bulk
refuse collection as detailed in section 12.

That Cabinet note:

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

1.21.

That in respect of the Council’s public sector equalities duties where the setting of
the capital, revenue and HRA budget result in new policies or policy change the
relevant service department will carry out an equality impact assessment to secure
delivery of that duty including such consultation as may be required.

The progress being made towards balancing the Council’s financial position for
2020/21 as at Quarter 3 and the current projected outturn forecast of £64.7m as set
out in the Budget Monitoring report as part of this Cabinet in Agenda Item 5b and
also attached in Appendix H.

The response to the provisional local government settlement which is attached at
Appendix E.

That pre-decision scrutiny of the proposed budget 2020/21 took place at the Scrutiny
and Overview Committee on the 10th February 2020. The Scrutiny and Overview
Committee agreed to recommend that the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Resources be invited to attend a meeting of the Committee and provide an update
on the bedding in of the Council’s new financial monitoring systems in September
2020.

The statement on reserves and balances and robustness of estimates from the
statutory Section 151 Officer.

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Executive Summary

This report sets out the Council’s 2021/22 Budget and the indicative
position for following 2 years. This budget has been set on the backdrop
of one of the most difficult years financially for the Council and Local
Government as a whole. This report expands on challenges faced by the
Council in setting a balanced budget for the financial year 2021/22, and
gives an update on the key issues from the Spending Review presented
by the Chancellor of the Exchequer on 25" November 2020.

This report also provides further details on challenges faced by Croydon
Council in terms of its continued financial pressures and resources
available to deliver the key services for the authority.

The report also provides details on the current financial and economic
environment in which the Council is operating, impacted significantly by

Page 113



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.0

3.1

3.2

Covid, and together with the local policy context set out an appré‘ga‘?rt‘gix H

identifying savings.

The Council started the year with significantly low reserve levels and
began the financial year with the nation forced into lockdown due to the
Covid-19 pandemic. With rising costs and increased demand for services,
the Council’s finances had become increasingly precarious in recent
years. However, Covid-19 and its impact on Council’s budgets, in
particular the ability to introduce planned savings meant the Council was
unable to, cover its costs from reserves and was therefore forced to issue
a Section 114 (S114) notice under the Local Government Finance Act
1988.

During the Covid-19 pandemic the Council has experienced significant
financial pressures across all its services. From increased support and
care to the most vulnerable in the community and provision of additional
services to significant risks to income sources such as parking income.
This has meant that the Council has faced a two sided impact from
increased costs and reduced income.

The demand for children and adult social care has always been large
within Croydon and with the additional need to safeguard these groups in
our community has resulted in further resource pressures, this is not a
specific Croydon issue. With growing numbers of both young and older
residents, and other demographic changes, Croydon is affected by these
national issues more than most.

As a Council facing financial challenges Croydon is certainly not alone,
but many of the issues impacting its finances are unique to the borough.

Croydon is one of the capital’s largest boroughs by population and,
although situated in outer London, it has over time inherited a raft of
traditionally Inner London issues that impact its budget but this has not
been reflected in changes to Central Government financial support. Which
have not been significantly revised to reflect changes in need.

Covid-19 Pandemic

Covid -19 has had a profound impact on the Council’s finances. Financial
pressures have arisen as a result of additional costs, lost income and
unachieved delivery of savings. The pandemic has required the Council to
divert resources to deliver some of the most urgent services to the most
vulnerable in the Community and this has resulted in less staff time being
dedicated to some of the key efficiency deliveries that had been required.

The Council has faced significant pressures within its Adult Social Care
and Children Social Care departments as the services needed to ensure
older people and vulnerable children are effectively safeguarded. The
Council has lost significantincome in various key services such as parking
income, planning and through various fees and charges due to reduced
activities and demand during the past 11 months.

Page 114



3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

Whilst MHCLG has provided further grant funding in order to ta&ﬁ)@q’ﬂgix H

extra costs and loss of income, the funding provided has not been
sufficient to cover all Covid-related pressures the Council has faced. As
a direct consequence of Covid, as at the end of January the Council has
faced additional expenditure pressures of £39.76m, lostincome of £28.7m
and unachieved savings of £10.87m, however until end of December had
only received £32.9m in funding from Government. This creates a
£46.34m pressure directly attributed towards Covid.

The Council has administered significant number of other initiatives
introduced by the Government to support the community during the
pandemic. Table below details additional work the Council took on during
the pandemic and also details the grants the Council received to support
those initiatives.

Table 1: Covid Grants

Service Specific Covid Grants £m

Infection control fund for adult social care (tranche 1) 8.075
Test and Trace 1.998
Welfare support grant 0.447
Next Steps Accommodation Programme 0.635
Test and trace support grants 0.338
LA compliance & Enforcement grant 0.218
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Support Grant 0.195
Covid Winter Grant 1.199
Cold Weather Payment (housing) 0.050
Contain Outbreak Management Fund 3.094
Estimated S.31 grants paid in advance 7.017
Business Grants Fund 49.525
Cashflow measures 14.474
C-19 Business Rates reliefs 56.831
Discretionary Business Grants Fund 3.029
Reopening High Streets Safely 0.342
Additional Restrictions Grant. 7.734
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) addendum 5.846
Cold Weather Payment (housing) 0.050
Hardship Fund 4.388
Total 165.485

The Covid pandemic has created significant uncertainty on Local Authority
Finances going forward as it casts doubt in regards to future activity and
public behaviour in terms of demand for services and in particular income
from the use of facilities. Whilst it’s difficult to predict what that change will
be this will need to be closely monitored by the Council across a range of
services to ensure risks are flagged early on and to find mitigations where
possible.

Financial Performance Quarter 3 2020/21

As at month 9/Quarter 3 the general fund revenue outturn forecast stood
at £64.7m overspend, which was after the inclusion of both anticipated

Page 115



4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

and received Covid19 funding from the MHCLG of £41.9m. Appendix H

To note that there are a number of risks totalling £31.8m that could
materialise which would see the variance increase further. These are
within services due to the current pandemic, potential impact from
finalisation of the 2019/20 accounts and in relation to groups structures
particularly around interest income from Brick by Brick. Should all of these
risks crystalize the total forecast overspend would increase to £96.5m by
the year end.

The Council has requested a capitalisation directive to cover the deficit for
the current year, this is part of an overall request for £150 million, at the
time of publication no decision has been made on this request.

S114 Notice

In November 2020 with a substantial increase in the projected outturn for
20/21 and lack of progress on cost reductions and efficiencies the S151
Officer issued a Section 114 notice, as it was clear that the council could
not meet its forecast expenditure for 2021/22 within its available revenue
resources including reserves.

Councils are required by law both to set a balanced budget, but to also
ensure that expenditure can be funded from revenue resources. If a
council can’t find a way to finance their expenditure a section 114 must be
issued, as effectively expenditure becomes unlawful.

The notice has had the effect of the council stopping all hon-essential
spending — and cannot enter into new agreements which will incur a
cost. A Spend Control Panel was set up to oversee expenditure taking
place within the council.

The Council continued to ensure that essential services were maintained

particularly to those community members who were vulnerable and that

included the ongoing response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The following

criteria was applied when allowing spend to take place:

e existing staff and payroll costs,

e expenditure on goods and services which have already been
received

e expenditure required to deliver the council’s statutory services at a
minimum possible level

e urgent expenditure to safeguard vulnerable residents

e contractually committed expenditure

e expenditure through ring fenced grants

o expenditure that will improve the council’s financial situation — that is
necessary to reduce overall costs.

Within 21 days of issuing a S114 notice the council is required to decide
whether it agrees with the views in the report and what action if any it
proposes to take. If the expenditure cannot be met from revenue
resources it must then issue another notice. On 2" December a second
S114 notice was issued and the Council has continued to remainina S114
since.

Page 116



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Appendix H

RIPI

On 23 October 2020, before the issuance of the S114 notice, the
Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton, issued a Report in Public
Interest. The report detailed concerning the Council’s financial position
and related governance arrangements.

The Report was published as the external auditor were of the opinion that
the Council:

I.  Had experienced deteriorating financial resilience for a number of
years
ii.  Had significant issues relating to its financial sustainability
lii.  Had not responded promptly to previous audit recommendations
and concerns
iv.  And that this needed to be brought formally to the public’'s
attention

The council has taken these serious recommendations onboard and is
proactively looking at addressing the auditor’s concerns. In fact this
MTFS and the 21/22 Budget transparently deals with all known
pressures the council has faced and had ensured these are provided for
within the overall growth requests.

Renewal Plan

With the move to a S114 being enacted and further scrutiny being
provided by our Auditors through the Report in Public Interest, it is evident
that the council will need to embark on a significant financial improvement
initiative.

In addition to the S114 and the RIPI, the council has had significant
scrutiny and oversight various other stakeholders and groups. This has
included from the internally set Financial Review Panel to the Rapid
Review that was conducted by MHCLG. There are currently around 400
recommendations and actions already developed from different plans and
there will be further output for incorporation into existing plans. Some of
the recommendations and actions are likely to be cross-cutting, many may
duplicate each other and the council will need to use best practice
frameworks and recognised programme management methodology to
track progress and reporting.

The renewal plan is a big change programme for the council, which sets
outhow we will respond to the financial challenges and wider
improvement asks — whilst making sure that priority services are delivered
effectively, sustainably and within our financial means.

The Renewal Plan is made up of the Financial Recovery Plan which will
set out how we’ll deliver a sustainable budget in the medium term
and a Corporate Improvement Plan to deliver the required changes.
Different strands of work within the renewal plan will include:

¢ New priorities and ways of working

Page 117



7.5

7.6

7.7

Improvements to governance and leadership practice

Improvements to management practice

Service improvements to manage demand and cost

A new system of internal control - finance, performance

and risk

A new approach to involving residents and partners

e A new engagement and involvement programme with staff to
create a working environment that values all our staff

e A new approach to ensuring respect for all and equity of
opportunity for our staff

e A review of the member and officer code of conduct to fully

embed the Nolan Principles in all work.

The Renewal plan was presented to Cabinet in 25" November 2020 and
was endorsed by Cabinet colleagues. It was then presented to Council on
30" November. Work is currently underway to ensure our objectives within
the Renewal plans are being implemented and that the Council begins to
deliver a financially sustainable MTFS by 2023/24.

One of the fundamental reviews the Council is in relation to its Housing
Company, Brick by Brick. The Cabinet at its meeting on 25" November
2020, received a report on a strategic review by PwC of the Council’s
group of companies and other entities.

As a result of that review a number of specific recommendations were
made concerning Brick by Brick.

These were to:

) Authorise the initial further work required on the options
identified by PWC regarding the Council’s interest in BBB in
order to best inform further consideration and decision at the
January Cabinet meeting.

i) Agree that funding of BBB shall continue in line with current
loan arrangements and conditions subject to that further
decision, provided that all funding for construction, and
completed unit purchases be reviewed on a site by site basis.

i) Agree that all site transfers to BBB, be halted until the Council
has completed the options appraisal and taken a final decision
on the options.

The Council has also received and agreed a number of recommendations
regarding Brick by Brick in the Report in the Public Interest report by Grant
Thornton. In particular that report contained four specific
recommendations regarding the Council’s future relationship with Brick by
Brick. These were:

) The Cabinet and Council should reconsider the financial
business case for continuing to invest in Brick by Brick
before agreeing any further borrowing.

i) The Cabinet and Council should review and reconsider
the ongoing financial rationale for the Council in the

Page 118

Appendix H



equity investment arrangement with Brick by Brick.  ~PPendix H

iif) The s151 officer and monitoring officer should monitor
compliance with loan covenants with Brick by Brick and
report any breaches to Members.

V) The Cabinet and Council should review its arrangements
to govern its interest in subsidiaries, how the subsidiaries
are linked, and the long-term impact of the subsidiaries
on the Council’s financial position and how the Council’s
and taxpayers interest is safeguarded.

7.8 Since the Cabinet meeting on 25th November the Council has carried out
a second stage review of the options available to the Council to reduce
the financial exposure with Brick by Brick. A report was presented to
Cabinet on 18th February 2021 which detailed the next steps.

7.9 From a financial perspective the 18th February report considered various
proposals in regards to future operations of Brick by Brick. The
recommended course of action involves allowing Brick by Brick to continue
building out schemes at an advanced stage, reviewing sites no longer
proposed for development, disposing of sites at intermediate stage or sell
the shares of the Company.

7.10 At the point of writing this report the actions of the second stage review
were at the early stages of being worked through. At the Cabinet meeting
it was recommended that, with any option, there will be further
costs/resourcing (in particular the sale of the business option, in order to
ensure the proper advice is obtained regarding valuation, legal and
financial implications) and some write off of the Council’s investment (as
further explained in the restricted report) is likely. These risks are factored
within the 21/22 Budget.

8.0 Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 - Nationally

8.1 The 2021/22 local government finance settlement is for one year only and
is based on the Spending Review 2020 (SR20) funding levels. Within
Spending Round 2020, information regarding 2021/22 funding allocations
was provided. The provisional settlement confirms these previous
announcements; the main points of which are set out below:

8.2 Most of the proposals set out in Spending Review 2020 have been
confirmed.
Core Spending Power (CSP) will increase by £2.2 billion (4.5 per cent)
nationally and £311 million (4.3 per cent) across London boroughs.
Settlement Funding Assessment will increase by £13 million (0.1 per cent)
and £3 million for London boroughs.

. The main tax referendum principle remains at 2 per cent.

. The flexibility to raise the Social Care Precept will be increased to
3 per cent for relevant authorities.

Page 119



8.3

8.4

. The Improved Better Care Fund will remain at 2020/21 Ie\/égp@ﬁ'g'x H
England total will be nearly £2.1 billion, of which London boroughs
will receive £336 million).

. The Social Care Grant will increase by £300 million to £1.71 billion
(as set out in SR20) London boroughs will receive £223 million of
this (an increase of 24 per cent).

. Funding for New Home Bonus will decrease by over £285 million
(31% per cent) nationally from £907 million to £622 million. London
boroughs will receive £185 million of this, a decrease of £60 million
(32 per cent).

. Business Rates Multiplier Compensation will increase by 30 per
cent from £500 million to £650 million nationally. London boroughs
will receive £115 million in 2021/22.

. There is a new Lower Tier Services Grant of £111 million within
CSP (£24 million for London boroughs).
. Allocations have not yet been published for the Public Health Grant,

Flexible Homelessness Support Grant, Homelessness Reduction
Grant, Rough Sleeping Initiative Fund and the Independent Living

Fund.

. £125 million was announced to implement the Domestic Abuse Bill
(although allocations are TBC)

. A consultative paper has been published setting out further details

on Covid-19 funding, including the £1.55 billion of further general
funding in 2021/22 (£274 million to London boroughs), and seeking
views on how the £670 million of CT Support funding, 75 per cent
tax compensation scheme and continued SF&C compensation
scheme will be calculated.

Core Spending Power - Overall

The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to
2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below. As previously announced at
Spending Review 2020, it shows an increase

The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to
2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below. It shows an in year increase of
4.21% for 2021/22 and an overall of 4.5% for 2021/22 and an overall
change for the period 2015/16 to 2021/22 of 14.7m.

Page 120



Table 2: Core Spending Power figures for England 2015/16 to Z&Wdix H

2019- 2020- 2021-
20 21 22

£m £m £m £m £m £m

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Settlement Funding
Assessment 18,602 16,633 15,574 | 14,560 | 14,797 | 14,810
Under-indexing the BR
multiplier 165 175 275 400 500 650

Council Tax 23,247 24,666 | 26,332 | 27,768 | 29,370 | 31,145
Improved Better Care

Fund - 1,115 1,499 1,837 2,077 2,077
91
New Homes Bonus 1,462 1,227 947 8 907 622
New Homes Bonus
returned funding 23 25 - - - -
Rural Services
Delivery Grant 81 65 81 81 81 85
Transition Grant 150 150 - - - -
Adult Social Care
Support Grant - 241 150 - - -
Winter Pressures 24
Grant - - 240 0 - -
Social Care Support 41
Grant - - - 0 1,410 1,710
Lower Tier Services
Grants 111

Core Spending
Power 43,730 44,296 | 45,098 | 46,213 | 49,142 | 51,210

Change % -2.10% 1.29% 1.81% | 247% | 6.34% | 4.21%
14.65
Cumulative Change % -2.10% -0.83% 0.96% | 3.46% | 10.02% %

Real Terms Change % -4.00% -250% | -1.40% | 0.10% | 3.10% | 3.10%
Cumulative Real
Terms Change % -4.00% -6.40% | -7.80% | -7.70% | -4.80% | -4.80%

Core Spending Power: Excluding Council Tax

8.5 Graph 1 below shows the level of central government funding to local
government between 2015/16 and 2020/21 excluding Council Tax. It
shows a reduction of £2.8bn from £22.6bn to £19.8bn, a reduction of 13%.

Page 121



Graph 1 — Local Government Funding 2015/16 to 2020/21

25,000
22,631

2015-16

20,482

2016-17

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

9.0

9.1

19,631

2017-18

18,676 18,446
2018-19  2019-20

19,772

2020-21

20,065

2021-22

Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 Croydon

Appendix H

The published Core Spending Power (CSP) figures for Croydon are shown

in the table below. Croydon’s CSP for 2021/22 is £319.4m, an increase of
£10.7m on the 2020/21 amount. However, it should be remembered that
the CSP figures for the Settlement Funding Assessment and Council Tax
are Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
forecast amounts only; with actual resources determined by the amount of
business rates and council tax collected locally.

Table 3 Croydon’s Funding Allocations 2016/17 to 2020/21

2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Settlement Funding Assessment 114.6 101.7 94.5 86.8 88.2 88.2
g't‘ggmﬂﬁﬁl'gf’ the business 1 1 1.6 2.4 3 3.9
Council Tax 1435 155.1 167.4 180 193.1 208.49
Improved Better Care Fund - 55 7.1 8.3 9.7 9.7
New Homes Bonus 11.8 8.5 6.3 6.7 7.3 5.2
leiv&/irgomes Bonus returned 0.2 0.2 i i i
Transition Grant 0.4 0.4 - - -
'Cl';rszn,i\dult Social Care Support ) 14 0.9 i i
Winter pressures Grant - - 14 14 -
Social Care Support Grant - - - 2.4 7.4 7.8
Core Spending Power 271.5 273.8 279.2 288 308.7 323.9
Population 386,700 | 390,100 | 393,600 | 397,000 | 400,200 [ 400,200
Core Spending Power Per Head 702 702 709 725 771 809

Page 122




9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Table 3 shows an increase in funding for Croydon over 2016/17 to M??Six H

of £51.8m in cash terms or 15.2%. However, it is important to note that
this includes forecast increased council tax revenues over the period of
£64.9m. Excluding Council Tax revenues sees a cash reduction in funding
over the period of £12.5m. Further details of each funding stream included
within Croydon’s Core Spending Power and the extent to which the
MHCLG's figures are relevant to Croydon is discussed below.

New Homes Bonus

Croydon’s New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocation for 2021/22 is £5.2m, as
shown in table 4 below. Thisis comprised of £3.6m legacy payments from
previous years and an in-year payment of £1.6m.

Table 4 Croydon’s NHB Forecast Funding Allocations 2019/20 to

2022/23

2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23*
£m £m £m £m

2016/17 allocation 2.1 0 0 0
2017/18 allocation 1 1 0 0
2018/19 allocation 1.8 1.8 1.8 0
2019/20 allocation 1.8 1.8 1.8 0
2020/21 allocation 0 2.7 1.6 1.6
No future years' allocations forecast 0 0 0 0
Equals NHB Funding (Em) 6.7 7.3 5.2 1.6

*projected

Social Care Grants

The Social Care Support Grant will increase by £300 million to £1.71 billion
(as set out in SR20) London boroughs will receive £223 million of this (an
increase of 24 per cent). For Croydon this is an increase in funding of
£0.4m, from £7.4m in 2020/21 to £7.8m in 2021/22.

Homelessness Funding/Homelessness Prevention Grant

The £310m Homelessness Prevention Grant combines and uplifts what
was previously the Flexible Homelessness Support Grant and
Homelessness Reduction Grant. For 2021-22 both grants have been
combined and uplifted by £47m. In 2021/22 Croydon will receive £7.4m
an increase of £2.2m over 2020/21

Public Health Grant

From 1 April 2013 the responsibility for the management of Public Health
(PH) services in the borough transferred to the Council from the NHS. This
brought about a range of new responsibilities including providing
PH advice to Croydon CCG, tackling smoking, alcohol misuse and
obesity, sexual health services, health inequalities and substance misuse
including in-patient care. Additional funding was received in 2016/17 for
the transfer to the Council of new responsibilities from NHS England for
Health Improvements 0-5 years which took place on 15t October 2015.

Page 123



9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

10

10.1

10.2

Appendix H

The ring-fenced grant is used to commission a range of mandated service
from external and internal provider's e.g. Health visiting, Substance
misuse services, sexual health services etc. as well as providing
resources for services within Croydon council that improve the health and
wellbeing of the people in Croydon.

A review of the services that are commissioned as well as a detailed
review of the resources that are provided for services within the Council
was carried out during 2019/20 to ensure that the funding is utilised in the
most effective manner and delivers on public health outcomes.

Funding for 2021/22 remains unconfirmed at the time of writing this report.
Flat funding should be expected until allocations confirmed by Public
Health England in Feb 21/22. In 2020/21 Public Health Grant was £21.8m.

Croydon’s response to the Provisional Local Finance Settlement for
2021/22 is included as Appendix E to this report.

Local Taxation & GLA Taxation

The Council has a duty under the Local Government Finance Act 2003 to
set a balanced budget before 11th March 2021. This report supports the
enablement of that duty to be fulfilled, subject to agreement of the
recommendations in this report by Full Council on the 8th March 2021.

It is recommended that there is a 1.99% increase in council tax for the
Croydon element of the charge and a 3.00% increase based on the Adult
Social Care Precept as set by the Chancellor. The GLA are proposing a
9.5% increase in their element of the charge and that is due to be agreed
by the GLA on the 24™ February 2021. The overall headline increase is
5.83%. The effect of this increase on Band D is set out in table 5 below.

Table 5 — Local Taxation & GLA Taxation increase (Band D
comparison)

Band D 2021/22 Increase Annual Weekly
Increase Increase
£ % £ £
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
gd”'t Soclal Care 170.47 3.00% 43.56 0.84
recept
Greater London Authority 363.66 9.50% 31.59 0.61
Total 1,888.15 5.83% 104.05 2.00

Wider Local Government Funding Issues
A summary of wider local government funding issues is set out below.

The Council was part of the 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 London
Business Rates Pool. 2020/21 will be the final year of the pool as councils

Page 124



in London have decided to discontinue the pool due to the volﬁtfﬁ%?rﬁq'x H
business rates following the pandemic and possible reduction in business
rates income. Therefore, Councils will return to the usual business rates
shares for 2021/22 which will be 30% for Croydon, 37% for the GLA and
33% for Central Government.

10.3 Levy/Safety Account - As would perhaps be expected, given the level of
uncertainty regarding 2020/21 business rates income, there was no
announcement regarding the allocation of potential funds from the BRR
levy/safety net account.

10.4 Local Government Funding Reforms - There were no additional papers
published or mentioned relating to the local government funding reforms
that are planned for introduction from April 2021 (i.e. Fair Funding, 75%
Business Rates Retention, the full reset of the business rates baselines or
the potential Alternative Business Rates Retention System).

10.5 COVID-19 Support - Further details have been published regarding the
support for local authorities in 2021/22 for COVID-19. These are in the
form of a policy paper that can be found by clicking here. This funding is
not included in the Core Spending Power figures. The paper covers the
following areas.

10.6 £1.55bn Grant Funding - Details of the additional £1.55bn of COVID
funding for 2021/22 is available here. This will represent un-ringfenced
grant support and uses the COVID-RNF developed in July 2020 and
applied to the third tranche of funding announced in July (and
retrospectively all four tranches in October 2020). MHCLG has indicated
that they are aiming to make payments to local authorities in April 2021.

10.7 £0.67bn local council tax support grant - The government has indicated
that it is providing this to broadly meet the additional costs associated with
increases in local council tax support caseloads in 2021/22. The funding
will be un-ringfenced and can be used to provide other support to
vulnerable households, including through local welfare schemes.

10.8 MHCLG are proposing to distribute the £670m of grant funding based on
working-age Local Council Tax Support caseloads in each billing
authority’s area, using data from quarter 1 and quarter 2 of 2020/21. They
are also proposing to adjust this distribution, based on the ratio of the
average bill per dwelling in the billing authority’s area in 2020/21,
compared to the average bill per dwelling in England in 2020/21. Using
this distribution methodology, MHCLG hope to be in a position to make
up-front lump sum section 31 payments directly to billing and major
precepting authorities in April 2021. The funding allocations have not been
published today, but MHCLG indicate that details of the provisional
funding allocations will be published in due course.

10.9 Local tax income guarantee for 2020/21 (i.e. business rates and council
tax deficits) - The government has also announced, as part of a
consultative policy paper, the details of its proposed scheme for
compensating for irrecoverable local taxation losses.

10.10 Sale, Fees and Charges Support MHCLG - are seeking views to continue

Page 125


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-emergency-funding-for-local-government/covid-19-funding-for-local-government-in-2021-22-consultative-policy-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-emergency-funding-for-local-government/covid-19-funding-for-local-government-in-2021-22-consultative-policy-paper

the current support for the first quarter of 2021/22 and continue’al%oﬁggix H

2020/21 budgeted income as the baseline to assess losses.

10.11 Other - MHCLG are proposing to continue (a more streamlined) COVID-
19 financial impact survey and are also seeking views on priority areas for
data collection going forward

11 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

11.1 The Council last updated its Medium Term Financial Strategy [MTFS] and
presented those plans to Council in October 2018. Best practice, set out
in the CIPFA Financial Management Code, requires a three year MTFS to
be prepared each year alongside the annual budget setting process to
recognise future budget pressures and to allow planning for meeting
identified pressures to be made in sufficient time to meet those challenges.
This budget report meets those requirements by consideration of a three
year position rather than just the following single year.

11.2 Work in refreshing the three year MTFS planning horizon from that
previously agreed in October 2018 began at the start of summer 2020.
Improvements to the process have included:

a) planning for three years instead of a single year;

b) the development of revenue proposal forms which include
consideration not just the financial impact, but risks, impact on
stakeholders and key milestones required for delivery, and budget
holder sign-off;

c) budget challenge sessions in both officer only and officer/member
sessions;

d) comparison of spending requirements and income generating
budgets to benchmarking data across similar authorities;

e) external review of significant budgets and change proposals by
external bodies including the LGA, CIPFA and PWC; and

f) the implementation of a monitoring process and system to
continuously track the progress of savings proposals delivery across
the Council, to be regularly reported to and reviewed by Corporate
Leadership Team and members.

11.3 The outcome of the budget setting and MTFS processes undertaken over
the last nine months has, subject to confirmation of the requested
capitalisation direction support from MHCLG, delivered a balanced budget
for 2021/22. Delivery of savings, the management of risk, and control of
expenditure to live within proposed budgets set out throughout this report
will be required to ensure that net overspends over next year's budget
period are managed and mitigated.

114 The medium term (years 2022/23 and 2023/24) budget positions set out
in this MTFS are predicated on central government support in relation to

Page 126



Revenue Support Grant and Localised Business Rates remaining ‘éP&’a?de'x H
unchanged except for inflationary increases and anticipated movements

in taxbase. Deferred by ministers due to the covid-19 pandemic are
proposals to review the operation of the local government funding regime
and policy changes with regard to a Fair Funding Review, operation of the
Localised Business Rates system; and a business property revaluation
exercise are expected over the following years. The MTFS recognises
these potential changes but assumes that whilst such individual funding
streams may vary, the overall level of core funding will remain broadly
neutral.

11.5 The Budget and MTFS position set out in this report provides a balanced
budget position for 2021/22, but over the longer term sees further
efficiencies that will need to be developed to balance future years (with or
without further capitalisation direction requests) for which MHCLG have
indicated they are unable to determine at this date as those years fall
outside of the current Spending Review period. In order to provide
sufficient time for such proposals to be developed and implemented, work
will begin on refreshing the MTFS in the near future.

12.0 Corporate Assumptions - 2021/21 budget
Grants
12.1 As set out in section 2 of the draft settlement. There has been a number

of changes in grant income that have to be taken into account in the
2021/22 budget.

Inflation

12.2 The budget for 2021/22 needs to take account of changes in the cost of
living/inflation. A pay award of at least 2% for all staff has been assumed,
although the unions have put in a substantially higher claim. Additionally
a number of council contracts are subject to indexation each year. The
MTFS has provided for £10.4m for contractual and pay inflation and this
needs to be managed within the Council’s overall budget. The overall
increase in the budget for inflation for both the pay award and inflation will
be held corporately and will then be allocated out to departments in year.

12.3 The council’s capital programme assumes the taking out of new borrowing
to fund projects that require debt. The assumption overall is that there will
be borrowing of circa £60.4m in 2021/22 and an additional amount of
£0.87m has been added to the revenue budget to fund the associated
interest payments.

London Business Rates Pilot / Pool

12.4 Under the Localised Business Rates system, the council ordinarily retains
30% of the business rates collected from business premises within the
borough and as such benefits from any growth above baseline funding
levels. The Greater London Authority retaining 37% and the remaining
33% being returned to central government.

12.5 Pilot status was awarded to London boroughs, who collectively formed a
business rates pool, in 2018/19 and 2019/20 which reduced the amount

Page 127



of growth returned to MHCLG to 0% and then 25% in the twg‘%%'?g'x H
respectively. This pilot status was withdrawn by central government for the
current financial year and reduced the collective amount of benefit from
business rate growth that was retained by London boroughs. That said,
London boroughs continued to operate pooling arrangements in 2020/21

as, despite no benefit being derived from MHCLG receiving a smaller
share, the pooling of Levy and Safety Net positions was forecast to deliver

an overall benefit for London Boroughs.

12.6 The coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the business
environment across London and as a consequence total yield across the
region is expected and forecast to reduce as a result of business failure
and significant levels of appeals of rateable value due to material change
in circumstances. The result of these changes has been to erode the
potential benefit for London borough’s to continue pooling and it has
collectively been decided that a pool will not operate for the year 2021/22.

12.7 The 2020/21 budget for the Council assumed a pooling benefit of £0.5m,
which is unlikely to now materialise as a result of the changes to the
economic environment, but will be subject to final clarification pending
completion of all London borough business rate accounts returns in May
2021. This reduction in previously estimated gains from pooling is
reflected in both the current year forecast outturn position and built into
MTFS assumptions.

Settlement Funding Assessment per head across London

12.8 Table 6 below shows the Settlement Funding Assessment per head for
each London Borough (excluding the City of London) and shows Croydon
ranked as 21st, receiving £237 per head in 2021/22, whereas
neighbouring Lambeth will receive £447 per head. If Croydon were funded
at the London average of £382 per head for 2021/22 it would receive an
additional £56m.

12.9 Croydon has an average of £237 per head over the five year period; this
compares to the London average of £382.

Page 128



Table 6 — Settlement Funding Assessment per head Appendix H

(E's) (E's) (E's) (E's) (E's) (E's) (1-33)
2017/18 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | Average | Rank

SFA (£ PER RESIDENT)
City of London 2803.19 | 2707.54 | 2592.05 | 2615.05 | 2600.16 2663.60 1
Hackney 567.10 | 536.71| 504.16 | 507.58 | 503.94 523.90 2
Southwark 523.22 | 493.58 | 462.34 | 465.95| 463.12 481.64 3
Westminster 511.39 | 480.89 | 449.06 | 450.44 | 445.98 467.55 4
Islington 503.61 | 473.29 | 44153 | 445.02 | 442.46 461.18 5
Tower Hamlets 497.65 | 464.45| 430.64 | 429.71| 423.30 449.15 6
Lambeth 483.89 | 457.53 | 429.06 | 434.19 | 433.14 447.56 7
Camden 482.60 | 448.27 | 413.31 | 414.34 | 409.95 433.69 8
Hammersmith And Fulham 470.61 | 442.40 | 412.25| 41559 | 413.22 430.81 9
Newham 455.88 | 431.84 | 406.39 | 409.86 | 407.84 422.36 10
Kensington And Chelsea 458.10 | 428.82 | 395.73 | 402.21 | 402.62 417.49 11
Lewisham 44482 | 419.60 | 392.68 | 396.21 | 394.11 409.49 12
Haringey 42552 | 401.98 | 376.18 | 381.46 | 381.12 393.25 13
Greenwich 417.07 | 392.27 | 366.25| 368.46 | 365.53 381.92 14
Barking And Dagenham 389.83 | 369.19| 347.05| 350.81 | 349.67 361.31 15
Brent 378.43 | 356.01 | 332.13 | 335.69 | 334.53 347.35 16
Waltham Forest 357.71 | 335.72| 312.27 | 315.65| 314.59 327.19 17
Wandsworth 324.79 | 307.37 | 288.59 | 291.47 | 290.26 300.50 18
Ealing 312.92 | 293.84 | 272.88 | 277.72| 278.40 287.15 19
Enfield 309.43 | 290.04 | 269.06 | 272.82 | 272.59 282.79 20
Croydon 263.98 | 244.57 | 223.78 | 226.72 | 226.27 237.07 21
Hounslow 25042 | 232.06 | 21250 | 215.25| 214.89 225.02 22
Sutton 248.57 | 227.43 | 205.17 | 207.35| 206.49 219.00 23
Redbridge 240.67 | 223.74 | 205.56 | 208.34 | 207.99 217.26 24
Merton 235.44 | 216.50 | 196.00 | 198.99 | 198.95 209.18 25
Hillingdon 208.68 | 190.56 | 171.73| 17351 | 172.78 183.45 26
Harrow 200.16 | 181.68| 161.91| 164.32 | 164.19 174.45 27
Barnet 199.57 | 180.21 | 160.07 | 161.32 | 160.19 172.27 28
Bexley 194.04 | 176.24 | 157.51 | 159.33 | 158.67 169.16 29
Havering 172.82 | 15423 | 135.08 | 136.25| 135.32 146.74 30
Kingston upon Thames 148,90 | 128.89 | 122.16 | 123.48 | 122.90 129.27 31
Bromley 141,30 | 12424 | 113.14 | 114.34| 113.74 121.35 32
Richmond upon Thames 12460 | 109.73 | 111.71 | 11299 | 11252 114.31 33
13 Department Assumptions 2021/22 budget
13.1 Alongside the corporate assumptions that underpin the 2021/22 budget,

work has been ongoing to ensure that departmental and service estimates
are accurate. This is the key element of the budget where movement in
resources between services can be identified. This reflects growth,
savings and income. Appendix A sets out the detailed list of growth,
savings and options across the four departments of the council. Table 7
below shows the movements within departments and at a corporate level
from 2020/21 to 2021/22.

Page 129




Table 7 — Cash Limit Movement

Appendix H

Cash L Cash
Department Limits Growth | Savings f\)/ltohveerments gﬁggagiatlon Limits

20/21 21/22

£M £M £M £M M
Children, Families 86.892 | 20.433 | -9.433 -0.282 0000 | 97.610
and Education
Health, Wellbeing 121.177 | 29.251 | -17.494 0.000 0.000 | 132.934
and Adults
Place 45.766 | 10.102 | -12.759 20.186 0000 | 42.923
Resources 37.682 | 13585 | -4.982 0.468 0000 | 46.753
Service Total 291517 | 73.371 | -44.668 0.000 0.000 | 320.220
Corporate Items -291.517 | 26.879 -5.582 0.000 -50.000 | -320.220

13.2

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

The projected department overspend in 2020/21 is £96.5m which includes
all risks. The main areas of overspend are from demand led services, loss
of income and unachievable savings as a result of the pandemic. Details
of this can be found within the 20/21 Q3 Financial Performance Report
which is a separate item on this Agenda.

Croydon Services
Children, Families and Education including UASC

Croydon’s Children’s Services were rated as good in February 2020, an
outcome achieved through the successful implementation and deliver of
the Children’s Services Improvement Pan accompanied by significant
additional resources allocated as part of the 2018/19 and 2019/20
Children’s Social Care budgets in addition to one-off investment funding
via the Council’s Transformation Reserve.

2020/21 had been a year of consolidation of staffing requirements in the
department, whilst the LA has reviewed the strategic action to be taken to
ensure that there is sufficient accommodation for children and young
people with who are looked after and for those leaving care, the budget
allocation available for the current cohort of Croydon's looked after
children (excluding UASC), care leavers and children with disabilities is
insufficient to fund the accommodation required year on year. This
pressure is reflected in the Quarter 3 financial monitoring reported to
Cabinet.

In addition, the exceptional items reported to Cabinet in the Quarter 3
financial monitoring report relate to UASC, NRPF and Appeal Rights
Exhausted (ARE). We are continuing to engage in positive dialogue with
various government departments to mitigate this financial burden. As
stated, the UASC pressure is as a result of the number of UASC remaining
in Croydon, above the National Transfer Scheme rate of 0.07% of the
borough’s child population, together with the failure to recognise the
gateway authority-specific costs and the sheer number of former UASC

Page 130




who have remained as care leavers until they reach the age of Zg‘%%?g'x H
old. Whilst our numbers of UASC are decreasing, direct and indirect
service provision costs are not decreasing at the same rate.

14.4 The Home Office increased the rates of reimbursement from April 2020 to
£240 per care leaver per week and £143 per child per night for those LAs
supporting UASC at, or in excess of, 0.07% of their child population, as at
31 March 2020.

14.5 The total 2020/21 forecast cost of Asylum seeking children and care
leavers for the Council is £5.3m and includes Children’s Social Care costs,
along with costs associated with education and health for these young
people. Modelling indicates that if the number of children and young
people in the council’s care remains the same the numbers will reduce to
0.07% by 2031-32. Until that time Croydon is accommodating asylum
seeking children and young people at an annual cost of between £5.4m -
£6.7m. Support from the Department for Education and the Home Office
is being sought to secure a solution that addresses the disproportionate
financial burden on Croydon council now and in future years.

Health, Wellbeing and Adults

14.6 Adult social care continues to be under pressure nationally and locally. In
Croydon, Adult Social Care has continued to see increases in demand for
services above budget and there is a projected net overspend as at Q3 of
£21.3min 2020/21. Areas of significant overspend continues to be in 25-
65 Disability Service and Older People and following agreed in year
savings, overspends are £11.7m and £4.8m respectively. This is the result
of inherent pressures within the budget, additional costs due to the Covid-
19 pandemic, in addition to rising demand in Domiciliary Care, Nursing
and Residential placements where there is an increase in placement costs
and complex cases which are exacerbated by Covid-19. The service has
had a strong partnership with health during the pandemic. Ensuring that
people are moved efficiently from a hospital setting to the most appropriate
follow on care setting in the community.

14.7 On the advice of the Local Government Association (LGA) finance lead,
the council aims to set a revised budget to reflect current activity in Adult
Social Care. In 2021/22, £28.9m growth has been allocated to match
current demand and allow for in year demographic growth. The long term
impact of Covid -19 is currently unknown nationally and may adversely
impact social care expenditure in future years. To mitigate the increasing
costs in Adult Social Care, the council is committed to reducing spend by
changing the way social care is delivered and live within available
resources. The council is working with social work practice and finance
leads from the LGA and have accepted their view that Croydon’s spending
on younger and older adults is significantly higher than that of comparable
boroughs. Therefore, by reducing spend in line with the average level of
spending in London or England as appropriate, there is scope to make
significant savings in the medium term, following the budget being set at
the right level to match current activity. Savings and change programmes
are being developed with key LGA guidance taken into consideration.

Housing Assessment and Needs

Page 131



Appendix H

14.8 The number of households supported by the Emergency and Temporary
Accommodation teams has continued to rise. It is expected that the short
to medium term will see a further influx in numbers as the temporary hold
on evictions due to Covid-19 is lifted. Ring-fenced funding from MHCLG is
continuing in the form of the £7.2m Homelessness Prevention Grant,
replacing two previously issued grants. This grant will be split between
funding accommodation and prevention work to minimise numbers of
residents entering the service. The council is also working on reviewing
housing  contracts, including supported housing, emergency
accommodation and temporary accommodation. This is expected to lead
to a new strategy for temporary accommodation, new routes to purchase
private sector housing and new contracts for the provision of supported
housing.

Place and Resources

14.9 The Place directorate continue to face challenging budgetary pressures
for 2020-21 as a result of Covid-19. The service is showing a reduced level
of income collection in the Parking division following government advice
for travel to be reduced to a minimum for most of the year. The reduced
level of transactions processed has impacted on the projected income
from parking.

The new Private Landlord Selective Licensing Scheme which was
supposed to be operative from October 2020 to mark the commencement
of the five year scheme for private landlords is not going ahead in 2020-
21. This is largely due to the delay in MHCLG approving the scheme to be
fully operational this financial year (2020-21). The service is looking into
strategies to mitigate overspends in year by aligning its workforce and
resources to the delivery of its objectives. In 2021-22, the budget for
Selective Licensing is amended to reflect a delay in the start of the scheme
to October 2021.

Corporate Budget

14.10 The corporate budget consists of the council’s central costs that are not
distinguishable across any specific Directorate.

14.11 The Corporate Budget provides for various strategic income and
expenditure items such as income from general Grants, Investment
income, Levies, minimum revenue provision and financing costs. The total
net Corporate Budget is £270.220m.

Savings and Growth

14.12 The full list of savings and income options included in the 2021/22 budget
are set out in Appendix A.

14.13 The Council has set up a Steering Board that will oversee the delivery of
these Savings over the course of 21/22. Each saving options has a
designated Project Manager (PM) and a Senior Responsible Officer
(SRO) who will be held accountable to deliver savings assigned to them.

Page 132



14.14

15

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

Table 8 below provides an indication of the savings and growth tﬁ‘QPﬁQ

been allocated to each Directorate.

Table 8 — Growth and Savings per Directorate

TOTAL
2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 5051 104
£m £m £m £m
Children, Families Savings | -9.433 | -4.694| -2.296| -16.423
and Education Growth | 20.433 0.085| 0.077| 20595
Health Wellbeing and | Savings | -17.494 [ -10.745 | -9.505 | -37.744
Adults Growth | 29.251 6.919 | 6.880 | 43.049
Place Savings | -12.759 | -7.378| -3.513 | -23.650
Growth | 10.102 0.800| 1.000| 11.902
Savings -4.982 -1.693 -1.277 -7.952

Resources
Growth 13.585 -0.720 -0.863 | 12.002

Local Taxation Charge for 2021/22

The council tax change for the Croydon element of the charge for 2021/22
is recommended to be 4.99% in accordance with Appendix D of the report.

This decision includes a 3.0% increase for the Government’s’ adult social
care precept that was approved as part of the Local Government Finance
Settlement. This is contained in Appendix C, with the Band D effect shown

in table 9 below.

Table 9 — Local Taxation for 2021/22

Band D 2021/22 Increase Ir'?grr:;ile Ix\éerzglsye
£ % £ i
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
Adult Social Care Precept 170.47 3.00% 43.56 0.84
Total 1,524.49 4.99% 72.46 1.39

Table 10 gives details of both the increases to the Croydon element of the
council tax and the Adult Social Care precept over the last 4 years and the
increase being recommended for 2021/22.

Table 10 — Croydon Council percentage increase since 2018/19

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Croydon Council
Percentage change

2.99%

2.99%

1.99%

1.99%

Adult Social Care
Precept

2%

1%

2%

3%

Alongside grant income, local taxation is the other major income stream

Page 133

gix H




that impacts on the budget setting of the council. The CoIIectio’ﬁ‘pFPSHS'x H
accounts for taxation from Council Tax and Business rates. Further detail
can be found in Appendix B.

Council tax

15.5 Budgeted Council Tax revenues for 2020/21 are £193m and comprise
69% of the Council’s overall Net Budget Requirement for this year of
£277m —the balance of funding being derived from localised business rate
income and Revenue Support Grant [RSG]. The charge for 2020/21 saw
a maximum increase of 3.99% (1.99% General Demand increase and
2.00% increase through an additional Adults Social Care Precept) that
was permitted and assumed in government’s Core Spending Power
assessment of local government funding without breaching the general
level of increase that would have required a referendum to be held for the
increase. The Band D charge of £1,524.49 (excluding the GLA precept of
£363.66) is the fifth highest charge amongst London Boroughs.

15.6 Budget proposals set out in this report assume and recommend that the
Council Tax charge is increased in 2021/22 by the maximum allowed
under government regulations without triggering the need to hold a
referendum on the increase. For 2021/22 those limits are 1.99% General
Demand increase and 3.00% Social Care Precept — a total of 4.99%. Any
higher proposed increase would require a referendum to be held at the
Council’s expense, unless permission were sought from the Secretary of
State for a higher threshold for Croydon than currently set out in
regulations.

15.7 The 4.99% increase outlined in the paragraph above would see the annual
charge on a Band D property increase by £28.90 per year for the General
Demand whilst the Social Care Precept increase of 3.00% adds £43.56 —
collectively an increase of £72.46 and equivalent to £1.39 per week for a
Band D Council Tax payer. In addition, the GLA has proposed a 9.51%
increase for its General and Metropolitan Police charges. Collectively
these proposed increases would result in a total Band D charge of
£1,888.15 — an increase of £104.05 (5.83%), equivalent to £2.00 per week
increase for a Band D household with two or more residents. The following
table illustrates the composition and the impact of the proposed changes
on each property banding.

Table 11: Change in Council Tax charge

| 2020/21 Charges || 2021/22 Charges || weekly Change |
Band D General Social GLA Total General Social GLA Total

Band Ratio Demand Care Precept Charge Demand Care Precept Charge Croydon GLA
(£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s) (£'s)

A 69ths 88341 8461 221.38 1,189.40  902.68 113.65 242.44 1,258.77 0.93 0.41
B 79ths 1,030.65 98.71  258.28 1,387.63 1,053.13 132,59  282.85 1,468.57 1.08 0.47
C 89ths 1,177.88 112.81 295.17 1,585.87 1,203.57 151.53 323.25 1,678.35 1.24 0.54
D 99ths 1,325.12 126.91 332.07 1,784.10 1,354.02 170.47 363.66 1,888.15 1.39 0.61
E 119ths 1,619.59 155.11 405.86 2,180.57 1,654.91 208.35 444.47 2,307.73 1.70 0.74
F  139ths 1,914.05 183.31 479.66 2,577.03  1,955.81 246.23 525.29 2,727.33 2.01 0.88
G 159ths 2,208.53  211.52  553.45 2,973.50 2,256.70 284.12  606.10 3,146.92 2.32 1.01
H 189ths 2,650.24 253.82 664.14 3,568.20 2,708.04 340.94 727.32 3,776.30 2.79 1.22

Page 134



15.8 The amount raised in Council Tax receipts for the Council is a func’ﬁBH%(?'x H
only of the Band D charge itself, but the number and composition of
properties eligible to pay the charge. This quantum is referred to as the
“Taxbase” and was required to be determined and notified to precepting
bodies by the 31t January 2021. Having made that determination, any
further changes to that assumed quantum are, by way of required
technical accounting adjustments, withheld from impacting next year’s
General Fund revenue position, instead being held in an unusable
collection fund adjustment reserve until the following year.

15.9 The estimated taxbase for 2020/21 was determined in January 2020 to be
132,729.4 Band D equivalent properties (after adjusting for the estimated
number of properties in each banding; relevant discounts and exemptions;
and anticipated collection rate). The equivalent number of properties for
2021/22 has been estimated to be 129,940.8 Band D equivalents — a
decline of 2,788.6.

15.10 The change in taxbase is predominantly the result of anticipated growth in
property numbers not materialising as originally assumed, but is also
impacted by the number of householders becoming eligible for discounts
due to their economic circumstances and reduced collection rates — all of
which have been significantly impacted by the coronavirus pandemic.

15.11 The decline in projected number of Band D equivalent properties has an
impact on the base budget for 2021/22. At the current 2020/21 Band D
charge for Croydon (£1,452.03), a fall of 2,788.6 in the taxbase sees a
reduction of £4.0m in income derived from Council Tax. However, the
proposed increase of 4.99% in the Band D charge for the Council offsets
this fall with the General Demand Increase (£28.90) and Social Care
Precept (£E43.56) respectively generating an additional £3.8m and £5.7m.

15.12 Taken collectively, the impact of the proposed Council Tax charge
increases and change in taxbase see the current budgeted income from
Council Tax of £193m increase by £5m in 2021/22 to £198m.

15.13 In setting out forecasts over the longer three-year MTFS planning horizon,
future years Band D charges are assumed to increase by 1.99% year-on-
year in accordance with current year referendum limits (and at Bank of
England target inflation rate) whilst taxbase growth is assumed to return
to a higher level (last four year average) and collection rates also trend
back up to 98.5% as the impact of the coronavirus pandemic diminishes.
The MTFS assumptions see future increases in net yield of £8m and then
£7min 2022/23 and 2023/24 as a result.

15.14 As referred to earlier in this section, technical accounting adjustments
required under regulations ensure that any deficit in Council tax receipts
actually chargeable to that forecast at the start of the year are offset and
thus impact in the future year. These adjustments are held in the unusable
reserve Collection Fund Adjustment Account. The lower than previously
anticipated growth in the taxbase during 2020/21, as well as seeing a
detrimental impact in receipts in 2021/22, also has an adverse impact on
the 2020/21 position and results in a deficit in the Collection Fund. This is
ordinarily recovered as an adjustment in the following year, but recent

Page 135



regulations allow and require the 2020/21 deficit to be recoveredA&Peerngix H

three rather than one year period.

15.15 However, one-off additional grant funding has recently been announced
as part of government funding to local councils for covid impacts which will
mitigate deficit that would otherwise be seen. Collectively these
adjustments see a £0.9m additional pressure on the budget position next
year which remains over the three-year life of the MTFS due to the three-
year spreading arrangements introduced by the latest amended
regulations.

Projected Collection Fund Surplus / Deficit

15.16 Council Tax and Business Rate income is collected by the Council as the
Billing Authority on its own behalf and the GLA (and in the case of business
rates a 33% share for central government). All income and costs, such as
write-offs; refunds and appeals repayments, are in the first instance
credited to the Collection Fund account — an unusable reserve in the
Council’s balance sheet and distributed by means of precepts by the
relevant bodies on that account.

15.17 Substantially as the result of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
growth in the number of residential properties has seen fewer properties
added to the Council Tax property list in the current year as well as
declining collection rates that has led to the need to increase bad debt
provisions at year end for potential losses. Similarly, in-year business rate
yield has been impacted by the number of properties being declared
vacant (and subject to three-month empty property relief) and the level of
appeals against property valuations increasing leading to refunds where
successful and provisions for those still pending determination by the
Valuation Office Agency. In both cases these circumstances have led to
forecast deficits for the current financial year.

15.18 Technical adjustment required under statute require that the amounts
estimated to be distributed in any financial year represented the amount
originally budgeted to be distributed and any in-year surplus or deficit is
retained within the Collection Fund account and impact on general
reserves in the following financial year. In-year deficits caused by factors
outlined above, whilst not impacting on the current year General Fund
budget thus affect next year’s budget position.

15.19 Recognising the impact the current Covid-19 pandemic has had on all
local authority positions with regard to both Council Tax and business
rates, additional statutory regulations have been issued to require
significant elements of any in-year deficit to be held in the Collection Fund
and spread over a three year period rather than the usual one year — the
re-phasing of these deficits are included in the proposals set out in this
Budget Setting and three-year MTFS report.

15.20 The total projected deficit on the Council Tax element of the Collection
Fund was estimated to be £9.167m and notified to preceptors on 25%
January 2020. Croydon’s share of that deficit is £7.458m — being spread
over three years being 2.503m per year. A final variance on the 2019/20
outturn of £0.052m reduces the net transfer in 2021/22 only.

Page 136



15.21

16.0

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.0

17.1

17.2

Against a 2020/21 base budget Croydon share of a deficit of prf%‘P@/‘ne'&?j'x H
business rates Collection Fund deficits, an increase of £0.185m to a total

of £1.910m. Under regulations this element cannot be spread over three
years and becomes a one-off charge in 2021/22. In addition, a further
£2.391m deficit has been forecast which is spread over three years,
representing an annual cost over the MTFS period of £0.797m.

Greater London Authority Precept 2021/22

On 15" December 2020, the Mayor of London announced his provisional
proposal to increase his share of council tax by 1.99%, £6.64. This was
revised on 12" January 2021 to 9.5%, £31.59 of which £15 will go towards
helping fund the Metropolitan Police and £15 for Transport of London
subsidies for children and over 60s. The remaining £1.59 per-household
would go towards helping the fire service respond to changes
recommended by the Grenfell Tower inquiry.

In order to implement the proposed increases for TfL, the GLA requires
approval from the government to amend its referendum limits as the
increase would be greater than its current 2% limit before a referendum
was required.

This overall resultant council tax increase is set out in table 12 below.

Table 12— Local Taxation increase and the GLA Tax increase

Band D 2021/22 Increase Annual Weekly
Increase | Increase
£ % £ £
Croydon 1,354.02 1.99% 28.9 0.56
ﬁd“'t Social Care 170.47 3.00% 43.56 0.84
recept
Greater London Authority 363.66 9.50% 31.59 0.61
Total 1,888.15 5.83% 104.05 2.00

The overall increase on the total bill for the residents Croydon is 5.83%.

DSG CROYDON

In 2019, the government announced additional in education funding over
a three year period from 2020/21 and national schools funding will
increase by £4.8 billion in 2021/22 and £7.1 billion in 2022/23 compared
to funding levels in 2019/20. In addition, funding continues to be provided
to fund the recent increase in pension costs for teachers, worth £1.5bn a
year.

Croydon’s DSG allocation has increased accordingly and in 2021/22,

Croydon will receive £390.567m in funding through the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG), an increase of £25.3m in funding, of which £12.9m relates

Page 137



17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

to the teacher's pay and pension grant element, or 6.9% since 26@8@1‘?“ H

compared to 6.6% increase across London and 8.1% nationally.

The increase in funding from 2020/21 follows a decade of real term
reductions in per pupil funding for statutory school aged pupils (5 — 16
years old). In January 2020, the Department for Education (DfE) released
trend data on school revenue funding revealing that the total amount of
funding through specific grants?, in cash terms, allocated to English
schools for 5-16 year olds had grown over the last nine years as the total
pupil population has grown. The total funding allocated to schools was
£44.5 billion in 2019/20, an increase of 27.4% compared to the £35.0
billion allocated in 2010/11.

Total funding also grew over this time in real terms (adjusted for price
changes using the GDP deflator), increasing by 8.8%. Funding increased
in real terms in each year during that period with the exception of a slight
fall in 2016/17 compared to 2015/16.

On a per-pupil basis the total funding allocated to schools for 5-16 year
olds, in cash terms, in 2019/20 was £5,940, a 14.8% increase compared
to £5,170 allocated per pupil in 2010/11. In real terms, funding per pupil
was broadly flat between 2010/11 and 2015/16 at just over £6,000 in
2019/20 prices. It then fell by 4.2% over 2016/17 and 2017/18, but
subsequently increased by 1.9% over 2018/19 and 2019/20, in part as a
result of additional funding provided in respect of teacher pension
employer contribution costs.

Over a shorter period, in cash terms Croydon’s per pupil funding increased
to £6,166 in 2019/20, a 7.1% increase compared to £5,757 allocated for
statutory school age pupils in 2013/14. In real terms, funding per pupil
over the same period fell by 3%. Since 2019/20, with the exclusion of the
teacher's pay and pension grant element, per pupil funding has increased
to £6,831, a 10.7% increase since 2019/20. Croydon’s total DSG
(excluding the Early Years Block) changes, in cash and real terms, since
2018/19 is summarised in the table 13 below.

Table 13- Funding per pupil

o 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Schools 243.87 24751 262.96 269.16
High Needs 60.21 61.09 66.8 72.40
Central School Services 6.18 6.12 5.83 5.97
Total DSG (exc Early Years) 310.26 314.72 335.59 347.53
Pupil numbers 50,777 51,037 51,023 50,875
Per pupil funding £6,110.29 £6,166.47 £6,577.45 £6,831.09
Funding change 2.50% 0.90% 6.70% 3.90%
Inflation (CPI) 2.70% 2.50% 1.80% 0.90%
Real terms funding change -0.20% -1.60% 4.90% 3.00%

Page 138




Dedicated schools grant (including the schools block, most of the high needs block and the central sch&ppendlx H
services block (CSSB); but excluding the early years block and post-16 funding in the high needs block); Pre-16

high needs place funding in non-maintained special schools, special and alternative provision free schools; Pupil
premium; Supplementary free school meals grant; Teachers' pay grant (TPG);and Teachers' pension employer
contribution grant (TPECG).

Schools Block

17.7 The Schools Block 2021/22 allocation is £281.313m (before recoupment),
which is an increase of £18.35m since 2020/21 mainly due to the inclusion
of the teacher's pay and pension grant element of £12.154m and to
accommodate the overall increase in Education funding for 2021/22.

17.8 The minimum funding guarantee (MFG) will continue to be applied, hence
every school or academy will see an increase in funding of at least 0.5%
per pupil compared to its 2020/21 budget (this excludes sixth form
funding). MFG protects schools’ budgets from large changes in funding
based on factor changes. It protects on a £/per pupil basis. This means it
will not protect a school against falling roll numbers.

17.9 The NFF provides two per pupil funding rates, one for primary pupils and
one for secondary pupils. In 2021/22, the respective funding rates are
£4,821 and £6,433. The 2020/21 rates per pupil were £4,505 for primary
pupils and £5,987 for secondary pupils. Croydon is, on a per pupil basis
for primary and secondary pupils, ranked 23" out of 32 London boroughs.
This ranking has risen by one place since 2020/21. Although Croydon has
seen an increase in its funding allocation, boroughs nearest to us have
also received an increase. This results in the continuation of the gap
between how much extra a pupil in our nearest inner London neighbours
is funded compared to Croydon.

Early Years

17.10 The Early Years 2021/22 indicative allocation is £30.108, an increase of
£0.352m since 2020/21 again mainly to accommodate the overall increase
in Education funding for 2021/22. The final allocation will be adjusted
following the January 2021 census.

17.11 The Early Years block allocation for Croydon is based on a nationally set
rate of a:
e £5.21 hourly rate for three and four year olds; and
e £5.74 for two year olds
This has increased from funding rates of £5.13 and £5.66,
respectively.

The proposed rates based on the indicative 2021/22 allocation remain as
they were in 2020/21 at:
e £4.87 for three and four year olds; and
£5.74 for two year olds

High Needs
17.12 Funding for High Needs provision continues to be area of increased

budget pressure nationally and Councils including Croydon have
developed Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) strategies to

Page 139



17.13

17.14

17.15

17.16

17.17

ensure services are delivered efficiently and effectively to meet (ﬂ?ﬂgﬂg'x H

and need. Croydon Council has reviewed SEND demand, practice and
provision and engaged with stake-holders, including parents, young
people and schools to inform the development of five year SEND Strategy
that was implemented in 2019/20.

The High Needs 2021/22 allocation is £73.1m, which is an increase of
£6.586m since 2020/21, including the teacher's pay and pension grant
element of £0.696m. This allocation is based on the October 2020 census,
with further adjustments to be made for January 2021 census.

At as the end of 2019/20, the High Needs block forecast overspend was
£18.477 m (including previous years overspends). The 2020/21 Quarter
3 High Needs Block forecast overspend is £4.575m, bringing the
cumulative High Needs deficit to £23.052m.

The budget pressures are principally attributable to the increase in
demand, which has led to an over-reliance on the independent / non-
maintained sector, due to shortage of local state funded special schools
and / or resourced provision. This is being addressed and a strategy
developed to move to a more sustainable framework. Table 14 below
illustrates the increase in the number of Education and Health Care Plans
compared to the increase in High needs funding since the introduction of
the EHCP regulations in 2014/15.

Table 14 Impact of EHCP regulations

Percentage Percentage

Year Funding Funding Number of increase in of Totalg
£'m Change EHC Plans number of PUDils

EHC Plans P
2014/15 48.90 2,044 4.5%
2015/16 51.41 5.1% 2,074 1.5% 4.5%
2016/17 51.24 -0.3% 2,217 6.9% 4.8%
2017/18 51.63 0.8% 2,491 12.4% 5.0%
2018/19 58.82 13.9% 2,693 8.1% 5.3%
2019/20 60.21 2.4% 2,999 11.4% 5.9%
2020/21 66.80 10.9% 3,163 5.5% 6.2%

The increase in 2021/22 will mean there will have been a 30.4% real terms
increase in funding since 2014/15. However, over the same timescale,
we will have seen an increase in EHC plans of over 53%

Croydon Council has a long term plan to increase special schools,
Enhanced Learning Provision and post 16 specialist places, including a
new free special school with 150 places opening in September 2020.
Through this strategy the intention is to provide an effective pathway of
local education provision for young people which is an efficient use of
resources and supports young people in becoming independent in or near
their local community.

That, together with an approach that manages reliance on Education,

Health and Care Plans (EHCP) for children with lower levels of SEND,
reduces demand and ensure placements of children are delivered through

Page 140



the continuum of state-funded education provision at efficient valué[.) p?ﬁ'g'x H
increase in the number of EHCP plans following the change of regulations
has also had a financial impact on the Council’s revenue budget providing
home to school transport, with cost rising annually.

17.18 The increase in EHCPs has a direct correlation on the increase in
students eligible for travel assistance.

Table 15— Analysis of SEN

Academic Number of Number of Number of Number of
year students with | students on students on | students
EHCPS Traditional aPTB travel
transport trained
2015/2016 2406 1121 not 79 41
including post
16
2016/2017 2691 1127 not 84 56
including post
16
2017/2018 2783 1156 not 88 63
including post
16
2018/2019 2940 1203 not 96 24
including post
16
2019/2020 3163 (to date) | 1258 (+ 100 105 to date 12 to date
plus approx. 35 | post 16)
pupils on
assessment
places *

*pupils who were given specialist provision on an assessment place and not registered as having an EHCP but
still eligible for transport.

17.19 A number of Innovative strategies continue to be implemented to try and deal
with the unprecedented demand for SEN travel assistance which include

e Investment in our in-house travel training service, gaining an excellent
reputation from other boroughs

e Route sharing with neighbouring boroughs

e Amendment of Croydon’s post-16 travel policy in 2019 following a
detailed consultation process which allows for the default position of a
personal transport budget for 16-18 year old eligible students who are
not suitable for independent travel training

e The Promotion of Personal transport budgets

e Review of high cost, complex cases

e Joint strategic working with SEN, Schools and parents (placement
decisions)

Central Services Schools
17.20 In 2018/19, the NFF created a fourth block within the DSG called the
Central Services Schools Block (CSSB). This block is made up of two

parts — Reported spend on Ongoing Functions and Reported spend on
Historic Commitments.

Page 141



Appendix H
17.21 Ongoing Functions

The Reported spend on Ongoing Functions includes services such as
School Improvement and Education Welfare, totals £2.833m, including
£0.08m for the teacher's pay and pension grant element.

The 2021/20 allocation for ongoing functions (without the pay and pension
adjustment) has reduced by £0.079m based on a reduction in the CSSB
unit of funding decreasing by 2.5% year on year from £55.49 per pupil in
2020/21.

17.22 Historic Commitments

The reported spend on Historic Commitments consists of the prudential
borrowing costs for SEND provision (£3.0m) and historic teacher pension
costs (£0.213m), totalling £3.213m and has remained the same allocation
as 2020/21.

17.23 The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) has a previously stated
policy of reducing the funding that LAs receive for historic commitments
made prior to 2013/14 and each year, the LA has made (successful)
representations to the ESFA to maintain the current level of funding due
to the impact on the General Fund of any reduction — particularly on the
prudential borrowing costs of a capital programme with a pay-back period
of 10 years (up to 2025/26). The ESFA have not yet determined how they
will continue to unwind this in future years and commit to ensuring
information about future years will be provided with as much notice as
possible.

17.24 The 2021/22 budget for the Schools, Early Years, High Needs and Central
School Services Blocks has been agreed by Schools Forum. The Schools
Block funding formula was approved by Cabinet on 18" January 2021 and
submitted to the DfE on the 20" January 2021 using the budget principles
agreed by Schools Forum over the autumn period. Once agreed by the
DfE the detailed school budgets will be finalised and these will be issued
to schools in March 2021.

DSG Management Plan

17.25 As a condition of the 2021/22 DSG, LAs with an overall DSG deficit of one
per cent or more at the end of the previous financial year are required to
submit recovery plans for that deficit and Croydon submitted the original
DSG Deficit Recovery Plan to recover the 2018/19 in-year High Needs
Block deficit (E5.611 million) over a five year period to the DfE, as agreed
with the School Forum and Chief Finance Officer and endorsed by this
Sub Committee in July 2019.

17.26 The five-year recovery period is in line with the five year SEND strategy
with key areas to be targeted. The intention is to improve our SEND
provision while reducing the expenditure in order to ensure that we can
fulfil our statutory duty to be meet the needs of all pupils with special
education needs.

Page 142



17.27 In response to the request from the DfE (30™ October 2019) to re(ﬁgg?ﬂg'x H
plan in light of the additional DSG funding announced for 2020/21, a
revised DSG Recovery Plan was presented and noted by the School
Forum on 9™ December 2019 and subsequently submitted to the DfE.
The DfE has not responded to this revision.

17.28 The DfE letter of response informed Croydon that as the High Needs Block
allocation for 2020/21 would be increased and that subsequent year’s
allocations for 2021/22 and 2022/23 were under review, the Council would
need to review and revise the previously submitted recovery plan.

17.29 More recently, a new template and accompanying guidance for a DSG
Management Plan was released in September 2020 and the DfE has,
again, recognised that the management of DSG balances, both bringing
spend in line with income and repaying deficits, will take time for some
LAs. Croydon is currently revising their existing DSG Recovery Plan and
in accordance with the template accompanying that guidance will be
planning to bring the High Needs Block expenditure within the High Needs
Block funding allocation by Year 3 (2023/24) with recovery of the
cumulative deficit to follow in future years.

17.30 In October 2020, the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, in issuing
a Report in the Public Interest (RIPI) concerning the Council’s financial
position and related governance arrangements, highlighted concerns in
respect of not managing the Dedicated School Grant within existing
budgets.

17.31 The Council fully accepts the findings of the Report and the
recommendations that have been made, including Recommendation 5
that the General Purposes and Audit Committee (GPAC) should receive
reports on the actions being taken to address the Dedicated Schools Grant
deficit and challenge whether sufficient progress is being made.

17.32 To implement the action plan in response to those recommendations,
specifically in respect of the DSG deficit, the LA will report the progress
against the DSG deficit management plan to the School Forum, in
accordance with DfE guidance and as set out above, as an additional level
of scrutiny prior to the progress being reported, more generally, to Cabinet
as part of the usual quarterly budget monitoring report and more
specifically to the General Purposes and Audit Committee (GPAC) in
adherence to the specific recommendation of the Report.

17.33 The DSG management plan will be presented to the School Forum on 8t

February, prior to approval and submission to the DfE, followed by GPAC
on 4" March 2021.

Page 143


https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/School-Forum-9Dec19.pdf

18 Capital Budget — 2020/21 to 2023/24 Appendix H

18.1 The Council’s draft Capital Programme was presented to Cabinet on 18™
January 2021. It was noted that in order to move the Council to a financial
sustainable footing, work continues on reviewing operational and service
delivery costs to bring them to a more appropriate level and this approach
applies to the Capital Programme it better reflects the Council’s priorities
in light of its ongoing financial challenges.

18.2 Whilst the 18" January Cabinet report presented a draft capital
programme, this report provides the final confirmed capital programme
report. Furthermore, this report also provides for the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) Capital programme, which is further detailed within Table
17 and Section 18.24.

18.3 The Council has worked to re-align the capital programme to ensure that
it is in proportion to its corporate priorities in light of the current financial
challenges. Council will need to prioritise delivery of the Capital
Programme based on affordability and critical needs. Other projects which
are already in progress will be scaled back accordingly. The projects within
the capital programme in para 18.8 which are funded from borrowing will
be subject to further review, in the light of the impact on the Council's
revenue budget and no contractual commitment should be entered into
until a review of revenue affordability has been concluded

18.4 The Capital Programme is typically made up of recurring key projects and
programmes linked to the Council’s statutory duties such as highways
maintenance programme and the Education Estates maintenance
Programme. It also includes various upkeep of the Council’s own assets
such as digital infrastructure, the corporate property Programme. Whilst
these are not statutory this spend is important to ensure that the Council’s
infrastructure is repaired and maintained to protect the value of these
assets and ensure they are fit for purpose to deliver vital services to the
public.

18.5 As indicated in para 18.3 a large proportion of the Capital Programme is
funded using borrowing. There is a direct impact of additional borrowing
on the Council’s revenue account from borrowing as the Council will need
to pay for interest costs that arise from taking on borrowing. In addition, as
per the Local Government Act 2003, all Local Authorities are required to
provide for Minimum Revenue Provision within its MTFS, which as
becomes an additional charge to the Revenue account. Both these costs
are factored within the interest payable & MRP line within the corporate
budgets. The Council will work with the GLA to seek further grant funding
to support the acquisition of Brick by Brick properties and thus reduce
reliance on borrowing.

18.6 As part of the Council’s regular budget monitoring requirements the
Council will provide regular updates on the progress of the delivery of the
capital programme.

18.7 Table 16 below provides a detailed breakdown of various schemes per
Directorate.

Page 144



Table 16 — Capital Programme

Appendix H

. Budget Budget Budget Total Budget
Besclipticon 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/24
£000s £000s £000s £000s
DFG 2,400 2,400 2,400 7,200
Empty Homes Grants 500 - - 500
Bere_avement Services 600 600
- burial land
Bereavement services 465 i i 465
— crematorium
AEENAT, BElDEl 3,965 2,400 2,400 8,765
and Adults
Education — Fire
Safety Works 1,200 300 - 1,500
Education — Fixed 260 34 ) 504
term expansion
Education — Major 2,045 3,000 3,000 8,045
Maintenance
Education - | 180 a4 : 224
Permanent Expansion
Education — Special
Educational Needs 8,892 352 o595 9,799
Education — other 200 - - 200
Children, Families
and Education Sub 13,677 3,730 3,555 20,962
Total
Asset Management 155 - - 155
Clocktower chillers 462 - - 462
Corporate Property 2,000 2,000 2,000 6,000
Feasibility Fund 330 330 330 990
Fieldway Cluster
(Timebridge 121 - - 121
community centre)
Grounds Mam'genance 1,200 ) ) 1,200
Insourced Equipment
Leisure centre invest 140 20 ) 210
to save
Libraries Investment 1,610 - - 1,610

Page 145




Measures to mitigate

Appendix H

73 73 73 219
travellers
Museum archives 100 - - 100
Parking 475 475 - 950
Play equipment 815 - - 815
Safety - Digital
Upgrade of CCTV 655 655
SEN Transport 1,275 - - 1,275
Signing 112 - - 112
South Norwood 53 849 74 976
Regeneration
Waste and Recycling 1,558 - - 1,558
Waste and Recycling -
Don’t Mess with 768 - - 768
Croydon
Place sub-total 11,902 3,797 2,477 18,176
ICT Refresh & 6,200 6,200 6,200 18,600
Transformation
People ICT 1521 ) ) 1521
Programme
Uniform ICT upgrade - - 3,719 3,719
Finance and HR 400 ) ) 400
System
Resources sub-total 8,121 6,200 9,919 24,240
Highways 17,231 8,051 0 25,282
Electric Vehicle
Charging Points 500 ) ) 500
Growth Zone 4,000 0 0 7,500
Asset management -
Stubbs mead 3,132 ) ) 3,132
Total 24,863 8,051 0 32,914
General Fund 62,528 24,178 18,351 105,057
MHCLG capitalisation 50,000 25,000 5,000 80,000
direction
ol Imeluehing 112,528 49,178 23,351 185,057
Capitalisation
Major Repairs and
Improvements 26,771 26,771 26,771 80,313
Programme
Special Transfer 180 180 180 540
Payments
BxB Properties Acquired 54,535 0 0 54,535
HRA Total 81,486 26,951 26,951 135,388
CETRIEY RE e 194,014 76,129 50,302 320,445

Total

Page 146




Appendix H
Table 17 DRAFT Capital Programme Resourcing 2021/22 to 2023/23

Budget Budget Budget Total MTFS

2021/22 | 2022/23 2023/24 budget

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Borrowing 36,497 10,687 5,722 52,906
Borrowing — GZ 4,000 0 0 7,500
S106 771 | - - 771
CIL 6,800 6,800 6,800 20,400
School Condition 4,145 3,300 3,000 10,445
Allocation
Spec!al Provision Capital 897 152 355 1,404
Funding
Basic Need Funding 640 78 - 718
ESFA 5,003 - - 5,003
Other grant — DFG 2,400 2,400 2,400 7,200
Other grant - Football

; 0

Foundation
Other grant - London 0
Marathon
Other Grant - ORCS 300 | - - 300
Historic England 374 511 74 959
Other grants — GLA 701 250 | - 951
Total Funding 62,528 24,178 18,351 105,057
MHCLG capitalisation 50,000 25,000 5,000 80,000
direction
Total General Fund
Funding after 112,528 49,178 23,351 185,057
Capitalisation
Major Repairs Allowance 13,668 21,209 21,209 54,924
HRA - Revenue 8,186 1,742 1,742 14,484

Contribution

Page 147




HRA - Use Of Reserves 19,805 4,000 4,000 Appendix H
GLA Funding of BxB

Properties 8,500 0 0 8500

Borrowing BxB

Propertioe 31327 0 0 29675

HRA FUNDING 81486 26,951 26.951 135,388

Overall Funding 194,014 76,129 50,302 320,445

Requirement

18.8

18.9

The capital programme detailed in tables 16 and 17 above does not
include expected slippage from the 2020/21 capital programme.
Estimated slippage is detailed in the quarter 3 financial monitoring report
as part of this Cabinet meeting and also attached as Appendix H. It is
currently estimated that there will be scheme slippage of approx. £112.6m
but this is subject to any changes arising between now and the year end.
The final slippage will be reported to this Cabinet as part of the annual July
Financial Review report once the financial year has closed. Schemes
which are funded using a combination of external grants and borrowing
will only be undertaken once the external funding is secure; amounts of
council borrowing shown are indicative.

There are a number of key projects supported in the 2021/22 programme,
including:

18.9.1 Continued investment in the school estate from 2021/22 to
2023/24 of £20.9m. This includes £15.67m for the New
Addington Valley SEN School on the Timebridge site which the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) commissioned
Croydon to lead on. The school will offer 150 places to children
aged 2-19 years, with autism and learning difficulties, with the
aim of providing a local pathway from the early years to
adulthood. The proposed date for the opening of the school
September 2021. The project will be fully funded by the ESFA
under its “Invest to Save” programme.

18.9.2 Continued investment in Public Realm and Highways
Infrastructure. This scheme will enable investment in the public
realm and highways to ensure that the infrastructure is fit-for-
purpose and achieves our vision making use of the opportunities
presented by the Croydon Growth Zone. The Council will need
to continue to borrow to maintain the highways network following
reduction in TFL funding. Additional borrowing has been
included to support the work needed to maintain bridges and
other key structures and to meet our legal obligations under the
Flood Water Management Act.

18.9.3 Continued investment in the Council’s ICT infrastructure to
provide a fit for purpose service to staff and residents. Add in
further info

18.9.4 The HRA capital programme set out in Table 18 shows the
planned capital expenditure in 2020/21 is £35.7m and total is

Page 148




£102.6m over the 3 years to maintain homes to a decenﬁ%qﬁgg'x H
standard and purchase new BxB homes using GLA grant under

its Building Council Homes for Londoners programme to fund
part of the cost:

18.9.5 Work is continuing to ensure fire safety within residential blocks
owned or leased by the Council is compliant and meets current
standards in order to provide safe homes for our residents. A
£5m reserve will be set aside from existing reserves, with no
additional borrowing required for this amount.

18.9.6 The capital programme includes £26.7m planned for ongoing
and essential works identified, these include
replacement/upgrade of flat front entrance doors, installation/
upgrade of emergency lighting and fire alarm systems where
required and blocks with spandrel panels which may need to be
replaced.

18.10 No new capital schemes will be added to the programme without a
business case being approved, a report being submitted to cabinet and
then the funds will be released subject to the revenue costs of any scheme
being affordable, this applies to both General Fund and HRA capital
schemes.

Growth Zone

18.11 The Croydon Growth Zone is a Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) model
which harnesses business rates uplift to enable borrowing to fund
infrastructure. The Croydon Growth Zone programme consists of a range
of transport, public realm social infrastructure and technology projects as
reported to Cabinet in December 2017. They are deemed essential to
mitigate the impact and maximise the opportunities of the growth planned
(as detailed in the Croydon Local Plan 2018, Croydon Opportunity Area
Planning Framework 2013 and the London Plan) in Croydon for the benefit
of existing and future residents, businesses and visitors.

18.12 As reported to Cabinet in February 2020 in more detail, and subject to
approval, the Growth Zone programme has been re profiled, with the total
funding required for the period 2021/22 to 2022/23 of £4m. Table 18 below
sets out the programme over that period.

Page 149



18.13

18.14

18.15

Table 18 — Growth Zone Projects

Appendix H

Project 2021/22 to 2023/24

(£'000s)
Transport 500
Public Realm 1,600
Construction Logistics 400
Parking 300
Culture 500
Smart Cities 400
Social Infrastructure 300
Employment and Skills 0
Energy 0
TOTAL 4,000

Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Council, as Local Planning Authority, when required secures Section
106 Agreements as a requirement of the grant of planning permission to
secure the mitigation measures necessary to make a development
acceptable in planning terms. This includes securing financial
contributions towards infrastructure types and projects.

The Council’s Section 106 balance as at September 2020 was
£4.7m. This balance is sub-divided into the heads of terms for
infrastructure types and projects as set out in the parent Section 106
agreements. This understanding is important as Section 106 income can
only be assigned in accordance with the parent Section 106 agreement in
terms of infrastructure type, project and / or the location defined in the
agreement.

Set out below in table 19 is the Council’s detailed Section 106 balance
sheet.

Page 150



18.16

18.17

18.18

18.19

Table 19— S106 breakdown of funds

Appendix H

Section 106 — Head of Term Balance
Affordable Housing £1,026,483.00
Air Quality £148,328.50
Bus Improvements £80,590.42
Carbon Offset £536,910.66
Culture £51,679.49
East Croydon Station £298,657.56
Education £278,845.18
Employment and Skills Training £298,098.00
Environmental Improvements £27,466.00
Equality Programme £21,957.00
Footways & Pedestrian Environment £2,468.12
Health £106,728.05
Highways £84,375.29
Libraries £62,942.00
Open Space £431,248.77
Parking £25,000.00
Public Art £26,500.93
Public Realm £450,548.97
Renewable Energy £56,964.00
Skyline £1,000.00
Sustainable Transport £514,448.59
Tree Planting & Maintenance £14,282.75
West Croydon £172,781.56
TOTAL £4,718,322.84

In terms of future Section 106 assignment, the Council is actively
working (with partners as appropriate) on how the remainder of the
Section 106 moneys can be used to benefit the people of Croydon and
mitigate the development the contribution arose from. Section 106
assignment will continue to be governed by the Council’s Infrastructure
Finance Group and Capital Board.

A total of £3,582,344 of Section 106 income was assigned to specific
projects during 2019/20 in accordance with the Section 106 parent
agreement and Infrastructure Finance Group Terms of Reference. During
2019/20 a total of £775,674 of money secured under s106 agreements
was spent on specific projects across the borough.

The Council introduced the borough’s CIL in April 2013. The Council has
been collecting the borough’s CIL since this date. As a consequence of
requiring the grant of planning permission and commencement of
development post April 2013 for the CIL to be liable for payment, the
income received since the introduction has gradually increased.

Borough CIL balance at 01/04/20 was £12,544,170.93. This income is

available to be spent on infrastructure types and projects included on the
Council’s CIL Infrastructure List

Page 151



18.20 Regulation 121A of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulatiohbépfﬁfg'x H
(as amended) requires the Council to produce a statement of the
infrastructure (CIL Infrastructure List) projects or types of infrastructure
which the charging authority intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly
funded by CIL. This broadly covers all infrastructure projects and types,
except for sustainable transport and highway that are secured through
Section 106 and / or Section 278 highway agreements.

18.21 In addition to allocations in 2019/20, and based on current CIL balances
and forecast CIL receipts, it has been assumed that £6.8m of Borough CIL
money will be available to fund the capital programme. Also, £2m of
Borough CIL money has been assigned to the Council’s Education Estates
Strategy as agreed by Cabinet on Monday 18™ January 2021 and £2.1m
has been assigned to Leisure, libraries and open space maintenance. The
specific projects to enjoy borough CIL funding will be defined through the
governance of the Infrastructure Finance Group and Capital Board to
ensure CIL legislative compliance. The specific project assignment will
occur post the approval of this report and be published in the Council’s
CIL Infrastructure Statement.

18.22 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 allow
for up to 15% to be spent on the provision, improvement, replacement,
operation or maintenance of infrastructure; or anything else that is
concerned with addressing the demands that development places on
Croydon. This is commonly referred to as the Locally Meaningful
Proportion.

18.23 The CIL Local Meaningful Proportion balance at 01/04/20 was £3.91m.
The Local Meaningful Proportion will fund the Community Ward Budgets
for 2020/21. Also, as set out in the September 2020 Cabinet Emergency
Budget Report, CIL Local Meaningful Proportion will significantly
contribute to the costs of the 2020/21 Community Fund Projects that meet
the CIL legislative requirements.

Housing Programme

18.24 The Council is committed to delivering affordable housing in the borough
through a range of measures:

e In order to accelerate the delivery of new homes for Croydon
residents, the Council established Brick by Brick, an independent
development company. Brick by Brick receives borrowing and equity
investment from the Council. It is expected that the HRA will purchase
up to 190 completed units of affordable housing within 2021/22 from
Brick by Brick, based on availability and an agreement of a fair
purchase price that will be sustainable for HRA borrowing.

e The properties purchased from Brick by Brick are expected to charge
London Affordable Rent levels (LAR), however are subject to Cabinet
Approval.

e The Council entered in to three separate limited liability partnerships

(LLPs) with Croydon Affordable Homes, a local charity to develop
units across the borough and street purchased properties as

Page 152



18.25

18.26

19.0

19.1

19.2

affordable rented homes. In order to fund their acquisition aé%i%?é%qix H

the Council gifted retained right to buy receipts to the LLPs, with the
Council acting as lender for the balance of the funds needed. The
Council has completed phase 1 and 2 of its street property acquisition
programme for the provision of affordable rent. This has enabled
acquisitions of 346 street properties for the provision of affordable
rent in the borough.

e The Council has been awarded GLA grant funding under the Mayor
of London’s £1 billion Building Council Homes for Londoner’s
programme for social housing. The grant funding has been used to
part fund the purchase of new build Brick by Brick properties,
transferring them into the HRA.

Repair and Improvement of council stock

A key aim for the council has been the government target of bringing 100%
of social homes up to the decent home standard. Croydon has invested in
its HRA properties to ensure that it meets, and continue to achieve the
decent homes standard. The Council has achieved a constant 99-100%
of homes maintained at the decent home standard over the last seven
years. Homes which are currently decent will fall below the standard, for
example as facilities age and with wear and tear, the Council will need to
continue to invest in the stock to keep homes up to standard over time.
Indeed, the social housing regulator has proposed a revised home
standard which will reflect the government’s direction that social landlords
should comply with the decent home standard with ongoing effect. The
council continues to invest in maintenance and improvement works in
order to maximise the life of the assets

The HRA budget for proposed major repairs and improvement programme
for 2021/22 will remain at circa £27m, although available budget unspent
at the end of 2010/21 will be carried forward, taking the estimated total
spend to £30m. It should be noted that there is also a separate programme
of responsive and cyclical repairs which are resourced through revenue
funding totalling £12m. In order to enable the Council to respond quickly
to any additional or changing fire safety regulations, a £5m reserve has
been ringfenced in the HRA account.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account used to
manage income and costs associated with managing the Council’s owned
housing stock and related assets which includes shops and garages on
council housing estates. It is funded primarily from tenants’ rents and
service charges. The services provided to tenants and leaseholders which
includes responsive repairs, management and supervision services and
caretaking as examples are resourced from this account.

Croydon’s HRA consists of approximately 13,400 homes. In addition to
the HRA, there are approximately 800 homes that are managed on behalf
of the General Fund, Private Landlords and Croydon Affordable Homes.
These properties similarly require repair, maintenance and investment to

Page 153



maintain good quality accommodation, and offer terﬁ}?&%’?giXH

accommodation to families most in need.

19.3 Longer term planning for the HRA is continuing to take place through the
30-year business plan which is updated annually to reflect changes in
legislation and assumptions which underpin the financial projections. This
includes the impact of increasing rents by CPI+1%, which will enable the
HRA to be more financial sustainable. The lifting of the HRA borrowing
cap will also enable the Council to consider developments funded directly
by the HRA.

19.4 The budget for 2021/22, Table 20, shows a balanced position as required
by statute and was reported with the proposed rent and other charges to
the Tenants and Leaseholders Panel on the 9th February 2021.

Table 20 — 2021/22 HRA Revenue Budget
DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL BUDGET
2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Employees 13,976 15,162

Premises related expenditure 18,904 17,740

Supplies and Services 2,510 3,081

Third Party Payments 406 363

Transfer Payments 156 656

Transport related expenditure 30 44

Capital Charges 35,776 33,824

Intangible Charges 59 122

REFCUS 180 180

Corporate support services bought in 6,705 6,705

Recharges from other services 9,348 10,988

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 88,050 88,865

Government Grants - -

Other Grants, reimbursements and contributions (209) (185)

Customer and Client Receipts (85,771) (86,591)

Interest Receivable - -

Recharges to other services (2,070) (2,089)

TOTAL INCOME (88,050) (88,865)

NET EXPENDITURE - -

Contributions to / (from) Reserves - -

19.5 All investment in new-build is currently being undertaken outside of the

HRA by either the Council’s Development Company, Brick by Brick, or
other partners. However, as part of the rent setting policy and with the
change in policy with regard to Brick by Brick, the Council will subject to
affordability, commence preparations for developing housing within the
HRA during 2021/22.

Page 154



Appendix H

19.6 Croydon Affordable Homes (the charity set up by the Council in
partnership to deliver affordable rented properties across the borough) will
be renting out local homes at a maximum of 65% of the market rent to
borough residents and remaining units will be available through shared
ownership.

19.7 Prior to the announcement removing the borrowing cap in 2019/20, the
introduction of self-financing for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in
April 2012 was accompanied by a limit on the amount of housing debt that
each authority could hold. The limitations this generated for the HRA
business plan resulted in many authorities (including Croydon) seeking to
borrow to support affordable housing outside of the HRA.

Housing demand

19.9 It is considered that for at least the next 10 years that the housing market
in London and the South east will be characterised by rising demand and
increased barriers to entry caused by rising house prices, rising rents and
population growth. Beyond 10 years it is difficult to predict with any
certainty what housing policy will be in place or what structural housing
market changes may have occurred.

19.10 The mix of new housing supply continues to be influenced by numbers of
applicants on the Council’s housing register locally and the forecasts of
future housing need.

19.11 The budget position of the HRA is subject to continued uncertainty in light
of further policy proposals that have been issued by the government. The
Council is awaiting the final outcome of the legislative process followed by
detailed guidance still to be issued by government.

19.12 The ‘A new deal for social housing’ Green Paper consultation outcome is
awaited. Recent changes and proposals impacting HRA are set out below.

" The government has confirmed that from 2020/21 rent increases will
apply at CPI1+1% (Consumer Price Index) on social housing rented
properties which is equal to 2.7%

. The government has proposed making Right to Buy (RTB) receipts
to be available for 50% of social rented new build costs rather than
30%. We are waiting for the government’s final decision on this.

. The government has proposed extending use of existing RTB
receipts to 5 years with new receipts being available for 3 years. We
are waiting for the government’s final decision on this.

19.13 However, assumptions about these policy changes and the current
legislation, % increase in rental income, have been incorporated into the
40 year business plan and annual budget setting. These are explained
below.

Right to Buy
19.14 Croydon Council entered into a retention agreement with the government

in April 2012. Under the terms of the agreement, the government requires
that local authorities can only retain the receipts from right to buy (RTB)

Page 155



sales if they spend it within three years of retention to create new 5%25’8?89"‘ H
match funding the purchase of this new supply on a 70:30 basis.

19.15 The implication of this is that the RTB receipts can only fund 30% of new
property development or acquisition costs with the remaining balance of
70% funded through the council’s HRA or other resources. Interest is
repayable to the government on retained receipts not used within 3 years.

19.16 The Council’'s Housing LLP has used retained RTB receipts which the
HRA had been unable to use due to the limited resources in the HRA
before the government announced the lifting of the borrowing cap, with the
Council acting as lender for the balance of the funds for the purchase of
the leases and development of the sites. As explained above, if the
Council did not use the retained RTB receipts in this manner, it would need
to repay the unused receipts to central government with interest.

19.17 The current 2020/21 HRA budget and business plan assumes there will
be 80 right to buy sales in the year. As well as the loss of an asset to the
HRA, this impacts on the level of rents collected year on year and therefore
the availability of funds to match the 70:30 requirement.

19.18 The table below shows the RTB sales since 2012 compared to the
assumptions in the Self-Financing (SF) settlement.

Table 21 — RTB sales since 2012

Actual Sales | Assumed Sales (in
(Forecast from SF Settlement)

2020/21)
2012/13 36 14
2013/14 51 17
2014/15 135 19
2015/16 143 20
2016/17 148 20
2017/18 90 20
2018/19 83 20
2019/20 58 20
2020/21 60 20
2021/22 80 20
Total 884 190

Rent Setting and Changes

19.19 The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 required all registered providers
of social housing in England to reduce rents by 1% a year for four years
from 2015/16 levels to 2019/20. This reduction commenced in 2016/17,
making 2019/20 final year. Rents for new tenants must also reflect the 1%
per annum reduction. Central government has announced that rents can
increase from 2020/21, by CPI + 1% which is equal to 1.5% for the 21/22
uplift.

Page 156



19.20

19.21

Where tenants are eligible for receipt of Housing Benefit, the I%QBF%?'X H
benefit will reflect the lower rent. However, a small number of tenants may
be subject to the overall benefit cap. The introduction of Universal Credit
in Croydon has begun to have an impact on rent collection rates. Rates
are likely to continue to drop as tenants move from receiving housing
benefit to wuniversal credit when they experience a change in
circumstances, impacting on the levels of bad debt that the Council must
provide for.

Social rents in Croydon are currently approximately 32%-35% of the
private sector equivalent, as shown in the table below. New build council
properties are let at a London Affordable Rent which is based on the GLA
guidance for London at 65% of the comparable private sector market rent.

Table 22 — Comparison of rents in Croydon

Number of
Bedrooms

Social
Rent (per
month)
2020/21

Social
Rent (per
month)
2021/22

London
Affordable
Rent

(per month)
2020/21

London
Affordable
Rent

(per month)
2021/22

Social
rent as %
of local
market
rent

LAR as %
of average
local
market
rent

'_\

£459.51

£466.40

£682.33

£692.56

34%

73%

N

£518.14

£525.91

£722.37

£733.21

33%

54%

£762.54

£773.98

32%

43%

£590.85 | £599.71

19.22

19.23

19.24

Service Charges

In 2021/22, itis proposed that service charges increase by 1.5%, following
a 2% increase in 2020/21.This will ensure that the level of service charge
reflects the costs incurred. A full review of the costs was delayed due to
the events of 2020 but will be considered as part of the forward plans for
the HRA

The charges for 2021/22 will therefore be:

Table 23 —2021/22 Tenant Service Charges

| 2020/21 | 2021/22 | Change

Tenant Service Charges

Caretaking

£10.38pw

£10.54 £0.16

Grounds Maintenance

£2.17 £0.03

£2.14pw

Heating charges

Only a small number of tenants use communal heating systems and are
charged a fixed weekly amount for the gas they use. Apart from the
Handcroft Road Estate, all other schemes are retirement housing
schemes for older people. Heating charges will be adjusted to ensure that
they align to actual costs incurred. This will result in some increases and
some decreases for tenants of no more than 5%.

Page 157



Garages and parking spaces Appendix H

19.25 Rents for garages and parking spaces were not increased for 2020/21 and
So it is proposed that an increase to garage rents will be applied for
2021/22. Any proposed increase to parking charges on must be consulted
upon — this is planned to increase charges for 2022/23

Table 24— 2021/22 Parking and Garage Charges

[ 2020/21 | 2021/22 | Change
Parking Spaces
Tenants £7.00pw | £7.00pw £0.00pw
Non-Tenants £9.62pw | £9.62pw £0.00pw
Garages
Avg. Rent* |£13.13 [ £13.33 | £0.20pw

Voids and Bad Debts

19.26 The loss of income associated with void properties is assumed at 0.9% for

2021/22.
20.0 Treasury Management
20.1 The S151 Officer is responsible for setting up and monitoring the

Prudential Indicators in accordance with the Council’s Capital Strategy.
The details are set out in the Treasury Management Strategy which is
recommended to Cabinet for approval as a separate item on this agenda.

20.2 The prime function of the treasury management operation is to ensure that
cash flow is adequately managed. This requires careful management of
all cash balances within the Council’s bank accounts. The contribution the
treasury management function makes to the achievement of the Council’s
objectives is critical, as the balance of debt and investment operations
ensures liquidity or the ability to meet spending commitments as they fall
due, either as day-to-day revenue spend or for larger capital projects. The
treasury operation carefully assesses the balance of the interest costs of
debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits as this impacts
directly on the Council’s finances.

20.3 The Treasury service are also responsible in managing the Council’s debt
balances. The Council has a debt balance of £1.47bn as at the end of
December 2020 which incurs significant interest and Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) charge. It is important that the Council considers
strategies that proactively reduces this debt balance and to help improve
the direct charges to the Revenue account, which will bring the Council
into a better financial position.

21.0 Statement of the Section 151 Officer on reserves and balances and
robustness of estimates for purposes of the Local Government Act
2003.

21.1 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial

Page 158



Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the budget estimaégpgﬁlg'x H
adequacy of the planned reserves when the council tax decision is being
made by the Council, this forms part of the statutory advice from the
Section 151 officer to the Council in addition to their advice throughout the
year in the preparation of the budget for 2021/22. The Chief Financial
Officer and Section 151 Officer statutory responsibility resides with the
Interim Director of Finance, Investment and Risk. This is his statement
under the Section 25 requirement of the Act.

21.2 All Members of the Council have been advised of the financial challenges
the Council faces over the next financial year, the medium and longer
term. The levels of government funding for 2021/22 have been clearly
identified in this report and it must be recognised and understood that a
one year funding settlement creates a level of future year uncertainty and
therefore creates a financial planning risk. In addition, in regards to the
request for Capitalisation Direction a response from MHCLG has not at
the time of writing this report been received. The Council is seeking £150m
in capitalisation direction support which is necessary to balance this
budget and deal with 2020/21 overspends.

21.3 Until 2019/20 the Council in common with other local authorities
experienced substantial reductions to Local Government funding. 2020/21
saw a slight increase in our baseline funding however the pressures
experienced since the start of 2020/21 have had a significant impact on
the Council’s financial position. A marginal increase in baseline funding
into 2021/22 and the ability to raise Council Tax by 4.99% has further
supported increased funding. In taking decisions on any budget all
Members must first and foremost understand the underlying funding
changes which the Council faces and set these associated decisions
within the context of the overall financial environment the Council faces.

21.4 These continue to be very challenging times for Croydon Council and

therefore it is certain that further difficult choices will be required over the
coming budget cycle if the Council is to develop a solid financial foundation
and achieve the delivery of a balanced outturn in 2021/2022 and in future
years. The refreshed Medium Term Financial Strategy which will be
presented to Cabinet in July 2021 will provide an update for Members on
the future financial challenges the Council expects to face as well as
progress made on the 21/22 Budget and the Renewal Plan. This
refreshed document will include the full impact of the review of the
Council’s company and property investments with a view to limiting
liabilities and proposals for transforming the operation of its services so as
to deliver good performance on an affordable basis .This will form a strong
robust platform and tool to develop and manage future budgets.
In forming my statement of the robustness of the budget estimates and
adequacy of planned reserves this position has been reviewed in detail
with the Chief Executive and Executive Leadership Team and my
conclusions and assumptions have been reported to the Cabinet as part
of the Council’'s overall governance and financial stewardship
arrangements. Itis important that there is buy in and ownership at all levels
from both political leadership and officers that there is a need for a more
robust financial process for providing services within budget, than has
hitherto existed and the expectation must be that services can be and
must be delivered within the budget as set.

Page 159



Appendix H

21.5 All Members must also be aware that the calculation of the budget is, in
its simplest form, dependent on three key factors, which are set in the
context of the level of support from central government, these are:

a) The structural growth and savings in service expenditure or income,;
b) The level of increase in local taxation (council tax); and
c) The level of reserves and balances.

21.6 With regard to the Housing Revenue Account, in 2020/21 where Local
Authorities were allowed to raise Housing Rents by CPI+1%. This
proposal continues into 2021/22 and this will ensure that the years of lost
income from the 1% reduction in rents better supports the upkeep of our
housing stock and support tenants in a better way. The updated 30 year
HRA Business Plan shows a stable position however the Council need to
keep a close eye on pressures in regards to repairs and maintenance and
more importantly the investment that will be needed to for Fire Safety
works. The development of new housing units within the HRA including
the purchase of any units will need to be cost neutral in terms of revenue
income covering the costs of managing and maintaining the new units and
servicing debt.

Growth, Savings and income options in service expenditure

21.7 Proposals for growth, savings and income generation in service
expenditure are ultimately a matter of political judgment balancing the
needs and priorities of the borough within the available revenue resources.
In balancing such decisions Members must have regard to the
professional advice of officers in such matters as service need, statutory
responsibility, changes to Government legislation, demographic factors
(particularly in respect of demand-led services), unavoidable cost
pressures whilst always having regard to the need to remain with the
statutory requirement to balance the budget and to keep within that budget
and available reserves once the budget is set. This report forms part of
that advice.

The Level of Reserves and Balances

21.8 The level of reserves and balances are principally the responsibility of the
s151 officer and are key to ensure the financial sustainability of the
Council.

21.9 The Current level of Reserves are very low for the size of Croydon and

historic mismanagement of this reserve balance has resulted in placing
the Council in very weak position. The exact level of current bought
forward reserves is currently under discussion with the External Auditor
and cannot be firmed up until the 2019/20 audit of the accounts has been
completed. In the light of this it is not possible to state with certainty as
required under section 25 (1)(b)of the Local Government Act 2003; that
the reserves are adequate until the audit is completed, however it should
be noted that the 2021/22 Budget and the MTFS includes a clear plan to
build up the reserve balance and £20m is being earmarked as part of the
20/21 planned capitalisation directive for contribution to the General
Balance. With further a further increase of £10m 21/22. In light of the

Page 160



Covid-19 pandemic the need to have a stronger reserve balance ’é"&%ﬁ?'x H
as it allows the Council to create a necessary buffer to tackle unforeseen
risks.

21.10 Earmarked reserves are also relevant in supporting the budget and
objectives of the council. The level of earmarked reserves reflects a
number of policy decisions by the council and supports the revenue
budget. The decision to use earmarked reserves for particular purposes
needs to reflect the financial strategy objectives of the council. Earmarked
reserves have reduced over the last 3 years and are expected to be in the
region of £10m at the end of 2020/21. This is a position that needs to be
kept under review. The Council has previously relied upon the increased
flexibility on the use of capital receipts which allowed the authority to use
these to support transformation projects. This funding pays for capacity
that would previously have to be funded from earmarked reserves. This
option will need to be kept under review as capital receipts become
available.

21.11 Despite budgets being calculated on most likely estimates, not the best
estimates basis, the budget contains significant challenges in terms of the
delivery of efficiency savings as well as managing demand led pressures
and income generation. The Council has set in place plans to deliver
departmental efficiencies and generate an additional income of £40m.
Discussions with MHCLG have drawn attention to the need for potential
flexibility in granting the capitalisation directive to enable the Council to
deal with any proper accounting adjustments with regard to bad debt
provision or impairment costs which will still be being crystallised. This
flexibility is assumed in making this statement.

The external financial environment does remain volatile due to the
pandemic. However, subject to:

e the Council introducing a strong corporate process to review and
monitor spend throughout the year (mirroring to a degree the current
s114 spending control panel),

e corporate and political buy in to the new arrangements combined with
, prioritising the improvement of and compliance with the financial
management arrangements,

e vigorously reducing expenditure as set out in Appendix A and

e subject to the receipt of the capitalisation directive at the sum
requested

it is confirmed that the estimates as set out are robust as required by
section 25 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003

22.0 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY

22.1 The 2021/21 budget has been presented to Scrutiny and Overview
committee on 16" February 2021. The committee had the opportunity to
scrutinise the budget setting process as part of the Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources question time.

22.2 At the Scrutiny meeting the draft budget and all savings, income and

growth options were presented. This report enabled members to be
briefed on the financial context and challenges the Council faces and

Page 161



updated the Committee on the assumptions made in setting the Mgggix H

budget.
23.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS
23.1 As all Members are aware, setting a budget for 2021/22 that is robust,

balanced and deliverable has been extremely challenging particularly as
the Council is within a S114 and has had to deal with historic financial
management issues. This has involved a number of difficult decisions for
the Council and a lot of work has gone into building the budget to deal with
historic issues and errors. The Council faces increasingly challenging
choices over the medium term to longer term within the context of its own
funding position, the national economy and the level of funding available
to the public sector as a whole.

23.2 This budget report is based on the current financial outturn projections for
the current year. If any of the projections change significantly, these will
have to be taken in to account either in year and urgent action taken to
reduce expenditure in 2021/22.

23.3 Appendix C and D contains the legally required recommendations to
Council for setting the budget and Council Tax for 2021/22.

24.0 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

24.1 The report contains the financial implications of the options to deliver a
balanced budget for 2021/22 and the draft capital programme for 2021/20
to 2023/24.

25.0 LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
Budget and Council Tax Setting

25.1 The Head of Commercial and Property Law comments on behalf of the
Interim Director of Law and Governance that, as noted earlier in this report,
due to the Council’s financial position, a notice under section 114 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1988 has been issued on two occasions
in the last financial year. In considering the recommendations in this
report, Cabinet and Full Council needs to have full regard to the Council’s
overall financial position as detailed in this report.

25.2 The provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 sets out what
the Council has to base its budget calculations upon, and require the
Council to set a balanced budget with regard to the advice of the Council’s
section 151 officer. The setting of the budget is a function reserved to full
Council, which needs to consider the draft budget which has been
recommended for approval by Cabinet. Once the budget has been agreed
by full Council, the Executive cannon make any decisions which conflict
with it although virements and in-year changes can be me in accordance
with the Council’s financial regulations.

Page 162



25.3 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief ﬁRBﬁES'X H
Officer to report on the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes
of calculating the Council Tax and the adequacy of reserves both of which
are contained within this report.

25.4 Section 30(6) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 provides that
the Council is required to set its budget (including Council Tax rates)
before 11™" March 2021 for the financial year 2021/22, although failure to
set a budget within the deadline does not invalidate the budget. A delay
to agreeing the budget may, however, have significant financial
administrative and legal implications including potentially an individual
liability for those members who contributed to the failure to set the budget.
Failing to set the budget would also make the Council vulnerable to a
judicial review challenge initiated potentially by the Secretary of State or
any other person with a sufficient interest in the Council setting a budget
(which could include a council tax payer). When considering the budget
proposals the Cabinet and Council will be mindful of their fiduciary duty to
ensure that the Council’s resources are used in a prudent and
proportionate manner. Members are required to have regard to their
statutory duties whilst bearing in mind the requirement to act reasonably
when taking in to account the interests of the Council Tax payers and
Croydon’s

25.5 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended), requires the
Council as billing authority to determine whether its relevant basic amount
of council tax for a financial year is excessive. If it is excessive then there
is a duty under s.52ZF - s.52ZI to hold a referendum. Determining whether
the Council Tax is excessive must be decided in accordance with a set of
principles determined by the Secretary of State and approved by a
resolution of the House of Commons. The Thresholds for 2021-22 provide
that local authorities with responsibility for social care, such as Croydon,
must hold a referendum if council tax is to be increased by 5% or more.
Council tax for general spending requires a referendum if it rises by 2%
or more, alongside a maximum 3% ‘social care precept’. The ‘adult social
care precept’ is technically not a ‘precept’ but additional headroom within
the referendum regime for selected local authorities.

25.6 The procedure to be followed in developing the budget proposals as
detailed in the report are set out in the Budget and Policy Framework
Procedure Rules provided in Part 4.C of the Council’s Constitution. To
deliver some of the budget proposals action may be required which should
be undertaken in accordance with statutory requirements including any
legal requirements for consultation and equality impact assessments.
Members will be aware of the requirement to consider the Council’s
obligations under the Equality Act 2010 as detailed more fully in the
Equalities Considerations, section 23 below.

Approved by Sean Murphy, Head of Commercial and Property Law

(Deputy Monitoring Officer) on behalf of the Interim Director of Law and
Governance

Page 163



26.0 HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT Appendix H

26.1 The implementation of the efficiency and cuts programme will in a number
of instances necessitate a change of structure and skill mix of staff and/or
change of working practices. Where a redundancy is being ‘contemplated’
the unions must be informed. If subsequently a redundancy is actually
‘proposed’ then the employer is immediately obliged to consult with the
unions and staff for a minimum statutory period before any decisions and
formal notification of redundancy is issued. The organisation will take
these considerations into account in planning for the implementation of
any structural reform.

26.2 Where restructures or transfers are proposed the Council’'s existing
policies and procedures must be observed.

Pay Policy Statement

26.3 The Council aims to ensure that its remuneration packages are fair,
equitable and transparent and offer suitable reward for the employment of
high quality staff with the necessary skills and experience to deliver high
guality services.

26.4 Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the
authority thinks fit”. In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act, this
Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy for 2021/22 on:

26.4.1 The remuneration of its senior staff including chief officers
26.4.2 The remuneration of its lowest paid employees

26.4.3 The relationship between the remuneration of its senior staff,
including chief officers, and the remuneration of staff who are
not chief officers

26.5 The pay policy statement is at Appendix G. The Council are required to
approve the pay policy on an annual basis and therefore this will be
considered as part of the budget decision of the Council on the 2nd March
2020.

Approved by: Sue Moorman — Director of Human Resources

27 EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS

27.1 Under the Public Sector Equality Duty of Equality Act 2010, decision
makers must evidence consideration of any potential impacts of proposals
on groups who share the protected characteristics, before decisions are
taken. This includes any decisions relating to how authorities act as
employers; how they develop, evaluate and review policies; how they
design, deliver and evaluate services, and also how they commission and
procure services from others.

27.2 Section 149 of the Act requires public bodies to have due regard to the
need to:

Page 164



e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation arﬁadogﬁ{/]d'x H

other conduct prohibited by the Act;

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected
characteristic and people who do not share it; and

o foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and
people who do not share it.

27.3 Protected characteristics defined by law include race and ethnicity,
disability, sex, gender reassignment, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy
and maternity, and religion or belief.

27.4 Having due regard means there is a requirement to consciously address
the three tenets of the Equality Duty within decision-making processes.
By law, assessments must contain sufficient information to enable the
local authority to show it has paid ‘due regard’ to the equalities duties; and
identified methods for mitigating or avoiding adverse impact on people
sharing protected characteristics. Where a decision is likely to result in
detrimental impact on any group with a protected characteristic it must be
justified objectively.

27.5 As a result, budget proposals have been subject to the Council’s own
equality impact anaylisis processes (EIA) between Deceomber 20 and
January 21, as part of a risk-based approach to analyse potential
equalities impact of budget proposals. Budget holders have identified
where proposals are likely likely to have a disproportionate impact on
those with protected characteristics (i.e.race, sex, disability, religion or
belief, sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity, and age).

In some instances budget holders have extended the equalities
consideration to include analysis of non-statutory factors - such as
language, socio-economic and health and social wellbeing. Where
adverse impact has been identified mitigating actions have been specified.

27.6 In developing its detailed budget proposals for 2020/21 the Council has
sought to achieve best practice in equality and inclusion. The Council
recognises that it has to make difficult decisions in order to reduce its
overall expenditure to meet Government cuts in grant funding and to
deliver a balanced budget while ensuring that it is able to respond
positively to increases in demand for essential services, and meet its legal
equality obligations at the same time. In doing so it endeavours to best
meets the specific needs of residents, including those groups that share a
“protected characteristic”.

27.7 Through its budget proposals, the Council will also seek to identify
opportunities to improve services and the quality of life for all Croydon
residents while minimising any adverse impacts of decisions, particularly
in regard to groups that share protected characteristics. It is guided by
the broad principles of equality and inclusion and has carried out equality
Impact assessments to secure delivery of that duty, including such
consultation as required.

27.8 An equality analysis has been completed in respect of the overall Council

Page 165



Tax increase which will apply to all households in the borough. Wﬁ\Peoﬁﬂg'x H
increase is relatively modest, it will nonetheless impact those on low and
fixed incomes and in particular those affected by changes to the benefit
system and no longer qualify for Council Tax Support. This segment of
the population is more likely to live in the most deprived areas in the
borough where there is a greater proportion of Black Asian and Minority
ethnicity residents. This has to be balanced against the additional amount
raised through the Adult Social Care charge which will contribute to
meeting the expected increase in demand for these services. The
additional income will benefit Croydon’s most vulnerable adults and
families, likely to also be in this protected group. In addition the Council
will continue, through the Council Tax Support scheme to provide financial
relief for vulnerable households including:

. Pensioners on low incomes.

. People that are in receipt of disability living allowance or employment
support allowance.

. People that are in receipt of income support.

. Single parents with a child or children aged under five.

27.9 As part of wider overall welfare support provided, residents having
difficulties with their payments are offered practical budgeting advice and
support as well as help in finding work through the Council’s Gateway
service. These provisions and the support available are highlighted in the
customer’s Council Tax bills.

27.10 In respect of specific proposals as outlined in Appendix A, it is likely that
some proposals may result in new policies or policy or service changes,
in this instance each proposal will be accompanied by an equality analysis
which will inform the final proposal and its implementation, on a case by
case basis made available at the time of decision.

Approved by Barbara Grant on behalf of Yvonne Okiyo, Equalities

Manager
28.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
28.1 There are no direct environmental considerations arising from this report.
29.0 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT
29.1 There are no savings which should impact upon this Corporate Priority.

30.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS/PROPOSED DECISION

30.1 The council has a duty to set a balanced budget and therefore the
proposals set out in the report achieve this duty.

Page 166



31.0 OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED Appendix H

31.1 Various other options were considered in terms of council tax levels,
investments and savings. These are ultimately decisions of policy and
political choice.

REPORT CONTACT: Nish Popat, Interim Head of Corporate Finance

APPENDICES:

Appendix A — Revenue savings, income and growth options
Appendix B — Summary of Revenue Estimates

Appendix C — Council Tax Bands

Appendix D — Council Tax Recommendations

Appendix E — Response to Provisional Local Government Settlement
Appendix F— Dedicated Schools Grant

Appendix G — Pay Policy Statement

Appendix H — 20/21 Q3 Budget Monitoring Report

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Croydon's General Fund & HRA Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24
	8.3 The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to 2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below. As previously announced at Spending Review 2020, it shows an increase
	8.4 The National Core Spending Power figures for the period 2016/17 to 2021/22 are shown in Table 2 below.  It shows an in year increase of 4.21% for 2021/22 and an overall of 4.5% for 2021/22 and an overall change for the period 2015/16 to 2021/22 of...
	8.5 Graph 1 below shows the level of central government funding to local government between 2015/16 and 2020/21 excluding Council Tax.  It shows a reduction of £2.8bn from £22.6bn to £19.8bn, a reduction of 13%.
	New Homes Bonus
	9.3  Croydon’s New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocation for 2021/22 is £5.2m, as shown in table 4 below.  This is comprised of £3.6m legacy payments from previous years and an in-year payment of £1.6m.
	*projected
	10 Wider Local Government Funding Issues
	10.1 A summary of wider local government funding issues is set out below.
	10.8 MHCLG are proposing to distribute the £670m of grant funding based on working-age Local Council Tax Support caseloads in each billing authority’s area, using data from quarter 1 and quarter 2 of 2020/21. They are also proposing to adjust this dis...
	10.9 Local tax income guarantee for 2020/21 (i.e. business rates and council tax deficits) - The government has also announced, as part of a consultative policy paper, the details of its proposed scheme for compensating for irrecoverable local taxatio...
	10.10 Sale, Fees and Charges Support MHCLG - are seeking views to continue the current support for the first quarter of 2021/22 and continue to use 2020/21 budgeted income as the baseline to assess losses.
	10.11 Other - MHCLG are proposing to continue (a more streamlined) COVID-19 financial impact survey and are also seeking views on priority areas for data collection going forward
	11 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

	London Business Rates Pilot / Pool
	12.4 Under the Localised Business Rates system, the council ordinarily retains 30% of the business rates collected from business premises within the borough and as such benefits from any growth above baseline funding levels. The Greater London Authori...
	12.5 Pilot status was awarded to London boroughs, who collectively formed a business rates pool, in 2018/19 and 2019/20 which reduced the amount of growth returned to MHCLG to 0% and then 25% in the two years respectively. This pilot status was withdr...
	12.6 The coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the business environment across London and as a consequence total yield across the region is expected and forecast to reduce as a result of business failure and significant levels of appeal...
	12.7 The 2020/21 budget for the Council assumed a pooling benefit of £0.5m, which is unlikely to now materialise as a result of the changes to the economic environment, but will be subject to final clarification pending completion of all London boroug...
	Settlement Funding Assessment per head across London
	12.8 Table 6 below shows the Settlement Funding Assessment per head for each London Borough (excluding the City of London) and shows Croydon ranked as 21st, receiving £237 per head in 2021/22, whereas neighbouring Lambeth will receive £447 per head. I...
	12.9 Croydon has an average of £237 per head over the five year period; this compares to the London average of £382.
	Table 9 – Local Taxation for 2021/22
	15.3 Table 10 gives details of both the increases to the Croydon element of the council tax and the Adult Social Care precept over the last 4 years and the increase being recommended for 2021/22.
	Table 10 – Croydon Council percentage increase since 2018/19

	16.0 Greater London Authority Precept 2021/22
	16.1 On 15th December 2020, the Mayor of London announced his provisional proposal to increase his share of council tax by 1.99%, £6.64.  This was revised on 12th January 2021 to 9.5%, £31.59 of which £15 will go towards helping fund the Metropolitan ...
	In order to implement the proposed increases for TfL, the GLA requires approval from the government to amend its referendum limits as the increase would be greater than its current 2% limit before a referendum was required.
	Repair and Improvement of council stock
	18.25 A key aim for the council has been the government target of bringing 100% of social homes up to the decent home standard. Croydon has invested in its HRA properties to ensure that it meets, and continue to achieve the decent homes standard. The ...
	24.0 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS
	26.0 HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT
	27 EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
	28.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
	29.0 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT
	Appendix A – Revenue savings, income and growth options
	Appendix B – Summary of Revenue Estimates
	Appendix C – Council Tax Bands
	Appendix D – Council Tax Recommendations
	Appendix E – Response to Provisional Local Government Settlement
	Appendix F – Dedicated Schools Grant
	Appendix G – Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix H – 20-21 Q3 Budget Monitoring Report




